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1 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

() 2 NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

3

O 4 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -x-

:
5 In the Matter of: :

:
6 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY, et al. : Docket Nos.

: 50-361 OL
7 (San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station, : 50-362 OL

:
8 Units 2 & 3) :

:
9 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _x__

10 Orange County Ballroom
Marriott Hotel

11 700 W. Convention Way
Anaheim, California

12
Thursday,

((]) 13 September 3, 1981

14 Evidentiary hearing in the above-entitled

15 matter was reconvened, pursuant to adjournment, at 1:00 p.m.

16 BEFORL:

|
~

17 JAMES L. KELLEY, Chairman
! Atomic Safety and Licensing Board

18

| DR. CADET HAND, JR., Member
19

MRS. ELIZABETH B. JOHNSON, Member
20

21
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23
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2 WITNESS DIRECT CROSS REDIRECT RECROSS
|

3 Kenneth P. Barr (recalled)
by Mr. Pigott 9066

4
Keith Woodard (recalled)

5 by Mr. McClung 9073

6 David F. Pilmer
by Mr. Casey 9137,
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by Mr. Hoefling 9205
8
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c

1 P_ g Q q g g Q I,,,,E Q g

2 1:13 p.m.

3 JUDGE KELLEY: Back on the record. We want to

4 keep the parties apprised as best we can where we are and

5 where we are going with regard to the Board's earthquake
,

6 issue and the motion for certification that has been called

7 or referral of that issue and the -- ofLthat issue.

8 We have given the matter further consideration

9 in light of the parties' arguments. We are not going to

10 withdraw that issue as suggested by the Staff. We do

11 believe, however, that the issue needs to be further clari-

12 fled in terms of just what we are interested in in light of

, 13 the developing record in this case.

k,]
\

14 We will issue a written clarification of the

15 issue next week. We will probably refer the issue as clari-

16 fied to the appeal board with the acknowledgement that the

17 parties ask for a Commission referral and suggestion that the
18 appeal board can refer it on if it wishes, and of course

-

19 keeping the General Counsel advised if they wish to -- if
20 the Commission wishes to step in and take it up itself

|
| 21 directly.

12 We have had some discussion and paper on I think

23 all these questions. The one thing we really haven't ad-

() 24 dressed so far is whether or not, if the matter is certified'

25 or referred, whether or not we should proceed and try the

V(~h
_

- - -- . _ - _ . -. - - . . - . __. .-_ .- -._ --
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(
' (_/ 1 issue in the meantime, or wait for the result of the referral ,

2 that that is a question that has been referred to briefly,

() 3 but not really talked about, and that we are unclear exactly

4 about what all parties' positions at least are on the ques-
'

5 tion.

6 So, we wanted to say this today on the recora,

7 and they say further that as to the question of whether we

8 should go ahead or whether we should wait, we would lik e to

9 hear some discussion of that tomorrow from the parties some-

10 time during the day.

11 I think with that that tie Board is ready to go

12 on to the next witness. So are there sther preliminary mat-

13 ters that counsel wish to raise, Mr. Pigott?g

(U
14 MR. PIGOTT: No, I believe at some time today

15 we have on our schedule to discuss the low power license --

16 JUDGE KELLEY: Yes, I am glad you mentioned that

17 again. We did say the other day that Thursday -- I think we

18 set Thursday at the end, but we will say it now specifically,

19 at least later we will take some time to hear from the par-

20 ties on two questions, the question of what a hearing issue

21 ought to be on the low power motion with reference to the
12 state of emergency plans, and also what the schedule ought

23 to be for filing testimony on that issue.

O\~J 24 And we indicated we would hear some discussion,

25 today and we would set tomorrow a tentative determination on

.

-_y- . , , - - - - m --, . _ _ _ _ __g..- 9%_y7.#, ,,y-- --. ,p- , . ~ - ._-,-.-,-.y _ , , . - ' - - 7 t- "* - Pr-
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-f:h
I both issues with the right of parties to file written papersi()
2 by next Wedna ay, which se would then take into account in

3 making any modifications of the tentative issue and times.

4 Sc let's get started with our witnesses today,

5 and bear in mind that we do want to get to that today later

6 on.

"

7 MR. PIGOTT: I would at this time request to

8 recall Mr. Kenneth P. Barr.

9 JUDGE KELLEY: Let me be clear. Is there any-

10 thing else? Mr. McClung, do you have other business before

11 we get going?

12 MR. MC CLUNG: No, it is fine to start.

13 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. Fine.

14 JUDGE KELLEY: Mr. Barr was previously sworn?

'

15 MR. PIGOTT: Correct.

16 Whereupon,

17 KENNETH'P. BARR

18 naving been previously duly sworn by the Chairman, was re-

19 called as a witness herein and was examined and testified

20 further as follows:

21 REDIRECT EXAMINATION
t

12 BY MR. PIGOTT

23 Q Mr. Barr, in your direct testimony earlier in -

O(_j 24 the proceeding, you referred to the dispatch of offsite'

25 radiation monitoring teams following a release of

D
-

,---y , ,, y,-+,-.- , - , , , - - - - - - , , - - , - , , . - , , , , , , , ,.,,,w,, , , - - m -g --, , < m ,or y,., - , - - -- -,. , , .y y ,,- , , , we ww, , ,-,,
-
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/7' I radioactivity from the plant, and I would refer specifically

2 to pages 13 and 14 of your direct testimony. Further at

% 3 transcript 7694 you responded to a question from Dr. Hand
(O

4 concerning the availability and number of teams that you

5 would use.

6 Subsequent to your testimony, Mr. Ray addressed

7 plant staffing in his direct testimony, again, page eight

8 of his direct testimony, and was questioned on it in his

9 cross examination at pages 7829 and 7845 of the transcript

10 in terms of NUREG 0564, table B-1, and that table provides

11 minimum staffing requirements in a number of major functiona]

12 areas including radiological accident assessment and support

. 13 of operational accident assessment.

(o\' 14 And in that major functional area, the capabili--

15 ty to conduct offsite surveys is addressed in terms of per-

16 sonnel added to the onshift staff at 30 and 60 minutes into

17 the accident.

18 With this background, could you clarify for us
|

19 your testimony relative to the availability of offsite moni-

20 toring teams with particular reference to the overall staff-

21 ing available at the plants?
|

12 A Yes. When I answered that -- those aspects, i

23 was answering it in terms of what I expected the staffing
,

() 24 to be for a multi-unit reactor plant, as opposed to, say,

25 a minimum staffing. I expect for such a plant that there

O

,

, , . - . - . , r-- - ., - - ,m.--- - _ , , , - - - - ,-- -, , . . . - , - - - ,.--y,.-
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-m

'/'') I will be many people there doing routine maintenance during
V

2 outage situations or just routine activities, such that a

r^s 3 large number of people will be available to respond.
V

4 Q And would these people be available on a 365 day

5 a ysar basis?

6 A No, that was not my intent to specifically say

7 that they would have to be there 24 hours a day, 365 days of

8 the year. We would, of course, meet the minimum staffing

9 requirements as established by table B-1.

10 Q And what about augmentation of --

3; A The augmentation of the teams would again be in

12 terms of what is required by table B-1. Let me reiterate,

r

13 that is what I expect to be a small fraction of the time.

(-
14 e Q And in what circumstances would you believe on-

15 site staffing would exceed minimum requirements of NUREG

16 0654 in table B-1 with respect to the capability for.offsite

17 dose assessment?
.

18 -A Well, I expect it to exceed that very frequently.,

l
19 For axample, I have.on.. staff-fight now three health physics

20 personnel just in the support of Unit 1. For aamultiple unit

| 21 site I would expect an increase in staff. So I would expect
:
'

12 those people to be available a very large fraction of the

23 time.

() 24 Q And what kind of capability specifically does

25 that provide?

.es"

---_.m - ..w--._- , - - , - - - - ,._7. ,_m ,, - ,-,-,,-,,.e_-. - , . - . , . -
,,
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,m

O i i vor eue greeemt eterrime -- e11, 1et e texe

2 the -- for the existing staffing that would allow me to send

3 off a number of offsite monitoring teams immediately, and in

4 addition be able to do onsite monitoring with what I expect

5 to be a large staff of available people. ,

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17
-

-

18

19

20

21

22

23

O 24

25

O
_
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tp#2-1 1 Q These additional on-site personnel, they are not

) 2 necessarily always on shift immediately?

3 A No, no. They are not. As I indicated, I expect

b'') 4 there to be a large staff there, but not to be there 365 days

5 of the year. I would also add that, as I indicated previously ,

6 in terms of off-site monitoring, off-site monitoring is con-

7 firmatory in nature and that those projections and any pro-

2 tective actions are already determined based on existing

9 monitoring equipment and really aren't based on off-site

10 monitoring.

11 Q Well, in situations, however infrequent they might

12 be, where availability of qualified personnel would only meet

13 the minimum requirements of NUREG 0654 Table B-1, how would,^

( ('s-)
14 you go about performing on-site monitoring in the event of an

15 accident?

16 A For t he on-site monitoring I would utilize the

~

17 health physics technicians who are on-site; in addition, a

18 chemistry technician would be trained to handle this kind of

i 19 monitoring. There would be additional people on-site to

20 perform monitoring, operators, for example, who have been
!

21 trained in the use of instrumentation. These people would
t

| 22 provide for on-site monitoring. Off-site monitoring would,-,

V
23 be based on augmentation from call-out personnel. One of

_ 24 those individuals who are on-site may be available for off-

xJ.

25 site monitoring, depending on what the circumstances are at'

:

I
l

1
1

_ , - _ _ ,- .-. . . - - _ . _ _ .
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2 1 the time. So essentially within 30 minutes, after approxi-

(]) 2 mately 30 minutes we would have some off-sitecmonitoring

3 teams, like the three that I indicated. That would be a

, () 4 situati.on where what I consider to be a verir infrequent situa-

5 tion, minimum staffing.

6 Then in another 60 minutes we would have additiona;

7 teams available for off-site monitoring, as well as on-site
?

8 monitoring.

9 Q How many teams are you talking about?

10 A I'm talking approximately say three in approxi-

11 mately 30 minutes. An additional two teams in say 60 minutes

12 and, beyond that, whatever the available manpower provides.

{(v')
13 Q Do you consider that initial three and two, I

14 believe you.said, is that correct?

15 A Actually, we would have initially probably the two

16 from the 30 minutes if I wasn't able to break anybody loose

.

17 immediately. Solet'ssaytwoafteh30 minutes, an additional
i

l

18 two, for a total of four.

19 Q So four off-site teams. Do you consider that to

20 be sufficient throughout any emergency scenario?

21 A I think it is desirable to, just from a conserva-
|

| g- 22 tive point of view, provide off-site monitoring as well as
L)s

23 you can with as many teams as you have available. I think

24 that those provide an adequate level of monitoring, but Igs;

,L]
N' 25 wouldn't necessarily stop at just four.

. _- - _._ ~ - _ _ _-
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3 1 MR. PIGOTT: I hava no further questions.

) 2 JUDGE KELLEY: Thank you. Excused.

3 (The witness was excused.)

() 4 MR. PIGOTT: I believe Mr. Wocdard was previously

5 called and had presented his direct examination. He is now

6 being recalled to be tendered for cross examination.

7 JUDGE KELLEY: Mr. Woodard gave his overview, I

8 think -- I'm sure he did.

9 MR. PIGOTT: He can confirm that. I'm sure he
t

10 did.

11 JUDGE KELLEY: Last Friday?

12 MR. CASEY: Saturday.

13 Whereupon,{(u~)j

14 KEITH WOODARD

15 was recalled as a witness herein and, having :been previously;

16 duly sworn by the Chairman, was examined and testified further
-

- -

17 as follows:
~

18 JUl'GE KELLEY: Maybe sort of a mini-overview would

19 be useful. I don't know if it is fair to ask you that just

20 cold, but just a sort of brief description again might give

21 a little context to the discussion.

22 WITNESS WOODARD: I'll briefly review my notes

23 here. Basically, my testimony deals with an analysis made by

24 SAI for the State Office of Emergency Services. In thatgm,
\-)
'' 25 anulysis they used what we call refer to as PRA techniques,2

- - - , . - . . - . - , - -- . . -.. _ - - - _ .
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4 1 or probabilistic risk analysis methodology. I reviewed that

If) 2 there are really three phases to such an analysis. First,

3 there is a plant analysis; secondly, there is a containment

(w~) 4 analysis to find.out if the containment can withstand the

5 plant condition after an accident; and finally, in the con-

6 sequence area, where we calculate what the damage, what the

7 health effects are from the accident.

3 All of this is done in a probabilistic manner.

9 My primary field of experience has been in this latter

10 category. It is that part of the analysis that SAI did that

11 is related to determining things like appropriate boundaries

12 for emergency planning. So basically I have reviewed the

13 results of the SAI report and have concluded that the ten-^

((k.-}
14 mile EPZ is adequate for the site.

15 JUDGE KELLEY: That's helpful. Thank you. The

16 witness is tendered? Did I recall hearing that?

17 MR. CASEY: He has been tendered before and he is

18 still tendered.

19 JUDGE KELLEY: All right. Remains tendered.

20 CROSS EXAMINATION

21 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

22 Q Mr. Woodard, I believe in your overview on Satur-

s-

23 day you went through a number of very valuable experiences

24 that you bave had in this area, and I won't go into that in

k.s.]
'-' 25 detail, but I just wanted to ask you a couple questions about
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5 1 your background. Do you have any degrees or coursework in

p) 2 meteorology?(,,

3 A I have no degree in meteorology. I have worked

() 4 in that area for the last 18 years. Much of that work has

5 been done with three of the bes , in my opinicn, meteorologyc

6 people, professors in that field. Much cf what I know I

7 learned from working with them.

8 Q Could you explain just briefly your involvement

9 with them?

10 A Yes. Working as a consultant from time to time

11 I've had questions arise where I felt that it would be advisable

12 to get greater expertise involved and in those instances I

((]}) 13 have brought these other people in to assist in the analysis.

14 Q So when you are doing an analysis, for instance,

15 of reactor safety with one of your computer models which ycu

16 have developed -- I know you have developed some of your own
. . . . _

17 computer models for that purpose -- you would -- you might

18 call in, if you were doing an analysis of a specific site,

19 a meteorological expert to help you plug that portion of the
,

20 data into your computer model? Would that be a fair statement ?

21 A Well, it is not entirely correct. I feel that

22 in most cases now I have had the experience that I don't

23 always need that type of assistance; however, if it is a new

24 question or a more complicated one, either I use people on my
,

.J
'- 25 own staff who have degrees in that area or I rely on the

- -. . _- . - - _ . - .. . -.- -. . . - . . . . - - . . . - - - - - - . -
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6 1 outside consultants.

.(]) 2 Q Nith respect to your training once again, what

3 training or coursework have you had in the field of geography?

() 4 A Geography? I can' t think of any particular course-

5 work other than the obvious training that one receives in goinc

6 through school. I spent many years personally studying terrair t

7 maps and topographic raps, but I have had no formal training

3 that I can think of in that area.

9 ///

10

11

12

(( ) 2

14

15

16
.

'

17

18

19

20

i 21

22
(:)

23
|

24
(:)

'

,
- b

!

|
|
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T3.lg 1 O If you were muking an analysis of the risk

tm
) 2 consequences surrounding a particular reactor site on yourt

s

3 own and not interpreting someSody else's but applying your

() 4 own -- one of your own PRA codes or you know, correct ne if I

5 am using the terminology incorrectly, but would you engage

6 an expert or a consultant or someone on your staff to review

7 the topography and land charactoristics when you put that

8 information into your nodel?

9 A It is a very straightforward entry into the

10 program. The types of things that are entered are terrain

11 height as a function of distance and direction from the plant,

12 f ar example, and as f ar as population i concerned, it is the

13(]) number of people that are living at different directions and

14 distances from the plant.

15 There is no particular expertise required in mak-

16 ing that entry.
' '

-

l7 0 And so you normally do that yourself ?

18 A I or a person on myself.

19 JUDGE HAND: May I interrupt for a moment?

20 t1R . MC CLUUG: Of course .

21 JUDGE HAND: In the wr.y we put together

22 contention 3, of the subitens listed on it, number one is

23 topography and number seven was characteristics, land

24 characteristics, and when Mr. McClung just asked that-

25 question he said those two together. Are there anys._

._ . - -- --. - - .- _ . _ - . . .. - . - - , - , -
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2 1 differences between topography and land characteristics?

I' 2 UITNESS WOODARD: I -- I had a dif ficult timeb)
3 myself in trying tro determine the dif ference between the

(} 4 two. Topography to me is strictly terrain. Land characteris-

5 tics may include other things like the land-sea interface.

6 JUDGE HAND: Well, I am struggling with what our

7 intent, and that is somersort of a collective intent at this

8 point, was in having those twc items in the contention. That

9 is really where my question is going to.

10 MR. CASEY: A statement of Counsel; we raised

11 that question, I believe, at the time we were struggling with

12 the wards, and thought that it was repetitive, if you will,

13 but in the end, when the contention finally came out there,-

I s_3/
14 they were, so we have just sort of taken them as they were

15 given.

16 MR. MC CLUNG: I might be able to clarify; I don't

~

17 know if this helps or not, but the -- those particular words

18 are f ou nd in the regulations, I believe, at 50.33(g).

19 JUDGE HAND: So there is some sense of difference

|
20 involved?

21 MR. MC CLUNG: Those -- those -- they say as

_ 22 affected by conditions such as demography, topography, land

23 characteristics, access routes, and jurisdictional Soundaries.

24 That is probably where the tern came fron.

.

25 MR. CASEY: That is exactly correct, but the-

i

. , - , - - , , - - - _ . , - ,, , -- - - - - . - - - - . , - - - - ,- -- -. .
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3 1 regulations and the preample to them don't explain the |

'([) 2 difference either, so you are really still lef t with a problem .

3 We are just trying to cover the bases.

(( ) 4 JUDGE HAND: Well, I have asked the question, and

5 I guess I have an answer.

6 JUDGE KELLEY: Your suggestion is there is a flaw

7 or ambiguity in an NRC regulation?

8 MR. CASEY: Far be it from me, Mr. Chairman, to

9 question such a thing. It is just a depth that we haven't

10 plumbed yet.

11 JUDGE KELLEY: I don't think you ever will. I

12 have been trying for years. I don't -- all right.

13 WITUESS WOODARD: I have done some thinking about{)
14 the differences, and about the types Of things I can think is

15 that if there were a number of lakes or something that would

16 restrict movement, or rough terrain or cliffs, that sort of
.-

17 thing, that would be dif ferent, perhaps, than topography.

18 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

19 0 With respect to your educational backgrcund once

20 again, do you have any coursework or degree in biology or

21 health-related sciences?

22 A Yes, I have had several courses in Stology. I

23 have had a course in radiobiology or the biological ef f ects

24 of radiation.7g
\_)

25 0 Now, with reference to the company that you work
i

. _ . . . - . . - - . . - , - - - , , _ , . - . - , - , - - . .-- . . - . , . ~ - - .-
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'

4 1 for, Pickard, Lowe, 5 Garrick, do they exclusively work in

q() 2 the siting and safety analysis for nuclear power plants?

3 A No, tie work in many different aspects of nuclear

O(_/ 4 power.

5 Q The company generally deals in nuclear power, then ?

6 A Yes.

7 Q What other aspects?

8 A Well, we are -- we performed many different types

9 of services through the years, some related to fuel cyc'le

10 ana lys is , core physics, reactor safety, safety systems

11 design, fuel rack design.

12 Q Have you ever worked for the Edison Company

13 hefore?

(O
14 A Yes.

15 0 In what regard?

16 A Me, personally or Pickard, Lowe, and Garrick?

17 Q I was referring to you. personally.;

18 A Oh, I am sorry. I an looking back many years .
;

19 It has been 14 years, and as far as I can remember, I have

20 not personally worked on any of their plants.

21 I have worked on the Sundesert project, which was

22 partia lly, I believe partially involved Southern Cal Edison.

23 0 Referring to page four of your testimony, you

24 discuss at the beginning of line five that you have been

(!

_,
25 involved in the development of computer models f or

_ - - - _ - . - _ _ _ . _ _ _ _ _ _ .. __ _ _ . _ . _ . . _ - _ . . . - . _ . _ , . _ _ . - . . _ ..__. _ _- - -
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5 1 establishing environmental monitoring programs, and for

(]) 2 performing site evaluations , could you describe the various

3 monitoring programs you have been involved in?

({} 4 A Yes, there are basically two types of programs

5 that I have been involved in. One of them is related to

6 cooling towers and the environmental ef fects of cooling towers

7 for basically four dif ferent aspects of that type of analysis,

8 those relating to drif t drop particles, fogging, icing, and

9 shadowing of crops.

10 Basically we used those types of analysis to

11 determine correct monitoring locations. As far as the

12 nuclear applications, we have been working for many years

13 developing models which use meteorological data, and other
)

14 site characteristics such as terrain, and determ aad for

15 example the best locations far nonitoring equipment such as

16 TLD's. Those are dosimeters that measure radioactive
-

17 material. _
..

-

18 0 What exactly is atmospheric dispersion Sctor?

19 A The atmospheric dispersion factor, or an analysis

20 that involves atmospheric dispersion is one that determines

21 basically the dilution of any released material from the plant.

22 or from whatever source one is evaluating.

O At page six of your testimony, beginning at line

24 17, you list three proceedings, licensing proceedings for~s

25 nuclear power plants at which you testified. could you
_..

- _ _ . _ _ _ .._. -__ _- ____. _ -- - . _ - - -. . _ _ _ , _
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6 1 briefly tell me uhat the substance of your testimony was in

() 2 the Houston Lighting and Power Company case?

3 A Yes. That was regarding aircraft accidents as

() 4 they might provide a hazard to the plant.

5 Q And with respect to Rochester Gas and Electric

6 Company?

7 A Un Rochester Gas and Electric, I was testifying

8 regarding many different aspects of the plants there,

9 including cooling tower ef f ects, the meteorological aspects ,

10 radiological dose assessments that I made.

11 Q And with respect to the San Diego Gas and Electric

12 Company?
,

13 A Again, there were ch, like I believe four topics
{)

14 that I was addressing. One was aircraft hazards. The other

15 was cooling towers, neteorological dispersion calculations

16 that I had made, as well as routine dose calculations for
.

17 routine operation of the plant.

18

19

20

21

,,

'

23

.( )
e 25s

l
- - . - - - . _ , - .,-_ - -. _ .- .- ,_ . . - - .__ ...
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tp#4 1 Q Have you had any experience or have you given any

.

' ("'s; 2 testimony before with respect to determining the size of an

3 emergency planning zone?

(]) 4 A No, I don't -- I can't think of any specifically

5 related to determining the size of a zone. I've done many

6 calculations regarding the appropriate distances and design

7 characteristics for plants that deal with dose calculations

8 as a function of distance. If you are f amiliar with the regu-

9 lations as they stand now, as regarding the design of the

P ant, there is an LPZ that has to be established and anl10

11 exclusion area boundary. Most of my work has been related to

12 establishing those boundaries.

13 0 In what context have you had occasion to use the({ ;
14 . NUREG decument 0396 in the past with respect to testifying?

15 A I've never testified on any 0396-related material.

16 And the reason I am hesitating is that 0396 covers many differ-
-.

_

17 ent disciplines that I have been involved in. So as far as

18 testifying on matters related to dose versus distance. I

19 have done that on many occasions.

20 0 Thank you. That was a good clarification because

21 my question was too broad. But specifically with reference

- 22 to the emergency planning zone determination of size have

xs
23 you had any, besides this particular study into it, have

24 you made any other studies into the appropriate size of the

'' 25 emergency planning zone using or with reference to NUREG 0396?-

_-. _ . .- _ .. .-. . .. . _ . - - .-
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1 A No. It's not -- the appropriateness of the dis-

() 2 tances is in a way unrelated to the calculation. My basic

3 job and activities have been with the calculation, and it

() 4 can be used at any distance and for a number of different

5 purposes.

6 Q Okay. Turning from you for a second to your

7 colleague, Dr. Dennis Bley, could you please.tell me how he

8 aided you in the preparation of your testimony?

9 A Yes. His primary area of expertise is in the

10 plant portion or the first and second parts of the PRA analy-

11 sis. He has reviewed the SAI report in detail in that

12 regard. He has assisted in that area ?.of my testimony.

13 Q What particular area of your testimony relies on{)
14 the judgment or determination of Dr. Bley?

15 A The principal area that I have relied upon his

16 judgment is in the area of probability. If you will note

17 later on I make a-statement in here in my~ testimony that the

18 overall risk or the total risk of the San Onofre plants as

19 determined by the SAI report is very much the same as the

!

| 20 risk which was determined for the WASH 1400 plants that were
|

21 evaluated, and it is his evaluation of the SAI work that has

22 led to that statement.7.-
G

23 0 okay. Turning for a second to your exhibit

24 which is your exhibit number 1 -- I actually believe it isg-
'u

'

25 Exhibit No. 119 in this proceeding -- could you explain for'

--- - - - - . , . - . . .-.
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1 me how Dr. Bley helped you in determining the curve which

(]) 2 you plotted as Curve 2 in that diagram?

3 A Dr. Bley's primary responsibility in assisting

() 4 me was involved in this number 5 x 10-5 per year. These

5 two numbers are the probability of core melt; that i s ,

6 that serves one basis for evaluating these curves. He has

-5
7 verified the 4.6 x 10 value, which is listed for SONGS

g 2 or 3. We believe that you have to look at these curves with

9 a total risk in mind. If I could establish a concept of con-

10 ditional risk or risk conditioned upon the accident happening,

11 if you werecto blank out the chance of the accident happening

12 and just look at the curves. These would be the conditional

(/^3 13 risks and it would be based primarily on environmental,
.(/

14 topographica and site-related parts of the accident, whereas

15 the probabilities listed in these two numbers that are

16 primarily from the plant analysis, that is the part that

17 Dr.Blehhasconfirmedandstudied.

18 Q Did he perform his own analysis independently

-5
. 19 into the 4.6 x 10 number and determine that that number was
|

l

| 20 reasonably accurate?

21 A He has not conducted his own study for this plant.
,

i

gs 22 He has reviewed the SAI report in detail and he has expressed
\-]'

23 some concerns over the methods used in arriving at these '

gS 24 numbers; however, his feelings are that these numbers are
LJ

' 25 conservative. In other words r they are higher. The plant
.

- - - , - - - - , - - - , - < ,, , , , , , , -m,
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1 does not have as high a risk as indicated by this probability.

() 2 Q Okay. Turning then.now to the analysis of the

3 SAI report and I'd like to turn briefly to the CRAC computer

(G 4 computer code. Is there a difference between the CRAC computer_/

5 code as it was applied in WASH 1400 and as it was applied by

6 the SAI group?

7 A The code, the basic calculation as made by the

8 program, is the same. It is my understanding that SAI made

9 some modifications in the say that the output or the printout

10 or the results of the calculation were presented.

11 Q Are you aware of any different assumptions that

12 they used in putting the input into the code?

((a~) 13 A No. From the best that I can determine in re-

14 viewing the report, I enderstand their input assumptions.

15 As far as the data that goes into the calculation, those

16 data are done in a conventional -- they are put in in a

-

17 ~ conventional manner'and appropriately. There are a number of

18 selectors, however, in running the program waich enable one

19 to change the form of the output. So there are differences
i

20 in the selectors that were chosen by SAI and the selectors

21 that are;perhaps chosen by the NRC or any other user.
i

(~g 22 Q Okay. That term is a little too -- I'm pretty
V

23 naive in this area -- that term is a little too technical

24 for me. What does " selector" mean?(~g.

v/
25 A ' selector vould be, for example, perhaps I could.

. _ . - _ _ _ ,__ _ _ , . ,. _ _ _ _ _ _ _
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1 use one of my exhibits. The curve that basically relates to

'
) 2 dose as a function of distance, the time at which that

3 receptor that is receiving that dose at these various dis-

f'l 4 tances is assumed to be at a location determines its dose.v

5 If he is there four hours, he gets a four hour dose. If he

6 is there 12 or 8 or some other number of hours, his dose is

7 greater. There are differences in that example between the

3 assumptions made by SAI and the NRC. For example, in pre-

9 paring NUREG 0396, one of the figures in there which I have

10 actually used in my exhibit is based on like a four >tur

11 assumption of dose, whereas SAI aus used a 24 hour assumption.

12 Q Now turning then to the Exhibit 119, what did you

13 do, if anything, to account for that difference in assumption{)
14 when you plotted those lines?

15 A I reported them without modification. And I

16 didn't feel it was appropriate for me to modify their results

17 in that particular way. *

13 Q In the CRAC code as it was used in the WASH 1400,

19 was it used -- that study, I take it, was a study based on a

20 composite of reactors, is . oat correct?

21 A Yes, that's correct.

:

22 Q Do you know if the.SAI report used any site-r3
Cf

l
23 specific data with respect to meteorology when they applied

24 the CRAC model?

'# 25 A Oh, yes. The SAI study is a site-specific-

. - - - -, - - . . .- - .. .
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1 calculation. They used weather data from the meteorological

(]) 2 tower at the SONGS site. They used populations from the SONGS

3 area.

(]) 4 0 Are you familiar with the evacuation part of the

5 model in the CRAC code?

6 A Yes.

7 Q Did the SAI use the CRAC code evacuation model

8 when they applied their study t'o various California reactor

9 sites?

10 A No. They devised their own model, which is

11 described in Chapter 8 of their report.

12 Q Do you have a professional opinion of the CRAC

13 code as a PRA?[{)
14 A Yes. I have spent the last three years, as I

15 mentioned in my opening statement, working with the CRAC code

16 andalso our own modifications of it. I'm sorry. Did I
_ . . . _ _ .

17 complete the answer?

18 Q I'm sorry. The question was perhaps unclear.
,

19 What I wanted to know was in your professional opinion is it
|

20 an accurate guide for helping us determine these types of

21 questions of dose assessment and probability.

1

I 22 A Yes. In terms of determining dose versus distance ,

,
23 which is the basic question in establishing emergency planning

24 zones, the CRAC code is perfectly adequate and is a good

' ' ' 25 tool for doing that.

..-- - - - _ - - -- . - . -- - - --
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1 Q Now the CRAC code you have testified when applied

2 in the SAI report is based on real data of meteorology. Is()
3 it based on real data of demography?

("] 4 A Yes.
V

5 0 And real data, site-specific data with respect to

6 topography?

7 A The CRAC code does not have an explicit treatment

3 of topography in it. And because # that and studies that

9 exist at the site or that have been made at the site using

10 tracers, it has been determined that there is more turbulence

11 or more atmospheric mixing at the site than would be predicted

12 using the CRAC methodology. So -from that standpoint, my

- 13 evaluation indicates that the doses would be lower as a

'

14 function of distance than actually determined in the CRAC

15 analysis.

16 ///

17
~

_

_

18

19

:

| 20

21

| ()
.

24

. b~
25''
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'" '"* "" * """'v"i" " ""*"""'i"* ^"" 7"i'OTsk1 '
r a real time analysis'as those terms are used in your

2

science?3p
J

4 A I don't see those as opposites. Conservative

and real time don't seem to be comparable terms.
5

6 Q Okay. Do you use the word conservative sometimes

with respect to assumptions of various computer models which7

8 you develop?

A Yes. The word conservative is appropriate and9

I believe is -- I believe one-can say that the crack results
10

are conservative. We tend to try to put uncertainty bandsyy

around probabilistic risk assessments that we make these
12

days, and I think as far as the dispersion model that is
13

available in crack, which is actually what is use to calcu-
14

late the dose versus distance part of the calculation, that
15 ,

m st people working in the field consider that to be reason-16

ably conservative. And it is the same type of model that is
j7

used in licensing reactor plants'on a daily basis.18

j9 0 0: cay. Turning in your testimony then to page

20 ten, you explain in answer to a question that begins on page

nine, line 22, which asked you to explain your understandinc-
21

of the planning rational used by the NRC in establishing a
- 22
l generic ten mile radius for the so-called plume exposure23
|

Pathway emergency planning zone around nuclear plants.(s 24

l A Yes.25

O.

:
!

.. . .- . --_ . - . .- - ,. -- .. . ,
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( ) k2 1 O You then go on to state on page ten that one

2 ingredient -- at line five -- one ingredient in t:1eir ration-- )

{}
ale appears to rely on certain results of the RSS and you3

4 go on to state that plots of conditional probability versus

5 distance were prepared, which were used to determine the

6 distance from the reactor within which emergenc2 planning

7 would have a reasonable probability of reducing significant

8 injuries (equated to 200 rem whole body dose).

9 Now, you stated that there are a number of fac-

10 tors in your opinion. What other factors besides the con-

Il ditional probability versus distance --

12 A Well, the other --

13 Q -- were used?

D 14 A The other major one that I have been able to ,

15 determine from my reading of 0396 is the second one listed

16 in my answer there, that the NRC further reasoned that if
.

17 the planning zone is about 10 miles, that there would be

18 sufficient resources available in an area that size to cope

19 with an accident -- any particular accident situation.

20 I basically have taken that from 0396 rationale.

21 Q Are there any other factors which you believe

22 that were relied on in 0396?

23 A Well, when I said there were a number of factors,

(3(_j 24 really I was thinking in that first part there are a number

25 of different factors related to that one alone, fcr example,

(

- - - - _. . . - . - - _ . .
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,

_

(~Nc3 i doses that might be received from the so-called design basis
G

accident, considerably lower doses than what one would pos-2

x 3 tulate for the large accidente that provide 200 rem or so.

4 And there are a number of statements in 0396

5 related to the -- for example, the protective action guide

6 levels, and whether or not those would be exceeded at 10

7 miles, so the NRC really looks at a whole spectrum of acci-

dents. In this particular case they may look at nine dif-8

ferent accident categories and look at the probabilities of9

each of those categories, and then based on generally speak-10

ing the probability of the higher consequent accident --gj

consequence accidents is lower.
12

So, if the probabilities are lower, perhaps one
13

(c)(, 34 could accept a higher risk, and so it is this balance of

risk and probability that the NRC is using in establishing.
15

16 its boundary.

17 0 Now, you state on -- I am still on page 10 on
_

line 11, which I have read before, and you talk about the
--

1 18

reasonable probability of reducing significant injuriesj9
r

i

equated to 200 rem whole body dose. Do they use other20

Probabilities of injuries when they -- in 0396? In other
21

12 w rds, do they have charts and graphs based on other doses

besides 200?23

A The 200 rem is the one that they use to discuss() 24

25 significant early injury in 0396.

m

x

:

, - __ , . . , , , , - _. _ _ - . _ . ~ _ _ _ - _ . . _ . _ . . _ _ . . . _ _ ._ , - - - . -
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j 0 Do they use any others though?k4

A Well, 200 rem is generally considered to be the2

threshold dose for the onset of what one would call signifi-
3O
4 cant injury. There are a number of different curves and

5 bar graphs in that NUREG document, however, this is the one

6 that they have equated to early injury.

7 Q If you were to plot other -- or maybe I should

strike that and say did you plot other dose probability
8

risk assessment type diagrams as you have on exhibit 119 for9

ther doses based on the SAI data at SONGS?
10

A Well, it is impossible from the information g.tveryy

in the SAI report to plot other than, I believe, three or
12

f ur different dose levels. If you look at their -- the
13

O curves that are Provided in there, they have tho 200 rem
i4

15
curve, I believe a 25 rem curve, and maybe a five and a .5.

There are basically three or four curves for each condition
16

of release category and reactor.17

18 Q Did you' plot any of those in your study?

A No. I have basically used the early injury
19

curves as being the primary criterion and dose information20

that is of interest in establishing an EPZ boundary.
21

Q Now, you refer at line three, and you are talking
22

bout 0396, with respect to the generic plume at 10 miles.
23

""^' * ' " "**" '' **"*"* 9 ""*' ""*'O 24

A The generic is just primarily referring to the
25

(Qv

. .- .- . - - , - , - . . n.-- - - - _ , . . _ , - .
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O k5 1 terminology used by NRC and I believe 0396 that this can
V

2 apply to any plant on any site in the United States if there

is sufficient assurance that within ten miles the atmospheric3O
4 dispersion would be such that the doses would be below this

5 injury threshold at roughly ten miles.

6 Q NUREG 0396 also goes on to talk about actual

7 drawing the line at actual plants, and could you tell us what

8 NUREG 096 in your opinion asks the planners to do when

9 drawing the actual boundary line?

10 A No. It is my reading of both Mr. Grimes' testi-

y; mony -- or I am sorry. I believe we had an affidavit from

Mr. Grimes, who is I believe the director of emergency plan-
12

. 13
ning with the NRC, and also in several other places and I
would have to look in 0396 to see if it is there, bu' I

14

believe that their specific position is that no calculations
15

are necessary, no site specific calculations are necessary16

for establishing the emergency planning zone. That those
17

~

calculations have already been d'one in the wach 1400 or the~~

is

RSS and that the conditions from site to site are not signi-
19

20 ficantly or sufficiently different 1.0 require that a site

21 specific analysis be done.

22 MR. CASEY: If I might just interrupt, the Board

has so ordered in ruling on Mr. Wharton's contention in this
23

O 24 =e-

JUDGE KELLEY: With respect to the need for
25

O
v

_ _ . _ _ _ _ _ _ __
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(]) k6 1 studies?

2 MR..CASEY: Yes, sir.

3 JUDGE KELLEY: That is true.

4 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

5 0 Okay, I am not trying to ask about studies or

6 be tricky, but I am trying to figure out, at your testimony

7 on page 10, line 17, as part of that you say the NRC for

8 the reason that if a planning zone is as large as about 10

9 miles, does that terminology come from NUREG 0396?

to A I would have to look and see exactly, but I

11 think that the Nhc has made enough statements that it doesn't.

12 have to be exactly that what they are asking for is that

13 jurisdictional boundaries, typography, highways, this sort
..

(
'

14 of thing be taken into account, so that if the boundary

15 dips slightly within 10 miles, that it is not particularly

16 important to the overall objective.

17 Q And if it dipped over 10 miles, because of those

la factors --
-

19 A There certainly would be --

20 Q That wouldn't be inconsistent with your reading

21 of NUREG 03967

22 A That is true, If it would facilitate the

23 planning within 10 miles to perhaps extend it anothei mile

D)(_ 24 on the other side, that certainly -- there would be no
,

25 problem. There is certainly no deleterious problem as far

. . . . . .. - - - -
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.-

( ) k7 1 as meeting the objective.

2 JUDGE KELLEY: Mr. McClung, are you familiar

3 with our ruling -- I guess which was made on the record --

4 I don't think there is a separate order on it -- regarding

5 this matter of size of the EPZ?

6 MR. MC CLUNG: Well, I think I am, but the way

7 you are -- the way everybody is questioning my line of testi-

8 mony, maybe I am not. Maybe somebody can refrest. my memory

9 about what --

10 JUDGE KELLEY: Let me just try to state it

11 briefly. The contention being advanced by the Carstens

12 group was that there had to be studies conducted to determine

. 13 where the line ought to be, sort of site specific studies

( 14 with the basic concept. So wa raised the question -- I

15 think you filed memoranda on it too, but in any event, we

16 did not accept that contention and we said that we thought

17 about 10 miles, given the context of the rule meant that the

18 local officials ought to take in the various factors -- take
;

19 into account the various factors recited. But it ultimately

20 was a judgment call. It is about as good a term as I can

21 come up with, and so if that -- that may have a bearing on

22 where you want to go with this, but I thought I would just

23 restate it.

() 24 MR..MC CLUNG: Okay. I appreciate that.

25 ///

Ov

|
!

__ _ . _ --- _ - - . , , _ . ._ _ __ _ _-.
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1 BY MR. MC CLUNG'
)

k8

2 Q Turning again to your exhib.t number 119, would

3 you -- your testimony, I believe, is that the little dip at

O
4 the bottom there, and what L mean by that is the place on

5 the bottom scale beyond 15 miles and very low probability --

6 on the very low probability on the other axis there -- is

7 insignificant. Is that correct?

8 A Yes, given that that slight crossover occurs at

9 a chance of one in a thousand. I am saying tha t it is really

10 not particularly important, and further I have indicated in

3; my testimony that the difference in assumptions which I
described a minute ago will tend to take curve two to the12

13 left, which would probably preclude any crossover, at least

() 14 on this figure.

15

16

17
-

- -

18
-

19

20

21

22

23

([) 24

25

.
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S5.lg 1 MR. CASEY: Would it he helpful to put the curve

/~ 2 up on the screen, or not?V)
3 JUDGE KELLEY: Uell, it might. Have you got much

() 4 more along this line? Would it he useful to you?

5 MR. MC CLUNG: He could put it up. I think it

6 would he useful.

7 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay.

8 MR. MC CLUNG: I don't know how much more I have.

9 WITNESS WOODARD: Is that a yes?

10 MR. MC CLUNG: Yeah, go ahead and put it up.

11 JUDGE KELLEY: Fine.

12 WITNESS WOODARD: Is that reasonable in focus?

f r' 13 BY MR. MC CLUNG:
' V)

14 Q Now, bearing in mind the difference in

15 assumptions which probably created that little dip, would you

16 say that the f act that these curves within a reasonable

17 scientific, in your reasonable scientific judgment come out

18 fairly much the same, only the one -- the SONGS curve is

19 under the other curve, would you say that provides a

20 validation for the SAI information, at least when compared

21 to the -- if the NUREG 0196 data is correct?

22 A Let me make one comment first. The dip is not,_

23 caused by a difference in assumptions. Only the relative

24 location of curve 2, okay. Now, in my estimation, given the
OG

25 low probabilities, there isn't much difference in what we

- _____-__ -___-
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2 1 call the tails of the curve between the two. They are very

(} 2 much the same, and they are very much caused by the same

3 phenomena as I indicated in my testimony that probably related

(]) 4 to rainfall.

5 One other point that should be mentioned is that

6 the NRC curve is smooth, but there are also kinks in the MRC

7 curve which they chose not to include, and that normally show

8 up in a crack analysis, so they are really '.he same in the

9 tails.

10 0 So, my question was, would that provide support

11 for the validity of the SAI results as interpreted by --

12 reinterpreted by you?

r 13 A Yes, it could. I guess it is encouraging that the
b'

14 two come out f airly close, given the difference in the site

15 input data that was used in WASH-1400, it was really a

16 generic mix of six different sites, and a lot of -- there are

17 a lot of considerable number of dif ferences, so I guess it

18 would make one feel somewhat comfortable that they are very

19 similar.

20 0 okay. I am still on that, on your Exhibit there.

21 Is there any way from looking at this particular exhibit,

22 number 119, that yo can determine probability of dose in any,

(~'\,

| \_)
23 given geographical area other than radius?

24 A No, not from this curve, except to say that they

' O
25 would -- the probabilities would be lower in any particular

.

- - , - -- , - - - - , - - , , - - - , - , , , - - - , --.---,,n - , --
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3 1 direction, and I believe SAI stated by a f actor of 30 to 50.

(') 2 o Do you ever, when you are doing these types of

3 assessment, plot the dose versus distance without factoring

(]) 4 the probability factor in?

5 A Not in a probabilistic risk analysis we do not.

6 The CRAC code itself does not do that in the final output.

7 There are ways that one can look at such things internal to

8 the calculation.

9 0 Do you ever -- or do you ever take the dose versue

10 distance with the probability f actor and apply it to certain

11 directions to come up with different graphs for different

12 directions?

(-d3
13 A SAI did something similar to that in their

14 report. You may recall the sort of spider-looking -- those

15 were isopleths of equal probability, so you are really on a

16 relative sense you are showing the probability in any

.

17 ' particular direction, of a given dose.

18 Q Now, da you think that that p?.rticular graph

19 could be useful as a planning basis for drawing emergency

20 planning zone?

21 A I have looked at that, and I don't think so. I
.

22 haven't figured out a way that I w3uld use it, let us put it
7s
Q]i

23 that way. Second ly, I really like this particulut method. I'

24 think this reallv savs it all in terms of a total r# sk for the' '
_

]
15 site.

i

i
- , . - . . , _ , . . . _ _ _ _ . -, _m._._ ._.. . _ . _ . . . - _ - . _ _ - _ .- . . - - .
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4 1 Q Okay. But what I am trying to figure out is, let

(]) 2 us pretend -- let us assume that we don't want to just draw a

3 ten-mile radius. Let us assume that we want to actually

(]) 4 account for the various, you know, factors that are in and

5 around the plant.

6 MR. CASEY: I am going to object. He has testi-

7 fied that in any particular direction the curves that you

8 would come up with using Mr. McClung's hypothetical are less,

9 are less probable. This is a bounding kind of graph, so I

10 don't see where we get, you know, by exploring the hypotheti-

11 cal suggested by Mr. McClung . I don't know where Mr. McClung

12 wants to go with it.

rs 13 JUDGE KELLEY: Could you restate your question,

14 for openers?

15 MR. MC CLUNG: Well, I don't know if I got to

16 the question part of it yet, but maybe I did.

'

~ ~ 17
-~

BY MR. MC CLUNG:

| 18 Q What I was trying to do was --
|

19 A Could I clarify --

20 Q Yeah, go ahead. Help me out.

21 A Let me -- I just said that I like this particular

22 way of looking at it. What I like about it is the locations

23 of the need, or the location waere all of a sudden at a

24 certain distance, there is no particular benefit to planning

(_s)
| 25 or removing or taking protective actions or whatever at that
!

!

_ _ _ . _ _ _ __ _ , _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ . _ . . _ . _ _ - ._ . _ _ _ _ - _ . - . . _ - _ _ _ _ - __ - _ . _.
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5 1 particular location. Now, there is going to be a need in

O 2 every direction, ena te wi11 vrodew17 de rousatz et eue seme

3 place or lower, and so I really don't expect to see a large

O 4 diererence er direction, end 1 went to get e gaeets on the

5 location of the point where this drops of f sharply.

6 In the San Onofre case, this lower line here, you

7 can't even see a need. It is low in many -- I mean, this is

8 really an accumulation of all directions.

9 0 Yeah, sure.

10 A But it is -- but you can see that there is no

11 need when all are added together, and I think that if any --

12 if you looked at each one of them individually, they would

77 13 look very much like this, and since it is so much lower than
(t)

14 the basis used in 0396 by the NRC, I mean they really look

15 quite heavily on that upper curve or curve one on that

16 Exhibit, and the comparison is striking, the difference
'

17 between San Onofre and what the'y used in their planning basis,

18 There is so much difference that I just don't

19 think the question exists as to whether it is ten miles or

20 close to ten or about ten or eleven or anything like that.

21 It is a very different characteristic for San Onofre.

22 Q So you are saying San Onofre should have a
J

23 smaller than ten-mile EPZ?

24 A I have basically said that the generic 10-mile
<-.)
G

25 EPZ is certainly adequate for San Oncfm .

. -- --- , - . - . - - - . - , - - . - - .-. - - - - - . -
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6 1 0 okay. I think I am starting to recall what I

2 wanted to ask you before, and that is with respect to if you{}
3 were to assume that you weren't going to draw a perfect

(~T 4 radius, and that you wanted to take into consideration the
V

5 f acts and circumstances of actually surrounding the plant

6 with respect to population and land characteristics, and the

7 other things that you have suggested, could the SAI type plots

8 which actually look at all -- you know, what would you call

9 the thing, multidirectionally at the probabilities,

10 multidirectionally, could those be at all helpful in plotting

11 the lines?

12 MR. CASE: I am going to object. That would be

13 nice, but the regulations require you to do it a certain way.

14 I think it is irrelevant that you could do it another way,

15 because the regulations call for this kind of generic

16 approach, using these regulations that are f ron NUREG 0 396.

17 If 'Mr. McClung wants to ask a hypothetical question that
'-

18 don't have anything to do with the rules and regulations, and

19 the Board wants to allow it, that is fine, but I think it

20 goes beyond the Board's ruling.

21 JUDGE KELLEY: There is only one disadvantage I

22 feel here is that I -- we don't have the SAI report report in

i 23 evidence, as I understand it, isn't that correct?

24 MR. MC CLUNG: That is correct.
OV 25 MR. CASEY: That is correct.

,

,. - , , _ _ _ . _ _ _ . . . . . _ . . . _ . _ _ . . . . , -
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7 1 JUDGE KELLEY: And I have never read it, and I

(]) 2 don't know what is in it, and your question about drawing

3 these curves in various directions, that is in the SAI

() 4 report? Is that right? I mean, I just don't know.

.

5 MR. MC CLUNG: We' ll ask the witness .

6 JUDGE KELLEY: Do you have knaes of different

7 distances, depending on whether you are going northeast or

8 southwest, and so forth?

9 WITNESS WOODARD: There are curves in the SAI

10 report. They are not complete. They provided curves for

11 maybe five of the 16 directions that we nonnally do these

12 calculations for, so that you could not use the SAI report,

13 f or example, to do anything --['',;
14 JUDGE KELLEY: All by itself .

15 WITNESS WOODARD: Yes.

16 JUDGE KELLEY: The curves in the roport, though,

17 f actor in real data? By real data, I mean real meteorology

18 and real land characteristics and real demography and things

19 of that nature?

20 WITNESS WOODARD: Well, in this particular type

21 of calculation, the only ingredient, rea lly , is meteorologica L

22 data. It is only a dose. A person doesn't have to be there --

23 I mean, these doses --

24 JUDGE KELLEY: All right, all right. It is wind

15 data.

- -- __- . _. _ _ - .. -. - .__. .-_ -_ - - - - - - - - - -. ,.



8 1 WIT';ESS WOODARD: Yes.

] 2 JUDGE KELLEY: Coupled with release data?

3 WITNESS'WOODARD: Yes.

) 4 JUDGE KELLEY: And the question is, would those

5 curves be helpful, is that right, Mr. McClung ?

6 MR. MC CLUNG: Yeah. Would they be at all

7 useful in your opinion in determining the boundary line as

8 required by the NRC rules and regulations?

9 JUDGE KELLEY: I am going to overrule the -

10 objection and allow the question. We have ruled that you

11 don't need the study like that in order to determine this,
,

12 but we haven't said to2 locr.1 of ficials, then don't you dare

13 look at one, and so if there is one, maybe it is helpful,

14 so let us see what the witness has to say.

15 WITNESS WOODARD: I think I said a few minutes

16 ago that I had thought about how to do something like that,

~

17 and I hadn't really come up with a meaningful way to do it.

18 For example, those are probability curves. If you look at

19 these curves of dose versus distance, versus t.obability,

20 they have listed maybe three probabilities for the five

21 directions that they did.

22 One has to ask himself what probability am I

J
23 interested in using to establish this criterion? I don't

24 want to nick a probability. I would rather look up here andps
\-

25 look at what exists for the generic sites in the United

. -. _ ~. _ -_ , _ __ -
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9 1 States, and icok at what the NRC has done, and then look what

('S 2 I have on a one for one basis with what the NRC used in their
(_/

3 rather extensive study, and I don't have to talk about

4 probabilities to see this breakpoint or to see that I am

5 well below the breakpoint for any particular reactor site.

6 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

7 o onay, let me ask you this, then. In determining - -

8 in the NUREG 0306, it states, does it not, to your knowledge,

9 that you are supposed to -- that emergency planning officials

10 should draw these emergency planning zenes at about ten miles

11 taking into consideration such factors as topography,

12 meteorology, access routes, demography, jurisdictional

13 boundaries and land characteristics, isn't that true?

14 A Yes, I believe those are all part of the so-called

15 planning basis that the NRC requires, but let me -- let me

16 tell you how I interpret the use of the word " meteorology,"

17 for example. Meteorology can mean wind and direction but it
~

18 can also include things like fog, low-lying areas that may

19 have a high incidence of fog, for example, or something like

20 that.

21 Topography, I don't think is used in a dilution

22 sense or a turbulence generator for the environmental

'# 23 dispersion part of this kind of calculation. I think that

24 topography is simply a matter of terrain obstacles, which one

O'' 25 has to plan to get over or around, and so in a sense of -- I

_ . - . -. . - . _ _ . - . . , - , - -. . .-.
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10 1 don't think they really meant that the site should do a dis-

2 persion model taking those characteristics into account. I{}
3 think they meant it more in terns of obstacles to planning, or

4 things that would make planning easier, or things in the{'}
5 environment to avoid in the planning process.

6 Q Okay. I think I -- I think we agree on that.

7 Now, did you not -- isn't your reinterpretation a dispersion

8 analysis, based on the use of the CRAC code and the SAI data?

9 A No. The contention here, as I understand the

10 contention, has -- requests that item number 6 include the

11 SAI report. That is not required by 0396, however, I -- since

12 my testimony deals with item 6, the SAI report, I have shown

13 how the SAI report can be used to justify the generic ten-

14 mile planning zone that the NRC requires.

15

16

~
~ ..

17

18

19

20

21

22
s

24

()
25

. .. . .. - .- - _-. - -
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7tp-l 1 Q I. understand that completely and I think that

r-)x 2 your conclusions do just that. They justify the generic tenq

3 mile planning zone. But what I'm asking is wasn't your

() 4 analysis of the results the type of analysis that you don't

S think is contemplated by 0396 with respect to studying the

6 topography, the meteorology, the evacuation routes, et cetera 7

7 JUDGE KELLEY: Maybe it would be helpful, I think

8 we are going around in circles a little bit, maybe among all

9 of us, to see if we can't get a little clearer the purpose

10 for which this witness was put forward and the: scope of his

11 testimony. Now if I understand it correctly the backdrop

12 is the Board's ruling on what is required here and we ruled

( v/
that you don't need any elaborate studies to come to the rightT 13

14 size EPZ. It so happens that there has been a study performe'd

15 in the State of California by the state, commissioned by the

16 state, which apparently qualifies ur.Jer the term " study" and

-

17 the Applicants have undertaken -- let me take one step back.

15 The contention in the case includes a reference

19 to the SAI study. But it includes the reference in there for

20 a very narrow purpose; which we stated when we let that

21 contention in; namely, that the Board didn't know but was

- 22 prepared to think that there may be some information in that
v

13 study somewhere tha'. aas some bearing on the size of this

24 EPZ and therefore we were not excluding any consideration ofg s.
(-)

25 the SAI report. That seemed to us to be arbitrary. But we

. _- - _ - , - - . . . . . .- _ - - _ . - - -
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1 certainly weren't suggesting that the correct selection of

(a_) 2 an EPZ had to be in some way undergirded by an elaborate

3 study. The Applicants have gone one step further, though, .

() 4 as I understand them, and they looked at the study and they

5 are offering this witness for the proposition that there is

6 nothing in that study inconsistent with the EPZ size they in-

7 fact chose for other reasons.

8 And that is basically how I see it. Is that a

9 fair statement of where you think we are?
.

10 MR. CASEY: Absolutely perfect.

11 MR. MC CLUNG: Well, let me --

12 JUDGE KELLEY: There's a very, very definite

(]) 13 limit, then, on how much interest we've got in the study

14 and how far we are going to go with it.

15 MR. MC CLUNG: I can respond to that directly.

16 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay.

17 MR. MC CLUNG: The written testimony goes beyond

. 18 the goals that have just been outlined by you and concurred

19 in by counsel in that -- and I can refer specifically to line

20 8, page 16, and there is discussion in and around that particu -

21 lar reference in which the question is posed "In your pro-

(' 22 fessional opinion, have the following local conditions been
\_)S

,

I

23 conservatively considered in establishing the SONGS Plume EPZ"

rT 24 and they note the various considerations that are contained
V

25 in the contention and the answer to that is yes.~-

. . .-- - . - _ . ___ --- - . _ _ . . . .
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1 JUDGE KELLEY: You said you were reading, I think,

f'(,) 2 and in his professional opinion -- what was that?

3 MR. MC CLUNG: Line 8, page 16 is the question.

(o,) 4 JUDGE KELLEY: I was looking at page 8, line 16.

5 MR. MC CLUNG: And I may have misspoke.

6 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. I'm with you. He says

7 -- and the question is "In your professional opinion, have

8 the following local conditions" et cetera, and he says yes.

9 Now that is a question and an answer that we've seen in the

10 prepared testimony of I think most of the witnesses offered

11 by the Applicant. They are offering their particular conten-

12 tions and that is the wrap-up line.

{(']) 13 What do you think that opens up, that last line?

; 14 MR. MC CLUNG: Well, it's not only that last line.
!
'

15 The discussion leading up to that last line, he talks about

16 having studied the demography and topography and how that

~

17 relates to the CRAC code. What his testimony is doing is he

18 is saying that by drawing a ten mile EPZ, the local jurisdic-

19 tions, the local conditions have been taken into account by,

!

20 0396 in doing the generic one. Since this curve goes under

21 the generic curve in 0396 therefore the logical conclusion

22 and that's the one referred to n- that I ara referring to on
k'N/!

| 23 page 16 -- is that these factors have been taken into consider-

24 ation. What I am saying is the --r^.,
V

25 JUDGE KELLEY: It is sort of a contradicticn in

i
. - . __ - - - .,. -_ -
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t terms to say that the local conditions, site-specific condi-

() 2 tions are taken into account in the Commission's "about ten

3 mile" rule. Is the witness really saying that? I hope we

() 4 are not muddying the water even worse than it was before.

5 I'm just trying to get a handle on, you know, where we are

6 and where we are going with this testimony.

7 MR. CASEY: Everybody can read the testimony. I

8 think it is very clear. The SAI report includes consideration s,

9 as the witness has testified, of topography, demography, and

10 et cetera. The witness goes further to give the Board a

11 feel for the conservativism of his opinion, to say that when

12 you actually, instead of applying the consideration of topo-

((]) 13 graphy, meteorology, demography and land characteristics as

14 the computer would lock'at those factors, you instead look

15 at the real factors, in other words, make some adjustments

16 for what the computer doesn't see. You even get more conserva -

.

17 tive.

18 So this witness has not only looked at how these

19 factors have been taken into account in the SAI study but

20 has given the Board a purview on why and thus derives the

21 curve but then also says that the curve would move left if

22 you considered some of these other factors the way they really
)

23 are as opposed to the way the computer understands them to be.

24 And so it is a correct statement that he is not only speaking
)

25 to the SAI report, but he is also speaking to the other four

- - -
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1 factors as an additional conservatism.

() 2 MR. MC CLUNG: And he is using a dispersion'

3 analysis to show that they've considered these factors or that

(,",N) 4 they don't need to look at the factors. Let me put it that

5 way.

6 MR. CASEY: And we should probably give it back to

7 the witness now because we're running into -- I mean questions

8 and answers again because we can't explain --

9 JUDGE KELLEY: So the witness is here to testify

10 about actual local conditions in addition to --

11 MR. CASEY: Yes, he is.

12 JUDGE KELLEY: All right. Go ahead, Mr. McClung.

13 BY MR. MC CLUNG:({)
14 Q So I want to try to go back to where I was before

15 we broke for a secoi.d there and you had discussed for me, I

16 believe, the various factors that are contained in NUREG 0396

17 and how you believed one should actually go about drawing the

18 boundary of the actual EPZ at about ten miles, taking into

19 consideration those factors. And is it your testimony that

20 it wouldn' t be within the spirit of NUREG 0396 to use a dis-

21 persion analysis to draw the boundary line of the emergency

22 planning zone?

23 A That's correct. The spirit of 0396, as I see it

24 and discussed it with many people, is that the boundarys

-

25 should be determined very much the way that has been demonstra-:ed

-. ._. . - _ _ - - - - .. . - - _ - . . .- .
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1 and discussed throughout this hearing. And that is by ts. king

,

2 into account things like population locations and topography,

3 terrain, roads, that sort of thing. And those are all

fs
(_) 4 planning bases that'are included in 0396. What I'm saying

5 here is there is nothing inconsistent in the SAI report

6 considering things like that.

7 o okay. Thank you. Did the SAI report doaa graph

3 like the Exhibit 119 in their report?

9 A They did one for the Rancho Seco site.

10 Q And was this for purpose of validating their

11 study as composed -- comparing their study with 0396 in the

12 various results?

c /'l 13 A I have no idea why they only did it for Rancho
'

,\J .

14 Seco. I think they presented that as an example of the use-

15 fulness of their report, maybe.

16 Q Have you or did you do an analysis based on the

17 risk and probability of off-site dose assessment for Unit I?

18 A Have I?

19 MR. CASEY: Object. I don't understand how that

20 is relevant to this case.

21 JUDGE KELLEY: How is it relevant, Mr. McClung?

g-) 22 MR. MC CLUNG: I think that the existence of a
'O

23 third nuclear power plant at a site should bear on the accurate

24 risk assessment and probability in terms of doing his graph
br

25 and maybe I'm wrong. Maybe I'm wrong.

. - _ , _ - -. -, - - _ . - - .. .
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'

1 MR. CASEY: This isn't a Unit 1 case. We're

() 2 talking about 2 and 3.

3 JUDGE KELLEY: Are you suggesting -- I'm not

() 4 suggesting that you're not suggesting correctly -- that '.nere

5 is an aggregate concern here?

6 MR. MC CLUNG: Maybe that's what I'm asking the

7 witness, is there an aggregate concern.

8 JUDGE KELLEY: Why don't we take a ten-minute brea}'..

9 I'll think about it.;

10 (A brief recess)

11 ///

12

(C ) 23

14

15

16

17

t 18

19|

20

21

22
([) ,

23 . .

24
(:)

-

25
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1 JUDGE KELLEY: We are back on the record. The
( }) T8 kl

2 pending question concerned whether information data from

3 Unit one ought not to be factored into projections for Unit

4 two accident doses. Is that a fair statement, Mr. McClung?

5 MR. MC CLUNG: For purposes of --

6 JUDGE KELLEY: I am generalizing very much, I

7 know.

8 MR. MC CLUNG: Yeah, kind of, but for purposes

9 of the risk assessment analysis that he did in the comparisor,

10 masking, whether or not he made another analysis -- well it

11 would be unit one, as background, and the I wanted to pursue

12 that a little bit.

13 JUDGE KELLEY: Maybe I misunderstood. You mean

14 at some point in time did he ever do something like this
.

15 for unit one, or did he in some fashion factor in risks

16 posed by Unit one in figuring out what the risks were for

17 Unit two? I thought that it was the latter.

18 - MR. MC CLUNG: That is it, but I was trying to

19 get there through a couple of questions, but that is where I

20 am --

21 JUDGE KELLEY: That is where you are headed?

12 MR. MC CLUNG: Yeah.

23 JUDGE KELLEY: Yeah. Well, Mr . Casey objected

24 and we are going to sustain that objection for this reason.p)-

! (_
and so25 The question -- we are talking about accident doses,

O

.

_____ _ ____ __._______.___._______ _____ _ ________.____ _ _.____.________ ______ ___ ._____.____ ______._._ __________ ______ _ _ ____________ _ _ __.__ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ . _ _ _ _ . _ _ _
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( ) k2 I the question necessarily assumes that you have simultaneous

2 accidents in Unit 1 and Unit 2. Now, I want to rest this on

(} Commission regulations, but I am not prepared to cite them,3

4 but I believe there is a Commission regulation, or possibly

5 it is a Staff position to the effect that you don't have to

6 concern yourselves with simultaneous accident releases unleso

7 the two are hooked up in such a way that they would both

8 go together.

9 And that is not true here, as I understand it,

10 and we are not prepared to assume accident releases absent

11 that, so don't see that -- we don't think this line of

12 questioning is permissible, if we understand it correctly.
I

13 MR. MC CLUNG: Can I ask one question without

(*
14 quarreling with the ruling? You made one statement that I

15 didn't quite understand --

16 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay.

17 MR. MC CLUNG: -- and maybe it is because I don' ti

..

| 18 know enough about the regulations or something like that.
1

l 19 Are you saying that the graphs and charts that we are con-
20 sidering, referring to Units 2 and 3, presume an accident
21 and a release at both units?

22 JUDGE KELLEY: Quite the opposite. I am assuming

23 that -- I don't know if Unit 3 data is before us in this
|

() 24 particular -- in the case of this witness. We are talking

25 about -- we are licensing 2 and 3, that is true,

(3t

( (/
!

( __

.

--- - c - - , - - n -- - - -- - y .-- n-- , . - - , - . , ~ , , . . -
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1 MR. MC CLUNG: The graph says 2 and 3 on it.
{'}k3

2 MR. CASEY: Two or three.

3 JUDGE KELLEY: Or.

O
4 MR. MC CLUNG: Oh,

5 JUDGE KELLEY: That is really -- that captures

6 the question right there. You are saying or, right?

7 MR. CASEY: That is what we are saying.

3 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay.

9 MR. HOEFLING: Mr. Chairman?

JUDGE KELLEY: Did that clarify it? Did that
10

is answer your question, Mr. McClung?

MR. MC CLUNG: It did. Thank you.
12

JUDGE KELLEY: Very well.
. 13

MR. MC CLUNG: Thank you.14

JUDGE KELLEY: Mr. Hoefling, yes?
15

16 MR. HOEFLING: I think the regulation the Board

has reference to is 10 CFR Section 111 --17

13 JUDGE KELLEY: Thank you.

19 MR. HOEFLING: -- B2.

20 JUDGE KELLEY: 10 111 B2? 10 111?

21 MR. HOEFLING: 10 CFR one hundred eleven. It is

12 on page 646 of the code. Section 100.11.

JUDGE KELLEY: Oh, I thought you meant 111, and
23

24 there is no such part. Right. This is part 100.() --

25 MR. HOEFLING: Part 100.11 B2, and it is on page

O

-- -- - - -
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(]') k4 1 646 of the --

2 JUDGE KELLEY: Interconnected reactors?

3 MR. HOEFLING: Yes.
{

4 JUDGE KELLEY: Thank you very much.

5 CROSS EXAMINATION (Resumed)

6 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

7 0 Okay, I would like you to turn to page 14, please ,

and line number seven, you say properly evaluated referring3

9 to the SAI report calculations, they support an establishment

of the plume exposure pathway, emergency pathway emergency10

planning zone around SONGS which is equal to or less than a3y

ten mile -- a radius of 10 miles. What do you mean by
12

13 properly evaluated?
.

i
( (N / 14 A I basically meant that they had been looked at

in the context of 0396, and that basically is my method for
15

properly evaluating them -- was to make the plot that is in16

17 my exhibit.

13 Q You refer briefly later.on on page 14-to how you
;

I have made your results known to local officials in Orange19

20 and San Diego Counties. When did you do your study?

23 A Well, as I atated in my testimony here, I started

22 in May of 1980. And my study of that particular SAI docu-

ment is continued on.23

(,) 24 Q Not referring just specifically to the study,p
'

25 you know, generalized study of the SAI document, but I am

("T(
x/|

-, - -- - . . _ . , . - . , - _ . . _ _ , - _ , _ _ - - - -- -- . . . .,
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i turning to your findings and you testimony. When was that
{ ) k5

2 prepared?

3 A My testimony?^
\j

4 0 Well not -- the data or the conclusions that
i

5 underline the -- underlie the testimony.

6 A Well, in August 25th we had, as I stated here

7 also, we had provided comments on the SAI study. That would

; a be, say, the first end point for a report of our findings,

9 let's say.

MR. CASEY: Just for clarity, that is August 25th ,

10

1980.yy

BY MR. MC CLUNG:12

13 0 Now, at that time had you done any studies of

() the demography surrounding the plant?34

A Yes, at that time I had all the information
15

available to me in the SAI report, which includes demography,
16

17 meteorology, terrain.
'

13 Q Your testimony on page 15, beginning at line six. -

discusses independent examination of demography and typography,19

20 as well as meteorological data. Had you done that at the

21 time when you did your comments?

12 A Yes, as part of my review of the SAI report, I

did not rely strictly on the results of CRAC, the CRAC23

24 calculation reported in SAI. I looked at, in an independent

| ()
sense -- I looked at it rather than the computer looking at25

t

L - -- _ _ - . _ _ . _ _ __ _ _ . , . _ _ _ _ _



__,

9119
.

(]) k6 1 it, and the things that I looked at were the data that went

2 into CRAC, to see if what came out of CRAC made sense.

<s 3 In another way of looking at it, for example, I have

(_)
4 made a statement in my testimony here, I believe, on page 15,

5 that the CRAC analysis for the site was basically conserva-

6 tive, and part of my reason for saying that was my review of

7 the demographic characteristics, not the number of people,

a but the locations with respect to the prevailing wind direc-

9 tions, and meteorological patterns.

10 Those are the kinds of things that I did when I

ti say I did independent review.

12 Q Okay. What I am trying to figure out is when you

13 did that independent review.

(<'3 I basically did it as part of my review that14 A

15 ended before August 25th of 1980.

16 Q And did that involve looking at resources beyond

17 the'SAI report for demography and typography?

13 A No. That informE~ tion is in there in excrutiating

19 detail. There is an appendix to that report that contains

i
' 20 volumes of meteorological data and --

21 Q So when you say on line nine, page 15, that you

12 have also independently examined the demography and typograp ay

23 around SONGS, you are referring to a review of the SAI data?

24 A Well, I am also -- I have maps that are not in( ,)

25 that report. I am very familiar with the area. I grew up

!
('\
U

!

-
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i in the area. So I -- you know, I know where the people are,/~}k7
2 and I know what the typograph is in the area, and to that

3 extent I am able to make an independent assessment, but cer-

O
4 tainly not in the detail that the CRAC code itself does. I

5 merely have used my knowledge of the area to make sort of an

6 assessment or an opinion as to whether I believe the CRAC

7 results.

8 0 Well, you -- correct me -- I am misunderstanding

your testimony then, because -- did -- are you testifying9

that the data -- the various typographical and demographicto

data is -- or the SAI data is more detailed and in depthgj

12 than your own?

MR. CASEY: I am going to object, I guess. The
- 13

((f~~% Witness has testified that that data in the SAI report came,) 34

from San Onofre. He has had independent analysis of thatgg

data as well as its use in the SAI report. It couldn't be
| 16
| clearer, it seems, and we keep asking questions about it.
| j7

33 - JUDGE KELL 5Y: It seems pretty clear to me'.
~

What is it you want to nail down that we haven't established?
19

20 I mean, he has looked at the SAI report, and whatever is in

there plus his own information?
21

MR. MC CLUNG: Yes, and I am trying to -- and
12

then he said -- and he then made the statement, I believe,
| 23

and correct me if I am wrong on this, that the data, at least
f'l 24a

with respect to demographics and typography and perhaps land25

|

|

- ,_ . - - . . _ , . . _ . . _ _ = _ _ - -
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characteristics that is contained in the SAI report, was ak8 1

more rigorous study of that particular -- those particular
2

characteristics as used in the CRAC SAI -- as compared with
3p

the study that you did.--4

JUDGE KELLEY: Well --
5

MR. MC CLUNG: -- which was --
6

JUDGE KELLEY: I don't think he quite said that,
7

but why don't we let him comment on it.
8

MR. MC CLUNG: Yeah.
9

JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. Can you comment?
10

WITNESS WOODARD: The study that I'did was an
gy

evaluation of the SAI report. That is number one. As part
12,

f my evaluation of that report I took a look.at the results
13-

that are coming from the CRAC program as they used it in
14

that report, and that the reasonableness of the calculation
15

is errongly dependent on the data that is put into it.. And
16

I will give you an example.
17

Many times these sort of analjses, in,my experi-
18

a mistake has been made in terms of how wind direction
19

ence,

is used. It is reported by the meteorologist as being wind
20

fr m and in these analyses it has turned 180 degrees and used
21

as wind towards. So, I wanted to make sure that that kind
22

f an error did not exist in the SAI report. So I have
23

(T independently looked at the results and the use of these
24V

data, the reasonablen%: M the data as used in the SAI '-

25

O
k.

.. - .. .. . _ . ._ .
. . . . .
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|

C k9 1 report.

2 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

3 Q What is the basis, then, of your statement on
(-))%

4 page 15 beginning at line 23 that if actual meteorological

5 data, terrain conditions and population distribution infor-

6 mation around SONGS had been more rigorously accounted for

7 in the SAI report, lower doses and fewer consequences would

8 be expected?

9 A One of our criticisms that is listed in the

10 August 25th, 1980 report was that the SAI study was too

11 conservative, or resulted in higher doses than one would

12 really expect, or realistically expect, and the primary con-

13 tribution to that conservatism, in my opinion, was the assump -

[!
\- 14 tion that the offshore winds, or the winds that blow out over

15 the ocean where no real receptors or populations exist, are

16 really the condi; ions that often lead to the highest doses.

17 And in the CRAC code, this is not handled properly. What-
~ ~ ~

ever direction is used is spread amongst all' populations.18

19 I mean, whatever direction shows up in the meteorological

|
20 sample is spread amongst all populations, so those higher

I

21 doses would be really attributed to populations that would

12 not be exposed to those higher doses in a realistic analysis

! 23 So that is what I meant by that statement.

24 Q What particular terrain conditions and popula-()
tion distribution should have been more rigorously accounted25

,}

|

|

*

. --. . .. . .. _. _. . _ -- -- -. ..
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.

(])kl0 1 for?

2 A Well, the terrain conditions I mentioned earlier

,r' 3 onshore cause more turbulance than is actually calculated
(-)

4 by the CRAC algorithm on applied to terrain -- applied to

5 the dispersion analysis. And as far as the population

6 distributions, again, they are distributed by direction, and

7 the direction that has the highest dose potential is out

8 over the ocean, and it is being distributed onshore where

9 people live in an unrealistic way.

10 Q And those then, are not going to necessarily the

11 input into the CRAC model, but more the algorithm, if you

12 were, of the model and how it actually projects the doses?

. 13 A That is right. The CRAC algorithm is conserva-

14 tive in this particular case.

15 Q So then the -- you are not quarreling then with

16 the data at -- the actual topography and demography and

17 meteorology that is put into the study in the SAI repert.

|
18 ' You are just making a comment about the algorithm of the

l

19 CRAC study?

20 A That is correct. In this statement here I am

21 referring to the CRAC methodology.

12 Q And that same problem would exist with respect

23 to the methodology in 0396?

() 24 A Yes, except that it it smeared out, if I may use

25 that terminology, over six different sites and many different

O

- . . . _. .- _ . - -. . . ..
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1

kll 1 Population distributions, and so to the extent that it would
2 have a strong bearing, I don't really believe that it is as

3 strong as shows up in a site specific analysis done with
4 CRAC.

5

|

7

8

9

'
10

11

12

13

(O
14

15

16

17
. . --

18

19

20

21

22
,

!
'

23

24

| 25

O.

|
|
i
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T9-1g 1 MR. MC CLUNG: I think that is enough.

() 2 JUDGE KELLEY: Fine. Thank you. Staff?

3 MR. HOEFLING: No questions, Mr. Chairman.

() 4 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay.

5 JUDGE JOHNSON: Excuse me. My apologies, Mr.

6 Woodard, but could we come back to the topic you were just

7 discussing? I will have to confess I am a little confused

8 and had marked it in your testimony to ask whether on page 16,

9 when you are discussing the higher doses occurring over the

10 ocean instead ,of over populated areas, whether that is
11 totally attributable to the wind directions that we use in

12 SAI report, and I take it from your answer to Mr. McClung

[]) 13 just now that this is only a very small part of the answer,

14 is that correct?

15 WITNESS WOODARD: I am not sure what you mean by

16 a small part of the answer, out let me start by -- I don't

17 have any visual aids. I don't have a blackboard, but if one

18 looks at a typical wind rose, if you are f amiliar with the 16

19 different -- oh, good. Do I have to carry this? Let me draw

20 first, and then talk. I am going to talk anyway.

21 MR. CASEY: It won't pick it up.

22 WITNESS WOODARD: It won't?

23 Okay, if one were to draw a wind rose, and I

S 24 haven't put all 16 petals on the rose, spokes, one would find
(V

25 that here I have drawn this, north is up, and the ocean is

!

_ _ _ _
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2 1 generally to the left. One would find a strong tendency for

() 2 the winds at night to go out over the ocean. These are

3 drainage winds. They have a very -- they are very stable

{J 4 winds, so that the plume is very narrow and concentrated.

5 Now, what happens in CRAC is that the dose that

6 is calculated in that direction when that -- when the

7 meteorological sampling comes up with a nighttime start,

8 starting hour for the scenario, is that in the CRAC analogy,

9 this does smear or moved into each of the other 16 or 15

10 directions, and in my opinion it makes the dose look higher

11 than it really would be, given that there are no people

12 located in the ocean, at least not residing there.

13 JUDGE JOHMSON: And possibly particularly not at
[(])

14 night when that is the prevailing wind direction.

15 WITNESS WOODARD: Yes. And also it is a very

16 narrow plume, 30 if they were moving at all, they would
_ _ .

17 probably move out of the plume within a minute or two.

18 JUDGE JOHNSON: I think that was ny only question.
,

19 Thank you, sir.

20 JUDGE KELLEY: Let ne ask you a question first,

21 Mr . McC lung . Do you anticipate at some point introducing the

22 SAI report in evidence?

(-I

| s

23 MR. MC CLUNG: Anticipate introducing portions

24 of it that are relevant.7,

()
15 JUDGE KELLEY: Portions.

___ . _ _ _ . _ _ _ . , _ _ . __
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3 1 MR. MC CLUNG: But it is -- this is it, part of

() 2 it, only part of it, so --

3 JUDGE KELLEY: Portions, please, okay. But some --

() 4 you know, what we have been talking about, it seems to me at

5 some point ought to get in the record.

6 MR. MC CLUNG: Part of it is in the exhibit

7 packet, which Mrs . Gallagher will distribute later on this

8 afternoon, I believe.

9 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay, fine. Subject to any

10 objection anybody may have, I am just asking for information

11 about a document we have been talking about a great length and

12 don't have before us yet. Okay.

} 13 You refer at sone point to the SAI report. I

14 think your phrase is " properly interpreted," and that raised

15 in my mind a recollection that -- let me ask it this way.

16 Does that report contain a recommended EPZ,

17 specific lines on the map and mile distances, and the like,

18 for SONGS?

19 WITNESS WOODARD: There are site maps there, but

20 I do not believe that any of them have recommended boundaries

21 on them. The SAI function in this analysis was not to do --
,

1

| 22 not to recommend boundaries, and the report itse lf , in itsgS
v

| 23 pure f orm .as originally submitted does not.

g- 24 JUDGE KELLEY: I asked because we had some
'V

25 earlier proposed contentions which seemed to lead us, in the

t - . - . - - - - - - - - . _- - . - . . . . . - - _ .
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4 opinion of the proponent, toward an EPZ that went down tog

{ 7 Riverside and out somewhere else, and a good long way past

3 10 miles, and we rejected the contentica on the theory that

(] 4 that was inconsistent with the rules, but while this is
v

5 apparently -- some distance is derived in some fashion from

6 the report, but as far as you know, there is no specific

7 line on the map, kind of EPZ, drawn in that report?

g WITNESS WOODARD: To my recollection, and I have

looked at it as recently as today, there are no figures with9

10 any b undaries on them.

gg JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. When I read " properly

32 interpret," I thought you might be implying that such a

13 recommendation was wrong, and if you really understood the{
data, you would come out along the lines shown in the34

15
Applicants' recommendation.

WITNESS WOODARD: I could --16
-

JUDGE KELLEY: Th'at is really not a question. It77

gg is an explanatory comment.

WIT!IESS WOODARD: Well, I could' clarify it agg

little bit.20

JUDGE KELLEY: Okay.21

WITNESS WOODARD: The comments in our A'; gust 2522
'''

23 rep rt, some of them dealt with interpretations of the SAI

24 rep rt, which we disagreed with, and it is just -- I am just

~

saying in this testimony here that even though we had problems25

. - - . _ , . _ _ . - . . _ _ _ .. . .
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1Scm with he conservatisms involved in the recort, they still --

( 2 the report still supports the 10-mile boundary.

3 JUDGE KELLEY: I understand that.

f~) 4
's/ WITNESS WOODARD: tokay.

5 JUDGE KELLEY: Pace 10 of your testinony, where

6 you refer to having a reasonable orobability of reducina

7 significant injuries (eauated to 200 REM whole body dose),

8 now, you did comment on that a little bit earlier. But --

9
and I understand you're not a health physicist. But bearing

10 that in mind, the 200 REM figure, is that -- that imolies a

11 level of exoosure that will oroduce significant injury, right?

I MITHESS MOODARD: Yes, and I -- I't not the one

13[( ') to be able to define "significant" for you, but there is some

14 medical terminology where you vould notice that you had been

15 injured. And there's some grav area there between what Dr.

16 Linnemann was talking about and --
,.

17 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. Me have his testinonv,

I8 which is heloful, on this general subject. But where does

19 the 200 come from? Is that an NRC number?

20 TEE MITNEss: It -- it's a -- yes, it's a -- it's

21 an NRC number. It came out of the WASH-1400 reactor safety

22'

({} study, as a -- a threshold where some damage, sone discernible

23
| or significant damage would be done to human beings exnosed

! ('% 24 to that anount.
V

25 JUDGE KELLEY: Gkay.
|

I

._ - - -_, _ _. . _. _ _ _ _ _ - - _ _ _ - . - _ - , _ -_ _ _ _ _ _ _
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I6c WITNESS WOODARD: By comparisong, there's a

r'() 2 similar threshold for fatalities th,t start -- it's all in

3 a probability distribution, as -- as one would exnect in a

4 PRA. But the -- it's the beginning of the so-called injury.

5 There's a beginning of fatality. Some oeople might receive

6 fatal dose at 320 REM.

7 JUDGE KELLEY: Oh. That surprises me a little.

8 320.can be fatal?

9 WITNESS NOODARD: In -- in some pooulation group,

10 and I would have to defer to Dr. Linnemann, but --

11 JUDGE KELLEY: All right.

12 WITNESS WOODAP.D: I'm just giving vou exannles

h 13 of the way that these things are used in the CRAC analysis.

14 These are all numbers th't are used to establish healtha

15 effects in CRAC.

16 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. On nage 12, you're talk-

17 ing about two curves on your chart. And at line 7 you sav,

18 "In discussions with the NRC it was aoparent that in assumo-

19 tion of four hours was used, connared with the accarent

20 assumption of 24 hours used in the SAI report."

21 Now, this is four hours of exnosure?

22 WITNESS WOODARD: To the deoosited material on

23 the ground,

f; 24 JUDGE KELLEY: Okav.
G

25 WITNESS WOODWARD: The clume has already passed.

. - _- . _ _ . _ . _ _ . , - _ . - _ , . - _ - - . . ., - ,, . - - .-.
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1 JUDGE KELLEY: All right. The plume has nassed.

O 2 And whet are the hounde of the four hours 2 Is the outer

3 bound evacuation?

(vD 4 WITNESS WOODNARD: I'm not sure I understand

5 what you're asking me.

6 JUDGE KELLEY: Let me see if I can't sharpen it.

7 An accident occurs, a release occurs, of some significant

8 size. There's a plume that soes over a populated area. And

9 it denosits radioactive material on houses and on lawns and

10 And it's a contaminated area releasing levels ofso on.

11 . radiation indicating that prudence of evacuation.

12 And I'm trying to get at what the four hours means .

13({} Does it mean that after the nlume passes -- and Dr. Linnemann

14 told us that you go in the house and shut the door and turn

15 off the air conditioning, and you'd be fine for three or four

16 hours, something to that effect. But then if there were
,

~

17 radioactive material around, it'd begin to get in the house .

18 So if it were thought prudent to e vacuate, does

19 that four hours refer to the time from when you begin to

20 get exposed to the time you get out, or what?

21

22Ov
23

O-

1

_, ~ ~, >-g--- - - -,, , m - - - w , , , - - --r r
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1

3 WITNESS NOODARD: Yes. The four hours is -- okay.

Eighty percent of the does, if you were standing out -- well,

3 with some minimal amount of shielding, 80 nercent of the

/~'i 4\/ dose is due to the deposited material on the ground. And it

5 changes as a function of distance. But just let me generally

6 say that the major potential dose is due to the deposited

7 material on the ground, not --

8 JUDGE KELLEY: Not the plume;

9 WITNESS MOODARD: Not the plU ne. And that

10 includes the inhalation -- really, what Dr. Linnemann was

11 referring to was the inhalation dose, because that's what

12 is in the room with vou. And it takes a while for the air

13(( ) to get in, and --

I JUDGE KELLEY: Yes.

15 WITNESS NOODARD: -- and that sort of thing.

16 So the four hour versus 24 hour assumption that I'm refer-
..

17 ring to here is just the time that a nerson is in his house

18 with some amount of shielding, without evacuating, or no

19 protective acticn. At the end of four hours a person is

20 assumed to be evacuated and no longer in the plume, or any

21 area where tne plume was.

22(-} JUDGE KELLEY: Or in the presence of deposited
\s

23 radioactive material?

24 MITNESS NOODARD: That's right.
)

25 JUDGE KELLEY: And after four hours, is it that
"

l

l
.- _ - _ ,_ _. , .. .. _ . - _ , , - _



I9 after four hours you're at the 200 level, or what?

O 2 w1TnESS wCODAaD: we11 --

3 JUDGE KELLEY: Suppose I stay there eight hours.

(. 4
WITNESS NOODNARD: Nell, this is a - .this is a

5 probabil.ity versus distance versus dose. And so when you --

6
if you're thinking about that curve and making the statement

7
that you just made, or the question you just asked, you have

8 to remember that we' re releasing - we ' re trying this release

9 91 tires. So we're going thronga the meteorological data

10 base i sam 91ing 91 times.

11 JUDGE KELLEY: I'm not sure I'm with vou now; 91?

12 WITNESS HOODARD: Yes, in order to get the proba-

13(Q bility or the vertical axis on the curve, ynt' -- you're doing

14 a Monte Carlo analysis or a sampling analysis.

I3 JUDGE KELLEY: .It's okav. I don't have the

16 faintest idea what a Monte Carlo analysis is, but --
- . . -

17 NITNESS MOODARD: It's --

18 JUDGE KELLEY: Go ahead.

19 NITNESS NOODAoD: It's gambling.

O JUDGE KELLEY: I thought che understands.--

| 21 WITNESS WOODARD: Right. You're taking a

22 ctatisti. cal san 9 e of t ' available meteorological data.1

23
,

So in essence you're -- a're assuming that an accident
|

M starts, each of 9IL separate times. And you watch whatbq
25 ~

happens to the released material. And what -- what you're

!
i
1

|. -- . . ~ . _ . _ . _ _ _ _ . . . _ _ - . - . . . _ - , _ _ _ . , _ _ .- -. ,
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I10 seeing -- okay, that defines the vertical axis. Now, as

far as the dose versus distance, each of those scenarios

3
has a different dose at the distances that you're looking

O 4
.tt.

JUDGE KELLEY: Sure.

0 NITNESS NOODARD: So sometimes you will have a

7 dose of 200 REM or greater at five miles, sometimes it'11

8 be 200 REN or greater at 10 miles, but not very often,

9 because we start to drop rather drastically --

10 JUDGE KELLEY: That's where it attenuates?

11 WITNESS MOODARD: Right. That's right.

I JUDGE KELLEY: But un 'er the postulated accidents

(O 13 for this reector, end I wou:s eesume eny simi1er resceor,

14 you do take into account and ..ansider credible, for planning

15 purps os, an accident that can deliver a dose of un to 200

I6 at 10 miles, and somewhat over that perhaps closer in?
,

j 17 NITNESS MOODARD: Yes. In -- in the probability,

II probabilistic way of looking at it. Sometimes at one mile

19 you would get one REM and sometines you will get 1,000 REti.

O JUDGE KELLEi: 1,000?

21 NITNESS NOODARD: Yes, that's certainly possible.

22 But where I've drawn tre line is at the 200 RE'1 level.

23 JUDGE KELLEY: i understand.

24 WITNESS WOODARD: So given the spectrum of

25 events at each distance, if I were to slice this analysis into

, . . - . - _ _ - - . - . - _- - - _ ___ _ _ . _ _ - . .. _- _. - _ - . . - . . .
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I11 10 different distances, and I give you all 91 answers,

2 you'll have a distribution --

JUDGE KELLEY: Yes.

4 WITNESS WOODARD: -- of answers at each distance.

5 Fow, what I've done is to draw the 200 REM line there because

6 chat's the injury line.

7 JUDGE KE'sLEY: Okay. How do y( . get a dose of

I 1,000 RE.'is?

9 MITNESS WOODARD: The closer you are to the plant,

d the higher the dose will be. And --

11 JUDGE KELLEY: Would this be bv deposition of

12 the particulate matters?

(O '3 uIT'iEss Wooo^-o= ves, it -- te cou1d de, or it

14 ccald be by exposure to the clume itself. And this is why

15 it's imnortant tio -- to plan for evacuations and strategies

16 for protective --
. . . -.

17 JUDGE KELLEY: A 1,000 REM dose, does that involve

18 what has long been thought of cs a Class 9 accident?

19 NITNESS NOODARD: Well, any -- any of these

20 doses --

21 JUDGE KELLEY: I mean a dose of that size.

22 WITNESS WOODARD: Any accident that gives a whole

23 body dose of 200 REM or more an'mlace beyond the site boun-
,

24 darv.. is clearlv_ -- has to be a Class 9 accident.g
25'

JUDGE KELLEY: Thank you. That's all.

-- . . _ , . -- - _ . - _ _ _ . - - _ _ , - . . _ _ - _ - . _ _ . . . - . _ _ . .-. ..
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12 1 WITNESS WOODARD: It's -- it would be very

O 2 == ix* Y t receive 200 anx aose from a so-callea design

3 basis accident.

O 4 acoas xstter: oxev-

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

'

13(
14

15

16

-
.

17 M

18

19
<

20

21

220
n

24

O
2s
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(])l0t 1 JUDGE KELLEY: Redirect?

2 MR. HASSELL: Mr. Chairman, if I may, I just

3 thought I would provide you the citation for that 200 rem

4 whole body dose. It is NUREG 0396 pages I-37.

5 JUDGE KELLEY: Thank you very much, Mr. Hassell.

6 Do you want to consider it or --

7 MR. CASEY: We have no redirect of this witness.

8 JUDGE KELLEY: Fine.

9 MR. CASEY: Thank you, Mr. Woodard.

10 (The witness was excused.)

11 MR. CASEY: Applicants would like to call their

12 next witness, Mr. David Pilmer.

13 Whereupon,

(D'o 14 DAVID F. PILMER

15 was called as a witness herein and, after being first duly

16 sworn by the Chairman, was examined and testified as follows:

| 17 DIRECT EXAMINATION
l

18 BY MR. CASEY:

19 Q Mr. Pilmer, could you please state your full

20 name for the record?

21 A David F. Filmer.

22 Q And what is your business address?

23 A I'm employed at the general office of the

() 24 Edison Company, 2244 Walnut Grove Avenue, Rosemead, Cali-

25 fornia.

n--

.
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(]) 2 1 Q And have you previously prepared your direct

2 testimony for this proceeding in a document consisting of

3 43 pages entitled " Applicants Direct Testimony and Exhibit
J

4 of Mr. David F. Pilmer"?

5 A Yes, I have.

6 Q Have you brought that testimony with you today?

7 A Yes.

8 Q Have you reviewed that testimony since it was

9 served on the parties in this proceeding?

10 A Yes.

11 Q Do you have any revisions or additions to make

12 to that testimony?

13 A Yes, I have a few corrections.

(O'/ 14 Q Why don't we go through them slowly.

15 A All right, fine. The first change --

16 Q One minute please. I notice that the Chairman

17 is not here and he might want to make the corrections in

18 -his copy.

19 Proceed.

20 A The first change I would like to make, at various

21 places in my prepared testimony I refer to the emergency

22 plan for San Onofre Units 2 & 3 and identified as Exhibit

23 HBR-1. That is now -- no longer has that designation and

() 24 it is Applicants' Exhibit No. 51. I won't go through and

25 identify every placeShere that occurs, but it occurs at

O

. . . . . .. . . - _ _ . - - - . . . . . - _



9139

(]) 3 1 several points.

2 Secondly, in one place I refer to Applicants'

3 Exhibit GR-1, that is now -- the designation is Applicants'

4 Exhibit No. 121. And the other clarifications I have, I'll

5 proceed in the order of the pages. The first one begins

6 at page number 24, beginring at line 8, the sentence as

7 given in the prepared testimony reads "From this vantage

8 point" and continues, and I would like to change that to

9 read "From the vantage point of the emergency support

10 center," so that the sentence now reads in its entirety,

11 beginning at line 8 at that point "From the vantage point

12 of the emergency support center, all on-site and off-site

13 energency response activities are monitored and action is,

( )
14 initiated as required."

15 On the following page, page 25, at line 10, a

16 sentence there begins "A diagram of the EOF is submitted".

17 I would like to amend that to read "A description of the
_

f
' 18 EOF is submitted".

19 Then proceeding to page 27, the sentence that
|

| 20 ends on line 19, I would like to continue that sentence,

21 changing the period to a comma and inserting the words "the

12 current drafts of which are set forth in Exhibit DFP-2."

23 And then proceeding to page 31, at line 12 I

() 24 would like to insert a new sentence which reads as follows:

25 "The current draft of Item 2 is set forth in Exhibit DFP-3,,

(2)
'

;

!

_ _. , . _ _ _ _ _ _ . _ _ _ _ _ _ . _ _ _ . ___ _ _ _ _ __ .- . _ . . . , _ _ _ _ . _ _ ._ . _ , ._ _ .___ _._ _
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() 4 1 and the current drafts of Item 3 are given in Exhibit DFP-2."

2 Q Just to clarify for the record, is that insert

3 part of the answer to the question that begins on line 2 of

4 page 31?

5 A Yes, that's correct. And the sentence where I

6 refer to Items 2 and Items 3 are referring to the numbered

7 items in the answer to that question.

8 Q Thank you, Mr. Pilmer.

9 MR. MC CLUNG: Could the witness repeat that

10 sentence that he added?

11 WITNESS PILMER: Suv.ely. You see the question

12 beginning at line 2 and the answer. At the end of the

13 answer, which consists of a numbered Item 3, I'd like to
,

((3
'\- 14 insert a new sentence that reads "The current draft of Item

15 2 is set forth in Exhibit DFP-3 and the current drafts cf

16 Item 3 Are given in Exhibit DFP-2."

17 And then the final one is on page 32, line 1.

18 There is a sentence there that reads "This report is

19 described in the direct testimony of Gary Re." I'd like to

20 delete that entire sentence.

21 MR. CASEY: Just for clarity of the record, that

12 next sentence has Exhibit GR-1 in it and that is what Mr.

23 Pilmer was referring to as the reference that has to be

() 24 changed to Applicants' Exhibit No. 121.

25 JUDGE KELLEY: Was Mr. Pilmer then the sponsor?

O

-- _ - -- . . . --
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() 5 1 MR. CASEY: This was the stipulation in Mr. --

2 JUDGE KELLEY: This was stipulated.

3 MR. CASEY: And he stands cross.

4 JUDGE KELLEY: That's what I wanted to know.

5 Right.

6 BY MR. CASEY:

7 Q As corrected, Mr. Pilmer, if you were asked the

8 questions in that testimony would you respond with the answers

9 set forth in that testimony?

10 A Yes, I would.

11 MR. CASEY: Your Honor, I would move admission of

12 the testimony entitled Applicants Direct Testimony and

13 Exhibit, Mr. David F. Pilmer, in this proceeding at this, ,

(O'

14 time.

15 JUDGE KELLEY: So ordered.

16 BY MR. CASEY:

17 Q Have you previously prepared an exhibit to
_

18 accompany your testimony identified as Applicants' Exhibit
,

I
; 19 No. 122 and referred to in your testimony as Exhibit DFP-l?

20 A Yes, I have.

21 Q Have you brought that exhibit with you today?

12 A Yes.

23 Q Do you bana any additions you would like to make
! ('\
() 24 to-this exhibit?

25 A I have a substantial addition to add to that

O
|

__ - - - . - . . - . -._.- - .____ - . - - . . _ - - _ _ - . _ . _ . -- -
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() 6 1 exhibit which in its form as you see it consisted of a dia-

2 gram. What I refer to as Exhibit DFP-1 now has been amended

{} to be the description of the emergency operations facility3

4 consisting of nine pages. I would like to make a substitu-
i
!

5 tion.

6 MR. CASEY: Yes. This is what we'd like to do*

7 at this time is we'd like to move, given the substantial

8 change in this exhibit, to strike or let's say substitute

9 Exhibit 122, which has been identified in this proceeding

to already, which is just a diagram of the EOF, and substitute

11 in its place an exhibit we would like to now identify as

12 Exhibit 122(a).

13 JUDGE KELLEY: That's a new exhibit?

( 0)' ' 14 MR. CASEY: Yes, that's the new exhibit and it

15 is part of the package which the Board and the parties have

.
16 in front of it and has been provided to the Reporter.

17 JUDGE KELLEY: Let me just be clear. This
.

( 18 package here, remind me whether it itself has a numerical

19 designation at this point.

20 MR. CASEY: Not yet. It has three separate

21 numerical designations. The first, DFP-1, becomes Applicants

22 Exhibit No. 122(a).

23 JUDGE KELLEY: That's the EOF?

) 24 MR. CASEY: 7es, sir.

25 JUDGE KELLEY: And then the other two are going
,

1

O

,

.

.-, . . - - - _ _ _ _ . . _ , _ - . - - - _ _ _ , . - - _ _ - - . - - _ . - . . _. _ -_- -
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7 1 to become what?(}
2 MR. CASEY: Applicants' Exhibit Nos. 142 and

3 143.
O

4 JUDGE KELLEY: Hearing no objection, so ordered.

5 (The document was marked for

6 identification as Applicants'

7 Exhibit No. 122(a).)

8 BY MR. CASEY:

9 Q Was Exhibit No. 122(a) prepared under your

10 direct supervision and control, Mr. PiLmer?

11 A Yes, it was.

12 MR. CASEY: With that foundation, I would move

. 13 admission of Applicants' Exhibit No. 122(a) in lieu of --

(n(~/ 14 JUDGE KELLEY: So ordered.

15 (The document marked for

16 identification as Applicants'

17 Exhibit No. 122 (a) was

18 received in evidence.)

19 MR. CASEY: That would be in lieu of Exhibit

20 No. 122.

21 BY MR.'CASEY:

22 Q Mr. Pilmer, since the service of your testimony

23 in this proceeding have you prepared any additional exhibits

() 24 to accompany your testimony, each of which is.now referred
|
l 25 to in your corrected testimony as Exhibits DFP-2 and DFP-3,

O\> ;

;

|

l

._ .. - - ... .. . - - - - - . - . .-_ .- i
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8 1 respectively, DFP-2 being entitled -- and I quote - "Off-{}
2 Site Dose Assessment Center (ODAC)", and Exhibit DFP-3

1 being entitled -- and I quote - " Emergency Response Plans

O
4 for the Ingestion Pathway Zone"?

5 A Yes.

6 MR. CASEY: We would like to mark for identifica-

7 tion at this time, Mr. Chairman, DFP-2 as Applicants';

8 Exhibit No. 142 and Exhibit DFP-3 as Applicants' Exhibit

9 No. 143.

10 JUDGE KELLEY: So ordered.

11 (The documents were marked for

12 identification as Applicants'

13 Exhibits Nos. 142 and 143.)

14 BY MR. CASEY:

15 0 Were these exhibits, Applicants' Exhibit No. 142

16 and 143, prepared under your direct supervision and control,

17 Mr. Pilmer?
.. _ _

18 n Yes, they were.

19 MR. CASEY: With that foundation I would move

20 admission of those two exhibits at this time.

21 MR. MC CLUNG: That's fine with me. -

22 JUDGE KELLEY: So ordered.

23 (The documents marked for

() 24 identification as Applicants'

25 Exhibits 142 and 143 were

received in evidence.)
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() 9 1 BY MR. CASEY:

2 Q Mr. Pilmer, referring to page 40 of your

3 direct testimony, beginning at line 25, you discuss actions
O('N

4 being taken by the Applicants in consultation and cooperation

5 with FEMA and the involved off-site emergency response

6 organizations to respond to the FEMA findings contained

7 in the memorandum from Mr. Dickey of FEMA to Mr. Grimes of

8 the NRC Staff dated June 3, 1980. Have these actions that

9 are being taken by the Applicants been set forth in a letter

10 from the Southern California Edison Company signed by Mr.

11 K. P. Baskin to the NRC Staff dated June 26, 19817

12 A The contemplated actions are set forth in that

13 letter. An attachment to that letter. I believe you mis-

14 spoke yourself. The FEMA findings are dated 1981.

15 Q Excuse me. I did misspeak myself. It should

16 be 1981.

17 MR. CASEY: I'd like to mark for identification

18 at this time, Mr. Chairman, a document which I'ha've previously

19 given to the Board and the parties entitled on the cover

20 " Applicants' Letter ,atea June 26, 1981, to Brian K. Grimes,

21 NRC Staff, Of# ice of _- ~;ction and Enforcement" and

12 enclosures entitled " Corrective Actions Required to Address

23 FEMA Determinations of June 3, 1981" and " Summary of Planned

) 24 Action". I'd like to identify that exhibit at this time

25 as Applicants' Exhibit No. 144.

.

-
- _ . -- - - .
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[]) 10 1 JUDGE KELLEY: Very well.

2 (The document was marked for

3 identification as Applicants'

4 Exhibit No. 144.)

5 BY MR. CASEY:

6 Q Could you generally describe, Mr. Pilmer, the

7 purpose and substance of the letter which we have identified

8 as Applicants' Exhibit No. 144?

9 A In that letter we report to Mr. Grimes our

10 analysis of the FEMA findings, attempting to diagnose what

11 comments are significant and those which are important for

12 immediate short-term action to be taken on, and we set

13 forth our commitment to work towards resolving those

(/) 14 deficiencies identified.

15 ///

|
16'

17
_ . - . -

18

19

20

21
|

22

23

| () 24

25

(O
r

_J

|

l
. - . - . - . - . - . - . - . - . - . . . . . - - . _ - . . . .- .. .-
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Q Has the enclosures to that letter previously been
( ) Til cl 1

2 made a part of this proceeding as an attachment to the affi-

3 davit of Mr. Robert Dietch in our memorandum on -- in support

OsJ

4 of commencing full power hearings in this matter, dated, I

5 believe it was, June 29, 1981?

6 A Yes, that is one and the same.

7 Q Although signed by Mr. Kenneth P. Baskin of the

8 Southern California Edison Company, was this letter pre-

9 pared under your direct supervision and control?

10 A Yes, I drafted the transmittal letter and I

11 prepared or supervised the preparation of the analysis of

12 the FEMA findings in the two enclosures to that letter.

, . 13 MR. CASEY: Thank you, Mr. Pilmer. At this time

!O'(s 14 we would move for admission into the evidence of Applicants'

15 Exhibit Number 144.

16 MR. MC CLUNG: No objection.

17 JUDGE KELLEY: So ordered.

18 (Whereupon, the document

19 previously marked for identi-

20 fication as Applicants'

21 Exhibit Number 144 was

22 received in evidence.)

23 BY MR. CASEY:

() 24 Q Mr. Pilmer, have you prepared a summary or an

1

25 overview of your testimony?'

t',

()y

|
!

.. . . _ . . . _ _ _ _ , _ _ . . _ _ _ _ _ _ , . . _ . . . _
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em

bk2 1 A Yes.

2 0 Could you please present that overview at this

3 time?
(]} ,

4 A I will endeavor to make my remarks brief. First

I will discuss what the purpose of my testimony is, especial-5

6 ly in view of the fact that we have had so many witnesses

and there are a number of contentions and it is hard to tell7

who is testifying to what and where they fit in the overall8

9 scheme.

10 ' My testimony supplements the testimony of many

witnesses that have preceeded on the following issues. Is-
11

12
sue Number 2(a) which deals with the Edison Company corporate

13 emergency response organization, Issue 2 (h) , which deals

C- with the offsite dose assessment capability, Issue 2 (i) ,
14

which concerns itself with the emergency operations facility,
15

16 Issue 2 (j) , regarding ingestion pathway plans and procedures

17 Issue 2 (k) , the onsite reentry and recovery plan, and final-
_

18 ly issue 3, the rationale for determining the EPZ.

The second purpose of my testimony is to discuss
19

the past history of emergency planning at SONGS in order to20

place the current state of planning in the context o f the21

context of the continuing process of adjusting to changing22

23 circumstances.

() A third purpose of my testimony is to discuss24

25 the current effort by SCE and local government to make

O

- --- -
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~' *t 3 g short term improvements in emergency preparedness on a
(G

2 variety of topics, including those which were identified in

3 the FEMA findings.%

.b
4 And the final purpose of my testimony is to

describe the considerations that led to the present defined
5

6 boundaries of the plume exposure pathway, EPZ.

That is sort of a large number of different7

a pieces to the puzzle.

Secondly, I will give' a few highlights of my
9

testimony. In my testimony I describe the development of
10

the present emergency plans in conformance with the currentlyp-

applicable regulations and regulatory guidance.
12

I also describe how we determi:e that the plume
13

exposure pathway EPZ should be of a ten mile radius to meet14

15
NRC requirements, and the fact that it was decided to extend

certain planning elements beyond the EPZ boundary. I also
16

describe the means of promptly notifying offsite officials
17

of an emergency at SdNGS,. including the establishment ofjg

standard notification forms, and the engineering of the
19

interagency telephone system, which has been often referred20

here as the yellow phone.
21

I also discuss the make up of the corporate
22

emergency support organization and the fact that this organ-
23

ization fulfills the responsibilities required of licensees
(Vl 24

regarding the functions served by an emergency operations25

- _. .. . - _.
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| k4 facility as set forth in applicable regulatory guidance.y

vari us members of the emergency support organi-
2

n 3 zation perform their duties at four different emergency cen-

4 ters. T'.tese are , first, a location at San Onofre, which is

5 called the emergency support center. Second, the EOF, or

6 emergency operations facility whic:h is located at the San

7 Clemente Fire Department. Third, the emergency news center,

which is located at the Boys' Club in San Clemente. And
8

fourth, the Edison Company General Office in Rosemead.9

Procedures are in effect and have been 1.1 effect
10

for some time which cover the specia.ic duties and responsi-yy

bilities of the Edison personnel at these centers, and thep

coordination required between the centers.
13

In addition, my testimony describes what plansg

have been made to improve the EOF operations in San Clemente.
15

Our plans include an offsite dose assessment capability,16

which you have heard referred to previously es ODAC, which17

is separate from the capability that was previously de5~cribec ,yg

on Mr. Barr, which occurs onsite.j9

In my testimony I also describe the steps which20

have been taken for the ingestion pathway emergency planning
21

z ne. This consists of a base line study of this planning
22

ne, r.aking arrangements for field monitoring, establishing:
23

action levels relating to the ingestion pathways, and putting
24

in place the procedures which govern the coordination between25

.

- -
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|hk5 1 the various groups with responsibility for ingestion pathway

2 emergency response.

(^j Finally, my testimony covers the valuable experi-3

v
4 ences resulting from the recent exercise and suggestions

5 posed by FEMA.

6 I am the Company's member of the interjurisdic-

7 tional planning committee, which has studied the situation
8 and is taking action on a broad variety of topics to improve
9 preparedness.

10 That concludes my statement.

11 MR. CASEY: Thank you, Mr. Pilmer. Unless the

12 Board has questions at this time, we would --

13 JUDGE KELLEY: I wondered, if you could just
, . , _
\/ )

's ' 14 add, Mr. Pilmer, very generally, what your role was in the

15 development of the Company's plans and also what role, if

16 any, you would have in the event of an emergency.

17 WITNESS PILMER: In the first regard, it has

18 been my assignment to develop the emergency plans to meet

19 the new regulations for the Company, both onsite and to

20 assist and otherwise develop offsite emergency response

21 planning as appropriate for the regulations.
22 My position in the Company is one of a supervic-

23 ing engineer. I -- in that regard, I believe I have set

') 24 that forth in my direct testimony -- I supervise a group

25 of engineers that have assisted me in carrying out this task ,

p
),

x.,'
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( ) k6 1 My role in an emergency -- is that your second --

2 JUDGE KELLEY: Yes.

3 WITNESS PILMER: -- part of the question? Is
}

4 that I am a member of the emergency support organization,

5 and my duty station during emergencies is in the emergency

6 cupport center, which is located onsite at SONGS.

7 JUDGE KELLEY: Thank you. Were you about to

8 tender? ,

9 MR. CASEY: Yes, sir. I would like to tender

10 this Witness for cross examination at this time.

11 JUDGE KELLEY: Fine. Why don't we take a short

12 break, though, and then pick up in five to ten minutes, no

13 more than ten. Off the record.

(O 14 (Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.)

15 JUDGE KELLEY: Back ore t.Se record. The Board

16 and counsel for the Applicants, Mr. Pigott, we had a colloquy

17 yesterday on earthquakes and damage to be apprehended there-

18 from, and Mr. Pigott, you indicated you wanted to supplement

19 yesterday's discussion.

20 MR. PIGOTT: Yes, I did. Of course, it always

21 revolves around the certification question, and the with-

22 stand capability of the plant above an SSE, and of course,

23 as I have said many times, it is our position that once the

() 24 SSE is set, that we shouldn't be -- especially in the emer-

25 gency planning area, be reevaluating it for emergency

(%
s_J

,

!
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!

1 planning purposes. And we did get into a discussion at
( } k7

2 around 8866 of the transcript, a page or so either way of

3 that, so between myself and the Chairman, wherein to my mind,

4 at least from my side, some of the statements were perhaps

5 overly broad. And upon reflection -- upon reading the

6 record and seeing what was actually stated, the one question

7 in particular was of putting to one side the containment

a question. Are you saying your facility is invulnerable to

9 earthquakes?

10 And my answer was, for the kind of release

33 being postulated in this case, yes. End of the quote. For

12
clarification, it was my thinking at that time, or at least

in my mind I was thinking of the concrete and reinforced --13

( reinforced concrete containment building itself. The
14

15 question is actually much broader than that. Asking whether

the total facility is invulnerable to earthquake, and if16

that -- and obviously was intended to include any earthquake17
.

above the SSE level, I am not in a position to answer that13

19 question in the affirmative. That just .cimply goes beyond

20 even the powers of a statement of counsel.

21
So, I think there should be a clarification.

I don't know what the answer is as phrased. Invulnerable
12

is an awfully large word. Somehow or other there would have
23

to be a limitation on that.() 24

I did want that clarified for the record. We
25

l')v

. . . , - - - - - . -- - - .
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|

k8 1 are still of the position that the plant for sure is safe.

2 Invulnerable maybe is a good word up to the SSE level.

() 3 Above that, I really can't comment. We would think there

4 were certain portions of the design we have reviewed that

5 you would have to go well beyond the SSE to affect. But a

6 total statement as to the facility being invulnerehle, I

7 don't think we can make that.

8 JUDGE KELLEY: Fine. I appreciate your clarifi-

9 cation. And with that, Mr. Filmer has been tendered for

10 cross, I believe.

Il MR. CASEY: Yes, sir.

12 JUDGE KELLEY: Fine. Mr. McClung, are you --

13 MR. MC CLUNG: Yes, sir.

14 JUDGE KELLEY: -- ready?

15 CROSS EXAMINATION

16 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

17 Q Mr. Pilmer, I wanted to refer you for a -- brief--

18 ly to the top of page five and for a bit of clarification,
19 on line two, and on line thret, and among other places in

20 the report you make reference to SONGS. And nowhere in the

21 report, in your testimony, do I see an explanation of what
12 you mean by the word SONGS. I know that you do define San

23 Onofre Nuclear Generating Stations as SONGS 2 and 3. And

(~)r

! k/ 24 you -- sometimes you refer to SONGS 2 and 3, but then some-m ,

25 times you drop the -- what does it mean when you refer to

O
_

- _ - - - - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ - - - - _ - _ - - _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ - _ - - - - - - _ - - - - - - _ _ _ _ - - _ . _ _ _ . _ _ _ _ _ - _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ . _ _ _ _ - - _ _ - - _ - _ . - - _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
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(}} k9 i SONGS?

A Without the Unit 1 designation or the Units 22

3 and 3 designation it refers to the entire facility, the site.

4 The site with the facility, and the particular context we

5 brought that up, what I am doing here is describing emerguncy

P anning activities spanning some number of years, and ofl6

7 course, during some of this time San Onofre Units 2 and 3

were under construction, and -- but Unit 1 was in operation.8

The reason for my describing it is it has a9

relationship to the offsite emergency response plans which10

are the issues in this case.gj

Q So the references to SONGS refer to the three,
12

is that correct? Units 1, 2 and 3?
13

A Yes. Or 4 and 5.~ 14

15 0 All right.

16 A Well, in that context, it starts off in 1963.

We had not begun to construct San Onofre Unit 1 at that time,17
-

.

-

And it -- I am testifying here as to the first considerations13

and preliminary planning that was done to deal with emergen-19

20 cies.

21 Q Okay. In that respect, you testify on page

five about what was done beginning in 1963, and you testify22

and you go on and discuss aspects of emergency planning.23

() Were you employed by the Edison Company in 1963?24

25 A No, I was not. I rely here upon my review of

O

-. - - - . . . . .
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the documents that I site there. The first one listed iskl0 g

a preliminary hazard summary report. That in the jargon of
2

the day is the equivalent of the preliminary safety analysis
3

4 report as we know it today. That is the document that

supports an application for a construction permit.
5

And in that document there is a description of
6

considerations that are appropriate for seeking a construc-7

tion permit that relates to emergency planning. And if you
8

go in there and review that, you will even see that there9

was consideration at that time for evacuation of the city
10

of San Clemente.yy

0 Could you explain briefly what that consideratior t

12

was?
13

A(L/ A The -- what is described there are discussions
34

that were held with city officials in the city at that time,
15

and their statement of the capability to carry out that
16

action.37

Andthoseconversationswerboutlinedinthe -

j gg Q

19 report, is that correct?

A Yes, it is. I wouldn't say conversations. The
20

fact that discussions were held and the fact that those21

considerations were made.22

///23
,

!O 24

2$

0) ,-
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T.12 lcm 1 As it turned out, of course, the regulationas as they were

'({} 2 interpreted and so forth revealed that caoability to

3 evacuate San Clenente for the operation of Unit 1 at that

(]') 4 tine was not, as events turned out to be, a requirenent.

5 g Was that -- the final engineering recort that

6 we're referring to, was that --

7 M7. CASEY: I'm not sure we're referring to the

8 final engineering report. We're referring to the preliminary

9 hazard summary report, which is in the prior paragranh.

*

10 JUDGE KELLEY: Which page is that again?

11 MR. CASEY: Page 5, lina 5.

12 JUDGE KELLEY: Question -- I can understand, I

- 13 guess, Mr. Casey, why you might outline what's been done

14 back in '63, but are you offering this for any reason other

15 than just background inforration?

16 MR. CASEY: Yes, it's in the nature of background

17 to show an ongoing develonmenE of an infrastructure which'

18 leads to where we are today.

19 JUDGE KELLEY: I don't think you'd jeopardize

20 your position at all by just passing on up to present day.

21 MR. McCLUNG: Thank you.

22 BY MR. McCLUNG:
f')
kJ

23 9 On page -- just a couple questions. I can't

24 abandon all these questions. I have nages of these questions,

()i

|
25 and I'll throw away a lot of then, but I wanted to ask a

|

!
.. . . _ - _ . - _ _ . . - . - . - _ _ _ . . . . _ . - -
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2 1 couple questions. With respect -- on page 6, beginning

(') 2 at line 11, you discuss six major revisions made in theq_j

3 SONGS-1 radiological emergency olan. Do you follow me?

O 4 a. Yes.

5 g Could you tell me why each one of those six

6 revisions took place? ,

7 A Well, the --

8 MR. CASEY: We object --

9 JUDGE KELLEY: When was this? When was this?

10 MR. McCLUNG: It's the period between February
,

11 2nd, 1968, and December 16th, 1975.

12 JUDGE KELLEY: For SONGS-l?

(') 13 { MR. CASEY: Object on the ground of relevancy.

14 JUDGE KELLEY : Nell, there is a problem, you

15 know. Why is it in here if the testimony is irrelevant. But --

16 MR. McCLUNG: Well,it's --
..

17
-

JUDGE KELLEY: Are you relying on this testimony,

18 ore the current regulations, for any purpose other than

19 just background? I think I asked you that before. But --

20 MR. CASEY: We're trying to give the Board a

21 persoective on a situation where, with an operating plant,

22 you develop an infrastructure that's -- that's trained,
r~')sl (_

23 that's drilled, the relationshin exists, which is really

24

(V3
something that is pertinent, as oncosed to a site where

25 you're building it right now, you've never had an offsite

_ _. .. __ _ . ,, .. .. - . . . ..- . . - - _ .- -. . . _ , . --
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3 1 emergency esponse cacabi:ity. So it is offered to show |

(v3
2 that we haven't been in this business just since T!iI or just

3 since we started building Units 2 and.3. But it doesn't

4 relate to our canability today. That's why the questions]
5 have to -- if Mr. !!cClung is trying to question the

i credibility of this, I guess he can do that. But otherwise

7 I don't understand the relevance of it.

8 JUDGE KELLEY: Well, if you -- as a matter of

9 logical relevance, I suppose you can argue that if you've

10 been in this business since 1963, and making various plans,

11 that you're more likely to make a better plan in 1981 than

12 if you hadn't done that. Is that --

13 MR. CASEY: That's the drift, yes.
kJ

14 JUDGE KELLEY: That's the drift. On the other

15 hand there are points where -- excuse me just a moment.

16 The Board does not feel -- while this portion

17 of the testimony may be interesting as background'infornation,

18 we don't feel that it has any significant bearing on the

19 issues before us. And we are prepared to not attach any

20
,

weight to it with regard to contested issues.
i

21 And with that, :fr. !!cClung, let's just pass on.

22 !in. :1cCLUNG: That takes it out of my --
| ,

|

23 JUDGE KELLEY: All right.

24 :13. CASEY: !ir. Chairnan, does that statement

| 25 take us up to the top of page 9? Is that where -- in terms

'
-- - -. . . . - - _
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4 I of the -- just for the record?

O 2 ,cDss KsLLsY, 2 hat a, pears to be an accurate

'
3 des'cription of the --

O 4 "~<- c^stv: =neax vo"-

5 JUDGE KELLEY: -- testimony and subjects covered

6 in it.

7 Just a moment.

I BY MR. McCLUUG:

9 0 Okay. Let's go all the way up to page 12 then.

10 And with respect to your answer to a question that began

11 on page 11 there, at the top of the page, the last sentence

12 in the top paragraph beginning at page 5, you say, "All of

13
,/ these plans except the draft State of California nian have

14 been adonted and imnlemented by the appropriate governing '

15 body and found to be minimally acceptable by FEMA."

16 How, you're.: referring in your answer to several

17
~ ' '

plans. What do you mean by "adonted", first of all

18 A. The answer to the question refers to several

19 plans there in the -- and the ansuer differs, plan to plan.

U Orange County and San Diego County plans -- now, we're not --

21 I'm not referring here to the plans that are in this raroceed-

22 ing here today. These are nredecessor plans that were in

23 effect.

'4 Orange Countv and San Diego County plans were-

25 adopted by some resolution by the Board of Sunervisors, just
.

- _ . _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ . . _ _ _ . _ . _ _ _ _ _ _ _
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5 1 as *.%e present ones have, but they were different ones

(]) 2 than we have today. The Pendleton Coast Office of the State

3 Department of Parks and Recreation had a plan that was

({} issued under the authority of the park manager, who was Mr.,

5 Hanshu (ph) , who was a previous manager to Mr. Stowe who

6 has appearied in these proceedings.

7 The City of San Clemente plan was a procedure

3 or annex to the city plan that was issued under authority

9 of the City Manager, the.-- whose name I don't recall.

10 Does that answer the question? I said -- I'm

11 sorry, wait a minute.

12 G You're confusing me.

,es 13 A All right. I'm describing the previous set of

'

14 plans. Okay. Then these plans were revised and further

15 developed to meet the new regulations, I'm sorry. Let me

16 take that back. So now we get into the le. test effort in

17 planning revisions to meet new regulations, which is --

18 which began in the middle of -- or late 1980, and in 1931.
.

19 All of these 71ans excent for the State of California plan

20 was a.docted. So I would amend that to say that the new

21 plans were as I've testified, adonted in the manner that I

22 said, except for San Clemente, which also -- which happened
7,

V
23 to go before the City Council for adontion, because the

24 City Council directed that that orocedure be followed in,_
,

V
25 this current case. That was not the case perviousiv.

_ - _ _ - _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ __ |
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6 1 4 And --

2 A. And the Pendleton Coast Office, I understood,

3 had understood, that the plan that we have in effect was

4C approved by Mr. Stowe, and I'll grant you that he has testi-

5 fied most recently that that is -- he nos characterizes

6 that more as a draft, but he has testified that that is

7 the plan that he would follow in responding to an emergency,

8 at the -- I've always been under the understanding from him

9 directly in statements he's nade to me that the plan that

10 we've submitted here is the one that -- that he's aporoved

11 for use at the present time, and that he has the authority,

12 as any nark manager does, to issue such planning directives.

13 G Referring back to the San Cler, ente plan and --

14 was that -- what do you mean by "adonted" it, with resnact

15 to that plan?

16 !!R. CASEY: Is that Anglicant's Exhibit No. 55

* - -
17 ' hat you're referring to?t

18 liR. ?icCLUNG: If that's what he's referring to,

19 in the answer to the question --

20 UITNESS PIL'iEO.: That is what I'm referring to.

2i And I was present on the evening that the City Council

22 anproved it. They voted, and I believe we published a
fis/ 23 cony of the resolution.

I

24 BY :-iR. !icCLUNG:

i V
.

25 G Thank you. In that same line, you say that

i

l
'

. .-. - . - . . _ . . . - . . , .
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7 they've all been imolemented. What do you mean by "implemente d"?

() A That refers tc the distinction between planning

3
and implear.tation of the plans. These plans have been

() implemented, in my opinion, by the preoaration of procedures,

5
in some cases, or other preparations that the plan recuires,

6
and which I believe were demonstrated in the exercise that

was held in May.

8
% How does " implemented" differ from " adopted"?

9
A Well, by the word " adopted", I just meant to

10
indicate some authority that sets Zorth that the things

11
stated in that t a matter of policy is the plan of that

12
jurisdiction. I -- I view the plan as basically a policy

((]) document that tells the neoole within that jurisdiction

14
what it is they have to do in emergencies. And the'r leave

15'
many of the details un for the people who are charged with

16
the resnonsibility of carrying out their duties for

implementation.
~

'

18
4 Okay. Turning to line 22 then, of the sane nage

19
12, you refer to the role of Southern California Edison in

20
the development of the various off-site olans. Could you

21
expand upon your line 22, therein you state that SCE has

n,
'

~~
taken the initiative by setting objectives and schedules and

23
providing planning coordination between the jurisdictions?

24
A I'd be glad to. To give an answer to that

)
'' 25

auestion, I'd like to cive a little historical run-throuah

__ .. .. _-
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3 I of what we have done in the current planning effort to meet

O new resu1,tions. As you xnow, the ,hree 211e Is1ana accident2

3 occurred in March of 1979. And shortly thereafter there were

Q^
4 a nunber of study groups by the IIRC and other bodies to

5 study what happened.

6 :tany of them pointed to inadecuacies in emergency

7 planning around nuclear power plants in the country. And

8 in July of 1979, Mr. Denton, the Director of iuclear Reactor

9 Regulation, issued or presented to the Commission his action

10 plan for emergency preparedness at all the country's nuclear

11 power plants.

12 And in August of 1979, the Iluclear Regulatorv

13 Staff conducted workshoos around the country for utilities-

14 and state and local government officials surrounding each

15 nuclear power niant to exclain their action plan to set

16 forth what was expected. That included schedules, or at
'

17 least preliminary schedules. And shortly -- and lay comoany

18 attended just such a workshoo.

19 In September of 1979, I prepared correspondence

20 to all of our current state and local planning jurisdictions.

21 And in that correspondence i exclained what had happened

22 in the way of new guidelines that would be coming out.

23 I proposed that we embark on a new -- an intensive olanning
24 effort. I outlined the key objectives as they were set

. NJ
1

- 25 forth in Mr. Denton's action plan. I set forth schedules.

_- . _ - _ - - . - . - . -.
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19 And subsecuently to such correspondence, we

2O coc=aimetea sv iavittaa enese ve=toue soverame=t "eo,1e to

3 attend meetings, and we discussed it at great length.

*O ^aa to = ne e 1 =9 storv en re, " net ne= come ut or this

5 effort, which has gone on for some time, first one of clari- -

6 fying and understanding what's required, that is to say,

I setting objectives, has been the set of off-site emergency

I response plans that you see in evidence here in this nroceed-

9 .

ing.

10 The schedule setting was -- naturally comes fron --

11 directly from the regulations that became effective on

12 November 3rd of last year, and established a date of January

13 the 1st -- e::cuse me, January the 2nd, Sr the submittal

14 of such plans in the case of everv licensee who has a license.

15 to coerate a nuclear power plant.

I6 It set forth a schedule of April 1st of this

17 year fer the implementation of all such clans. That has been

II from the ouset the basic schedule that we have all worked
19 towards. And parenthetically, it has been a df.fficult

20 schedule. But that'? what I mean by that statement.

'l As fer as planning coordination, we have*

2~' conducted numerous meetings. He've corresoonded a great deal.
g'
L 23 We've held many conversations, many meetings, with eeople --

24 nany of the witnesses who have appeared here, and many

b)
^

25m
- others as well, in doing that. And I consider that to be

planning coordination.

.. -- ,_ .. . - - --
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,]' T13 1 Q Thank you. On page 13 in the first paragraph'

kl
2 beginning -- I am referring to the sentence beginning at

3 page three, you talk about in other cases the Edison Company

4 providing other kinds of support, including support of con-

5 sultants. Did the Edison Company or its consultants write

6 draft plans for any of various jurisdictions?

7 A Yes, we did. And the way we went about doing

8 that came from a period of meetings and dicussions as I have
,

9 just described, to understand what it is we are trying to

10 achieve, and meeting individually with one jurisdiction after

11 another to find out what their current capability is, what

12 in our opinion we thought was necessary to improve or augment

13 their capability, and getting their input on the form of

(Ds/ 14 just such a plan that they could support and work towards,

15 and because o f the tight schedule, we felt that we found

16 necessary, and I believe that there have been other witnesses

17 that have certainly corroborated that, that they needed help.

13 They need help and expertise. They needed help in the --

19 just the simple logistical problems of typing large documents

20 and getting them out so that they could work with them,

21 review them, get them out to all the subordinate agencies

12 that are -- that have responsibilities under those plans,

23 and that sort of thing.

( )) 24 We have made our consultants available freely to

25 them to give them advice, to assist them in the writing of

b(~\
_

_ _ _ , , _ . _ . . . . . ____, , . . _ . _ . __
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( ) k2 1 the plans, but as you have heard, the plans are theirs, and

2 ours was support where they have asked for it and where they

3 needed it.(])
4 0 With respect to the interagency plan, did you --

5 did you or your consultants draft that plan?

6 JUDGE KELLEY: Mr. McClung, let me ask you. We

7 have had some testimony along this line with other witnesses,

8 I know, to the effect that what did the Edison Company do by

9 way of drafting documents or paying people at some point, I

10 guess it was.

11 I am not sure that -- could you explain to me

12 how that is relevant to the issues here?

13 MR. MC CLUNG: Cartainly. When I -- specifically. s

I4 dealing with one of the contentions, number three with

15 respect to the emergency planning zone --

16 JUDGE KELLEY: Yeah.

17 MR. MC CLUNG: And I am trying to get a handle
,.

18 on where various plans came from, and whether or not there|

19 was in fact a consideration of the various factors by the

20 local planning officials in the drawing of the boundary

21 lines.

12 If for instance the plans --

23 JUDGE KELLEY: Well, okay. I can see that. But
'

(~)N(, 24 the questions have been a lot broader about --

25 MR. MC CLUNG: Well --

(t

|

,-. - - .-- -. . - - - - - - - - - . . - .. ,-.
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( ) k3 1 JUDGE KELLEY: -- doing drafts.

2 MR. MC CLUNG: Well, the questions that -- I

() 3 have attempting to do yes, no questions after a couple of

4 ones, but I am not --

,

5 JUDGE KELLEY: My question --

6 MR. MC CLUNG: I will try to --

7 JUDGE KELLEY: -- to you is --

8 MR. MC CLUNG: -- make them narrow.

9 JUDGE KELLEY: -- does it -- let's suppose the

10 Edison Company drafted -- provided drafts for every plan for

11 every offsite jurisdiction. Why would that matter one way

12 or the other? With the possible exception of how do you

13 figure out the EPZ.s

14 MR. MC CLUNG: Well, that is the main thing I am

15 focusing on right now.

1G JUDGE KELLEY: Okay, well --

17
_

MR. MC CLUNG: That is the issue that I am focus-

( 18 ing on, and why would it matter is that if we -- if it can
i

19 be established that the people just took what Edison gave

20 them because they didn't have enough time to do anything

21 else, then I think we may have established that they didn't

12 actually consider the other factor --

23 JUDGE KELLEY: All I am interested in, really,*

O
! \- 24 here is saving time, and my point is, a direct question about

25 what was Edison's role in proposing the size of the EPZ

__ -. - . - .. .- . . . -- . .
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1 might get you right there. And a broader one about what didO k4
2 Edison do in developing plans can go on at some length, and

3 I don't think get us anywhere.

4 Now, the Company isn't objecting to these ques-

5 tions, and maybe they are perfectly delighted to explain all
6 they have done in this area. But I don't really think it

7 gets us anywhere, apart from the EPZ which you are perfectly
8 free to ask about.

9 MR. MC CLUNG: Well, it is hard to make reference

10 to the EPZ in general terms like that. I am liable -- the

11 kinds of answers I will get are the same kinds of answers

12 in the general consultation with everyone, and I am trying

13 to make it specific by asking a precise question of whether
((3vl 14 or not the Edison consultants drafted a particular plan.

15 And then the follow up question would be whether any change s

16 were made in that plan.

17 JUDGE KELLEY: Can we just go right to the EPZ
~

~

-18 if that is where we are heading? Wha ~t I am doing is barring

19 questions that ask about did the Company draft a plan,
20 across the board.

21 MR. MC CLUNG: Okay,

22 JUDGE KELLEY: We are ruling that that is ir-

"

23 relevant.

O 24 na. se crono: em nevime ero81 ems, deceuse

25 don't want to belabor this because that will take more time

(~%
V

- - . _. .
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k5 than it la worth, but the -- I am having trouble seeing why
g

it is irrelevant it they draft a plan. We have had testimony
3

by a lot of witnesses to the --p, 3

JUDGE KELLEY: And I sat here impatiently and
4

let it come in, but this afternoon I am saying no, I am not
5

interested in that. I have ruled against the question. It
6

is out of the case.7

BY MR. MC CLUNG:g

0 With respect --9

JUDGE KELLEY: The topic is on 14 -- or perhaps
10

you are looking at that, 14 line 20. It seems to me thatyy

the Witness does testify in his proffered direct that the
12

Company originally recommended -- well, recommended -- SCE
13

riginally recommended to the emergency planning agencies
14

surrounding SONGS what was believed to be the appropriate
15

boundary for this EPZ.
16

So I understand that to mean they figured out
37

whet they thought the EPZ ought to be, drew it on a map,
t gg

and handed it to these agencies. Isn't that correct?
19

WITNESS PILMER: Yes, sir.
20

JUDGE KELLEY: So that is a starting point, at
21

least.22

MR. MC CLUNG: Okay, I appreciate the help from
23

the Board, but what I am trying to do is run through my
) 24

various questions because I am trying to interpret whether
t 25
!
t

u

|

|

l
|
. .- . - _ . .__ _ .____ __ .____ _, , _ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ . _ , _ ._ _ _ _ _ ___
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k6 g or not they are part of the line of questioning which has

been barred, and I haven't come to the specific EPZ stage
2

3 yet in my review, and when I get there I will follow up on

O
4 the question you just asked.

JUDGE KELLEY: Do you want to stretch for a
5

6 minute? I mean, do we want to while you look? Three minutes ?

7 MR. MC CLUNG: I don' t think it will take that

g long, unless you want --

JUDGE KELLEY: Okay.9

MR. MC CLUNG: -- to stretch. You can stretch
10

y; anyway.

JUDGE KELLEY: Short break, three or four
12

minutes. Please don't go too far away. Off the record.
13

() (Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.)34

JUDGE KELLEY: Back on the record.
15

16 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

17 0 What is the current status of the state radiologi -

33 cal emergency response plan?
- ~

MR. CASEY: Which plan is that? Is that the
39

one in evidence?20

MR. MC CLUNG: I would like to take that onegj

and whatever other ones he is aware of that are drafts,
12

23 maybe revisions of that. I think he can answer it.

WITNESS PILMER: I can answer the question.
({} 24

There is a state of "alifornia Nuclear Power Plant Emergency25

em

s

_

- _ - - - _ - . _ .
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k7 ; Response Plan, or similar title. There is one which is
f w)(-'

currently in effect under California law as I understand it.2

And that is the same plan in which the NRC granted concur-3

O-
4 rence in August of 1978.

JUDGE KELLEY: Can we get clearer now. Is one
5

of these in evidence?6

MR. CASEY: Yes, sir. The plan Mr. Pilmer just
7

described is Applicants' 52.
8

JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. Thank you.
9

MR. MC CLUNG: He was getting to that,
10

WITNESS PILMER: That plan -- I am sorry. Nas
gy

there a question? I wasn't through with my answer.
12

BY MR. MC CLUNG:
13

D( / Q No, keep going with your answer.
14

A Okay. Not long after the Three Mile Island
15

accident the California legislature considered various legis-
16

lative proposals that deal with emergency planning, and17

there was ultimately enacted a law that required the state -

gg,

| office of emergency services to do certain studies and you'

39

have heard alluded to in these proceedings the SAI study
20

which is part of that effort. and that law also requires
I 21
i that emergency response plans on the part of the state and

22

local government be prepared, and it requires that such
23

plans be submitted to the California legislature, and to the
(]) 24

Nuclear Regulatory Commission for approval.25

(V~)

:

|
. . _ _ . - - - - . . .- - - .- - ._. _. ..
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' ^"* '"* ^ * '"''"*" "" "id*" '""' """* ""' ""
O x8

2 such such approval -- until such approval occurs, that the

3 present plan remains in effect, and I am sure counsel can

4 give you a legal citation for that under California law,

5 if you want. I have read the Act myself many times, and I

6 think I have fairly represented it.

7 Now, as part of that state OES coordinated ef-

8 fort, of which myself and my company have been an active

9 participant, there has been prepared a new draft State of
California Nuclear Power Plant Emergency Pesponse Plan, and10

I can tell you from a very careful reading of the new draft3;

plan that the essential elements of that plan are identical-12

ly the same insofar as the assignment of responsibility
..

13

for dealing with a nuclear power plant accident at San Onofre .
j4

They delegate full responsibility to the local
15

level, which I believe is proper, just as the old plan did,16

and the most signficant and salient difference that that17
' plan has'in its'cdrrent pToposed state is that it prop'oses33

that emergency planning zones of a different size and charac-19

ter as that required under the NRC regulations, be the basis20

21 of the planning.

That feature of the new state plan is not to22

the best of my knowledge before the California legislature23

24 r the Nucle r Regu t ry C mmissi n t this time, but itO
does exist in a draft document and I have a copy of that,25

O

. .. . - __
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-

/~T k9 1 and -- but I think the important thing is that the currenc
V

2 plan, the one that we have submitted, under California law

3 3 is -- remains in effect explicitly under this new legislation

{J
.

4 And the only differences, as far as responsibility

5 for dealing with an accident remains precisely the same as

6 that which is in effect under the proposed revisions.

7 Does that --

8 Q Thank you. That is --

9 A I have a lot more information --

10 Q No, don't --

33 A If you would like it --

12 Q That is okay.

.- 13 JUDGE KELLEY: Could you just repeat again what

[\ 14 the differences are?

15 WITNESS PILMER: The differences are that the ,

i 16 California Office of Emergency Services has proposed that

17 emergency planning as relates to the plume exposure pathway
~

is emergency planning zone be more extensive and be -- cover

19 different areas.

20 JUDGE KELLEY: A bigger zone?

21 WITNESS PILMER: A bigger zone in some respects,

22 and, oddly enough, a little bit smaller in other respects.

23 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay.

24 WITNESS PILMER: It depends upon the direction.(),

25 JUDGE KELLEY: Thank you.

(O
V

.- - .-. -- _ . . - . . - - -- - . . - .. . . _ - - -
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( ) kl0 1 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

2 Q Following up on that just a little bit to clari-

I'% 3 fy, could you describe the proposed zone in the new plan?
U

4 MR. CASEY: I am going to object as irrelevant.
,

5 The Board has already ruled, as I understand it, that the

6 zone that we are concerned about as the NRC emergency plan-

7 ning zone and I don't understand why the question of the

a state zone is relevant in this proceeding.

9 JUDGE KELLEY: Well, we ruled out a contention

10 that, I believe, was premised -- I don't know whether it

11 was premised on the SAI report or on this state law, that

12 frankly I am not familiar with, but in any event, the pre-

13 scribed zone of dimensions much larger than and different

(O
- 14 from the one that we were looking at, so that -- I am not

15 so sure that the question isn't a proper one, though, because

16 from the standpoint of confusion or conflict, we might --

17 we might be interested in that, even though we think a much

18 larger zone is not legally required because it is at variance

19 with our regulation, but the fact might remain that some

20 officials in the state were inristing on something different ,

21 and I think that is something that we could look at. Here

22 your question seems to be directed. Are you --

23 MR, MC CLUNG: That is all I want to do.

( 24 JUDGE KELLEY: Is that where you are headed?

25 MR. MC CLUNG: Yeah, just clarify the zone.

O

.. . _ -. -- - . . . -
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( ) kil 1 With that regard --

2 JUDGE KELLEY: So I will overrule the objection.

() 3 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

4 Q It might be helpful to refer to the Orange County

5 emergency plan, which I am not sure the exhibit number of,

6 do you have a copy of that by any chance?

7 A Yes, I do.

8 Q Could you refer to figure 1-l?

9 A Yes, I have it here. It follows page I-4.

10 Q Now, is that figure 1-1, does that incorporate

11 the emergency planning zone in the new state plan?

12 A That page is a photocopy of a similar page that

13 appears in the draft State of California Nuclear Power Plant
k.

14 Emergency Response Plan. It is -- this is the result of the

15 state's efforts to define what they feel are the appropriate

16 planning zones.

17 Q Now, surrounding the plant there at San onofre,

18 there is a little dotted line that goes and takes in San

19 Juan Capistrano to the north and then goes off into Camp

20 Pendleton there. Now, what does that line symbolize?

21 A The dotted line denotes the boundary of the

22 inner zone that the -- under the draft state plan is identi-

23 fled and I believe mislabeled here, as the basic emergency

() 24 planning zone.

25

O
_

> - - . - + - .-c. - _ _ - _ , _ _,._w. - , _ _ y - , , , __s
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(") tp#14 1 Q Now for the record, it is shown on this figure
ss

2 as just the emergency planning zone, without the word "hasic" .

3 Andthen there is a dash line a little bit farther out. Could

4 you tell us what that represents?

5 A The larger -- that's the outer -- zone is I'd

6 describe it as a broken line of a very irregular geometric

7 shape that is the boundary of what they term the " extended

a planning zone" under this draft state plan.

9 Q And what is the distinction between those two

10 zones?

11 A The distinction is, as I understand it, is the i

12 following, that the basic cmergency planning zone is analogous

13 to very similar .a what is expected to be planned for as

(O 14 that embraced by the NRC's defined plume exposure pathway

15 emergency planning zone. And the extended planning zone,

16 the otherone, the larger one, is one which under the state

17 plan is an extended area with somewhat vague requirements

18 for local government to determine what additional, if any,

19 protective actions or planning features should be considered.

20 Q Thank you. That's very helpful. Turning now

21 to the --

22 JUDGE KELLEY: Can I come in and ask a question?

23 MR. MC CLUNG: Of course.

() 24 JUDGE KELLEY: So the state, at least in the

25 draft -- this hasn't been approved by the legislature yet

O)%

-
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2 1 so it isn't final, as I understand it -- but at least in a
[}

2 draft is proposing zones and really focusing on a ten mile

3 zone somewhat different than the NRC's zone or the zone you
O

4 have adopted pursuant to NRC regulations. Do you envision

5 any conflict -- should you feel yourself obliged to comply

6 with the state requirements do you see anything in there

7 that would put you in a conflicting position?

8 WITNESS PILMER: There is absolutely no possib-

9 ility of these state zones conflicting or impairing meeting

to the NRC regulations for its plume exposure pathway emergency

11 planning zone. These zones all require additional planning,

12 nothing in conflict with NRC requirements.

13 JUDGE KELLEY: That is the thrust of my question.

14 You did indicate, I thought, that in some respects the

15 state's version of the ten mile zone, if you will, is some-

16 what smaller or more constricted than the NRC ten mile zone,'

17 is that correct?

18 WITNESS PILMER: Yes. There's not a precise

19 surveyor's definition of these zones. This figure that you

20 see here is --

21 JUDGE KELLEY: Well, where is the smaller part?

12 Can you just tell me?

23 WITNESS PILMER: Yeah. If you -- right above

(~) 24 the word " San Juan" in " San Juan Capistrano"..
s--

25 JUDGE KELLEY: Yes. It is closer in?

fs\.,]

-_ ---- |
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3 i WITNESS PILMER: That comes into about nine

2 miles.

3 JUDGE KELLEY: But you are saying that you go

4 out to the NRC thing, notwithstanding the state line and
|

5 the state could hardly object to that, isn't that correct?

6 WITNESS PILMER: It's a very trivial matter

7 because there are no residents in that location. I think

8 really I should say that I would define all that comes

9 within 10 miles less than 10 miles, so does the zone as we

to believe, as we have proposed hera, have defined it for the

it current planning effort, comes inside ten miles in a few

12 minor places und we believe that is all within the letter

13 of the regulation.

14 JUDGE KELLEY: What really concerns -- might

15 concern the Board, if it were true, is if you had developed

16 at the beheast of the NRC or under an NRC regulation some

17 Procedure or other which said in the event of an emergency

13 you.are going to do this, and along comes a sta*.e plan saying

19 no, do that instead. Then we might have a problem. But

20 you say you don't see that, based on your knowledge of tha

21 state --

22 WITNESS PILMER: No. In fact, if I could be

23 very specific, on the chart that is behind me,which has

24 an overlay that describes our planning zone, and is the

25 same -- for the record, now -- this ia the same as Figure

]

_ .. __ _ . . . -. . .
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() 4 1 2-1 in the emergency plan for San Onofre Units 2 and 3 in

terms of the areas --2

3 JUDGE KELLEY: For Orange County?

4 WITNESS PILMER: The San Onofre Units 2 and 3

5 emergency plan. I just want to --

6 MR. CASEY: Applicants' 51.

7 WITNESS PILMER: -- clarify that this graphic

8 behind me is the same as one that is in the record.

9 JUDGE KELLEY: All right.

10 WITNESS PILMER: Now you see the green line?

33 That's the ten mile radius. And you see the broken black

12 line in San Diego County? That is the boundary of the Camp

13 Pendleton Naval Reservation. The state basic planning zone

((%x_) conforms to the boundary of Camp Pendleton. So it dips14

15 inside the ten miles there in a few places. I'll point to

16 it now.

17 That is a totally uninhabited kind of wild
_

18- mountainous area. There are no inhabitants there and I
-

19 think that distinction is trivial.

20 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. I think I -- the state

21 line goes -- this won't show on the record, but could you

12 run ycur finger around the state line and down below? Where

23 does it go down below?

('/) 24 WITNESS PILMER: (Indicating with his finger)
~ j

25 JUDGE KELLEY: Toward the ocean. Oh, that's

- - - - -
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(]) 5 1 the only place? Those little pieces at Camp Pendleton?

2 WITNESS PILMER: These small places here are

3 the only distinction. There is one other minor one. It

4 conforms as our defined zone conforms to what is known as

5 the Ortega Highway in the Cleveland National Forest. There's

6 maybe a fifth of a mile or a tenth of a mile difference

7 between a strict ten mile radius. It's trivial.

8 JUDGE KELLEY: That's helpful. Thank you.

9 WITNESS PILMER: One other thing is that the

10 extended planning zone I'm sure that that is still not in

11 conflict, even if there were major distinctions because we

12 would simply cover NRC requirements in the optional planning

13 for the extended zone, which fully surrounds the NRC zone.

O 14 JUDGE KELLEY: Thank you.

15 Mr. McClung, please continue.

16 MR. MC CLUNG: Okay.

17 BY MR. MC CLUNG:
_

18 Q One clarification for me, referring to Figure

19 l-1 in the Orange County plan, it appears to me that what

20 you were just telling the Board isn't exactly correct be-

21 cause to the right, the lower part of the dotted line, it

22 doesn't conform to a concentric circle. It goes all into

23 Camp Pendleton, beyond the ten mile radius.

() 24 A The basic zone is in most respects larger than

25 the NRC plume exposure pathway zone. It conforms fully to

O
-

_ . + , - .w - y-. , , -, .c.-,y , .- _ , , , -, ,,_.m - -w. - , , - - . - -
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1 the boundary of the Camp Pendleton Naval Reservation.)6
2 0 Okay, but I think the Board may have misunder-

3 stood your answer. Could you trace the rest of the state --

O
4 I. Surely. The rest of the state zone is as

5 follows: (tracing with his finger)

6 JUDGE KELLEY: I understood that.

7 MR. MC CLUNG: Oh, you did?

8 JUDGE KELLEY: Yes.

9 MR. MC CLUNG: Okay. No problem then.

10 BY MR. MC CLUNG:

11 Q Under the current state law does the Office of

12 Emergency Services have any review process whereby it is

13 reviewing the off-site plans?,.

( 14 MR. CASEY: Whose off-site plans?

15 WITNESS PILMER: As a matter of law, I don't

16 know.

17 BY MR. MC CLUNG:
~

18 Q - -You don '-t know. Okay. Are you aware of any

19 reviews that have been made by the Office of Emergency

20 Service of the various local jurisdict;on's plans? For

21 instance, the San Clemerte plan.

22 A Yes. I didn't mean to be obtuse in my last

23 question. You asked me as a matter of law is the State

() 24 Office of Emergency Services doing something,. and I don't

25 know what laws pertain to what they do or don't do.
|

O

:

l
'

. _ _ _ . .
<
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{)7 1 Q Oh, okay. I'm sorry. That was my fault. I

2 didn't mean to start getting into a legal discussion about

3 it. Are they performing an on-going review of the state
O

4 and local response plans?

5 A Yes. And the extent of that review, I have

6 seen letters of comment on the current plans.

7 Q Okay. Then beginning on page 14, at the bottom

8 of the page you talk about the recommendation of Southern

9 California Edison of the emergency planning zone to the

10 various state and local jurisdictions. What was the

11 recommendation of Edison Company?

12 A With regard to the size end shape of the plume

- 13 exposure pathway emergency planning zone, our recommendation

(n(_/ 14 was that the appropriate zone for the purposes of meeting

15 NRC regulations was the zone that I have described in some

I6 detail in my prepared testimony and which is shown in the

17 exhibit behind the witness chair outlined and enhanced with

18 the green line.

19 Q What part, if any, did the risk assessment type

20 scenarios in WASH 1400, were they used in your determination

21 of the emergency planning zone?

12 A What my testimony says is that we considered and

23 made judgments about whether or not the San Onofre project

() 24 represents some greater risk in some sense because of its

25 site here in California and because of the circumstances

O
.

1

. , . _ . _ _ _ . - . _ . _ _ __ . . . _ . ,_ , _ _ . _ _ . . _ . . -. . . . - . . _



9184

r^g 8 1 surrounding the site or circumstances dealing with the
V

2 reactor plant design. The reactor safety study, at least )

3 that portion that relates to pressurized water reactors,

O-
4 which is what I campared it to, uses a model 1000 megawatt

5 electric reactor and it uses a model design which was the

6 Westinghouse Salem plant. Now the San Onofre Units 2 and

7 3 design differs in some respects from the Westinghouse

8 design. We looked at all of the factors that relate to

9 reliability of the safety systems, inventory of fission

10 Products and, given that the Salem design predated the San

11 Onofre design and given that during the course of construc-

12 tion there were many new requirements to enhance reliability

- 13 and improve safety of the design of nuclear power plants --

() 14 and we could point to several specific cases of that -- we

15 concluded that if one were to perform a probabilistic

16 risk analysis, that is to say, the probabilities of going

17 down all the accident sequences, event trees considered in
~ ~ ~ ~

18 the reactor safety study, we believe as a matter oI~ judgment

19 that you would come out with lower probabilities of the

20 various core melt accidents.

21 Now the significance of that is that the spectrum

22 of core melt accidents, in addition to other accidents, was

C in the rulemaking process23 considered generically by the C

() 24 to establish the current regulations that cal.1 for this

25 planning zone of about 10 miles in radius. So that one

k

. - .- - _. . - . . __
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9 1 factor is significant and we were able to make comparative

2 judgments as to that shich was considered by the commission

3 or the basis of what the commission considered, and that

#
4 situation which we had before us right here.

5 Q So did you rely on a consultar.t, for instance,

6 Mr. Woodard, as part of your determination based on one of

7 these probabilistic risk assessment analyses in your

8 determination of where the EPZ should be drawn?

9 A The truth of the matter is I consulted and

10 discussed with not so much Mr. Woodard because his expertise

11 is off-site consequences given the event, the accident

12 event, but with Dr. Bley, who is also with Pickard, Lowe &

~ 13 Garrick, and I discussed it with a number of people in the

'( j 14 Southern California Edison nuclear engineering staff who are

15 knowledgeable in this area. And I myself am quite knowledge-

16 able in this area. I did not put this in my prepared testi-
'

17 mony but, for the information of the Board, I previously

-18 supervised the Edison Company's nuclear analysis division

19 of the company and was responsible for reactor physics

20 analysis, fuel management analysis, radiological consequences

21 of accidents, environmental effects of the operation of

12 nuclear power plants, and as such. So I have a considerable

23 background in this area and, frankly, I can make all these

(} 24 judgmenus personally myself without cons 11 ting anybody.

25 0 Well, with respect to the part of your testimony

O

\

!

1
- . . - . . - . . . . _ _ ._
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(G^T
10 1 on page 16, beginning line 8, you refer to comparison of

2 the -- based on a PRA, I believe, and you say that this was

fs 3 a factor which you used in determining the size of the EPZ.
U

4 Did you -- when did you make that determination? Was that

5 before or after you recommended where the zone would be to

6 the local agencies?

7 A These judgments were made prior to the prepara-

8 tion of the current plans that you see before you and in the

9 process of defining what the objectives are to be achieved.

10 Q Okay. Thank you. Then you go on in your testi-

11 mony to describe particular portions of the EPZ which didn't

12 conform exactly to the ten miles and you go on and describe

- 13 where it dips in and dips out. Can I ask you what is the

(nv 14 extended EPZ?

15 A Do I use that term in my testimony? I don't

16 think I do.

17 Q I don't think you do.
p - - -.

| 18 A Okay. The Board has heard the testimony of Mr.

19 Brothers, and Mr. Brothers was retained, selected by me and

20 retained by me and his work was directed by me in at least

21 insofar as defining the criteria, what we wanted from his

12 work. We in this discussion that has taken place, this

25 process of dealing and meeting and working with local govern-

() 24 ment, we identified certain planning elements. that we

25 considered to be acove and beyond that required by the NRC

[)ss

- . . . . - _ . . ,,, _ . . . ..
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() 11 1 regulations, including a desire, a local desire to get a

2 head start, let's say on the planning to meet both the state

{) requirements that are coming out and, most particularly, to3

4 include evacuation of all of San Juan Capistrano and the

5 community of Dana Point. So I directed Mr. Brothers to

6 make an explicit determination of the time factor required

7 for evacuation, an evacuation time estimate study, to focus

8 not only on the ten mile population or let's say the

9 population within the bound ry that we have so defined here,

10 since it is not exactly precisely ten miles, but very

11 nearly so. And to include a section of an extended area,

12 which he chose to call " extended zone". And that includes

13 Dana Point and San Juan Capistrano.

(k' 14 And perhaps it would serve to clear the air that

15 when you ask questions and when the Board asks questions

16 about what is the plume exposure pathway EPZ, and mostly

17 you are lawyers, you are looking at a very precise legal

I 18 definition under the regulations. And when you ask the
~

19 same question to a local government official he is thinking

20 the planning zone, where have.I done the planning. And I

21 think with that small explanation I think that helps to

22 explain why some of the confusion has arisen.

23 ///

! () 24

25

O,t

. _ . - - - - . . - - - - - - . . - -, - - _ . _ . .. , - -. .
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|T.15 le 1 Nou, I was very carticularly interested to ensure

(]) 2 that the inclusion of these additional areas for explicit

! 3 evacuation and the time estinates associated with it did

() 4 not impair or have a significantly deletirious effect on

5 the ability to evacuate people within 10 miles.

6 And Mr. Brother's study hus verified that the

7 constraints, the factors that imnede the overall evacuation

8 time within 10 miles relates to the lining up of cars and

9 so forth gaining access to the freeway, and is not in any

10 way affected by cars further down the line, particularly

11 from t he area of San Juan Capistrano, gaining access to the

12 road.

13 There is some inpact, let's say, of the Dana
)7

14 Point evacuation on the overall, but I think that -- you

15 know, it's all considered, and the decision-makers know whan

16 the effect is of these additional ponulation areas evacuating

-

17 as well.

18 JUDGE KELLEY: I have reached the tentative

19 conclusion that the only difference between the extended EPZ

20 and the EPZ is siren coverage. Is that a fair assessment?

21 MITNESS PILMER: That is exactly the only

22 distinction, in terms of the planning that's been nade and --

23 JUGDGE KELLEY: Yes, in terms of what gets done.

24 WI' NESS PIL:ER: Yes. I've testified to that

O
25 in my prepared testiraony.

- - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
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|2 I JUD'3E KELELY: Yes.

2 BY MR. McCLUNG:

3 0. But for purposes of t'le recommendation that you.

O 4 made to the loca jurisdictions, you didn't inc ude the

5 extended EPZ in the -- as for what the emergency planning

6 cone should be, is that corrc.ct?

7 A. That is correct, for what the emergency planning

8 zone -- for the purposes of meeting the NRC regulations,

9 should be. Now, from the perspective of a local government

10 planner, he's looking at evolving state requirements, he's

11 looking at federal requirements, and the distinction becomes

12 verv diffuse.

13 c. Well, let me ask you this. Nhy didn't you just(v
14 include San Juan Capistrano and Dana Point in your EPZ?

15 Then we wouldn't have any confusion.

16 A. There really is no confusion, as far as I'm

17 concerned, and as far as-I know, on their cart. The -- what

18 was decided to do, which they agreed to at this time, and we

19 may do other things in the future, but at this time we've

20 -greed to have a 15-minute alerting and notification cana-

21 bility throughout that zone of where it's rc.4 aired by the

2' NRC, but not beyond that. Other than that, there is no

'
23 distinction.

24 0. Nell, for instance, for purposes of public

O 25 information, isn't it true that the public infornation

.
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I3 pamphlet was not mailed to the people in the extended EPZ?

(} 2 A I am so informed, but I'n atso inforned that it --

3 that was due to a -- an oversight, due -- it's a difficult

(]) 4 job to get all these addresses and cip codes and so on and

so forth. And there were mistakes made. It was the intentior

6 of the company to distribute it throughout that area back

7 31 June,
e

I And it has had follow-up activities to verify

9 that it has been done, and it was determined that it was not

10 done in those areas. And corrective actions have been taken.

11
- G I understand that. And I don't mean to suggest

that that was intentional, that it wasn't done. But what I

I3~

((_s) want to ask you, isn't that a confusing -- or didn't that

14 probably arise because of.the distinction between the two

15 cones?
,

Ib A No. In fact, if you'll look at that namphlet

17 that was mailed out, there's a clear denarkation in the

18 subsectors that are included in the instructions as to whera

19 people evacuate and so forth. There is a different defined

'O group that's the San Juan Capistrano population on the*

21 northwesterly direction of San Juan Creek. And there's yet

'2 another distinction for the Dana Point grou,.~

\~
23 They go to different places. And I don't see

24
how there could be any problen.n''

25
0 Okay. Let ne ask you this then. In light of

- . . _ _ . _ _ _ - _ _ _ , . _ . _ . . _- . _. . _ _ _ - - - _ _ _ _-
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4 1 the NUREG guidelines and the regulations which ask that you

O 2 texe iato ooasiaeretioa various reotore, oae or waion is ene

3 political suodivisions, in drawing the original EPZ, why

O 4 dian't you arew ene orisine1 re:: erouaa sea 3uea ce9 sereao2i

5 A. We didn't think it was necessary. They asked

6 for it. They wanted to include that as cart of the plans.,

I' We saw no conflict with NRC regulations, and we've supoorted

8 that.

9 G Of the plans -- you're familiar with all'the

10 exhibits, which are the state and local emergency resnonse

11 plans?

12 A. Yes, I an.

13 n And the maps in each one. Each one contains

14 a map setting forth the emergency planning zone, isn't that

15 correct?

16 A. No, I don't -- that is not correct. Many of the

17 plans don't have any re'ference to the zones. For exannle,

18 City of San Clemente is entirely within 10 miles. It was

19 never any subject of any interest to then whatsoever. The

20 State Parks -- it's not of any interest to then. I don't --

21 I believe there is a nap in the Cann Pendleton plan. There
|

22 may be maps various olaces.

23 G Okay. Thank you very nuch.

24 Uith respect to the yellow phone -- let's forget

25 | about emergency planning zones. I'm tired of them. Let's

_ - . . . . . - . . , _ . - - _ . . - . - - . .- - - - - . - _ _ .- -_.
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5 Let's go on to something else and get out of here. !1 hat's

- the withstand capability of the yellow phone system?

3 A Withstand to what?
A
\Y 0 Earthquakes.

5 A I don't knou.

6
G Is that a -- is there any consideration, did you

7 make any planning considerations for what you would do in

8 the event that the yellow phone, which seems to be'such a

9
crucial link between the various people, were to be cut off

10
because of something like an earthquake?

11 A Yes. The yellow phone is not crucial. It's

12
very helpful, it's very useful, but it's not crucial or

(I ) critical. Basicatly the answer to your question is that

14 there are a number of other means of conmunication. And

15
there's been much testimony here -- perhaos if you could

16
| focus on some aspect of that, you know; we've described
|

_ -

17
radios --

1

! 18
4 Mell, for purposes of initial notification of

|
19

local response organi=ations, and let's say the yellow

20 phone was out, what would you -- how would you notify people?
21

A Under our current plans and orocedures, and it's

22
(s) described in the emergency plan for Units 2 and 3, we would

| use a procedure where the control room ooerator or the watch
'4

(]) engineer communicates with the energy control center with~

! 25
which he has to communicate anyway, anytime there's an'

___ . _ . _ _ _ _ __ ___ . _ . ._. - - ._
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6 1 emergency, and he would instruct him to use his orocedure

() 2 for notifying off-site agencies because his phone didn't work.

3 And the energy control center has a detailed

() 4 procedure, very explicit, very clear, very sinnle to follow

5 procedure, listing all the telehpone numbers of- the organiza-

6 tions that need to be contacted. The energy control center

7 has the initial notification forms so that we're all using

8 the same pre-planned forns.

9 And in some respects, they even directi_ have the

10 home telephone numbers of a long list of ceonle in at least

11 one jurisdiction to call in the event there's nobody there.

12 I'm referring to the State Parks. I think you heard Mr.

13 stowe testify that the Edison Company had the home nhone(r~g)
14 nunbers of all the key officials there.

15 R How does the energency control nter conmunicate,

16 or what -- with the emergency onerations facility?

17 A The emerger.cy operations facility I interpret to

18 be our operation at the San Clemente Fire Department. And
:

19 the energency control center communicates with.then by

i 20 ordinarv telephone,
i

21 4 Nhat provision would they have for communication
|

22 in the event that the regular telephone were not operational?

O-s
23 A If the regular telephone were not in operation,

24 and if the yellow telenhone were not in oneration?t -

25 a yes,

l

t
. . , . . .. -. ...-.. . .,..,.. - .. - - . _ - .. ,. .-
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7 1 A Okay. We have two add: 'ional dedicated ring-down-

() 2 circuits from the power plant to the San Clemente Fire

3 Department.

() 4 g Okay. Maybe --

5 A The significance of that is this. Let's say --

6 I believe you'.re posing an earthquake scenario that knocks

7 out all the -- or such a disruntion that the switchboard is
.

8 jammed and all the commercial phone Ji.nes going into San

9 Clemente -- it's just not feasible to get traffic through

10 it because the phone lines are all tied up.

11 There's a finite number of calls that they can

12 handle at one time. We have, count;ng the yellow phone, we

((]) 13 have three different direct telephone lines to San Clemente

14 Fire Department that is totally indenendent of the commercial

15 telephone system.

16 G Explain to me, niease, the way that the ODAC

| 17 coordinates with the on-site radiation monitoring operation.

18 A The ODAC, which is the Off-site Dose Assessment

19 Center, is first of all in direct communications by means

20 of one of these ring-down telehpone circuits, with the on-

21 site dose assessment function being perforned in the

22 technical support center.-}ss

23 Now, the -- the casic coordination is this. The

rs 24 plant operators and the technical staff that responds to an
'%sh

15 emergency at San Onofre, they're evaluating in-plant

_ . _ __ _ _ _ _ . , _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ , - - . - _ - _ _ .-. _ _ - __
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8 1 instrumentation, and making judgments, making calculations,

(]) 2 and making projections, as to what radiological consequences

3 may be occurring, or might occur, of f-site.

() 4 You've heard Mr. Barr testify as to how they do

5 that. And they -- and additionally, send off-site radiation

6 monitoring teams out when it's appropriate for monitoring

7 on-site around the site perimeter or in tne immediate

8 environs off-site.

9 Mow, all of that data, all of those judgments,

10 all of those calculations, are communicated to the off-site

11 dose assessment center, where there are additional technical

12 people, which may take a variety of activities. One of them,

13 for example, would be verification of the assessments and
)

[

| 14 calculations made by the on-site group.

15 That would be the extent of it, if there were

16 ' no off-site releases occurring at the time that -- in which

17 case there'd be no point in sending out radiation monitoring

18 teams.

19 If there are radiation monitoring teams going

20 off-site, there's no point in sending the same tean from the

21 generacing station and a team from the ODAC group to the

22 same location for the same purnose. So the coordination

23 would be to make the best utilization of the resources to,

24 shall we say, map and locate the plume, verify projecteds

d
25 radiation levels, activities of that sort.

- _ . ~ _ . . _ . --_ ._, ,__ _ ~. ___ _ . _ . ~ . _ . . - .
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9 I All data of a radiation consequence nature is )

2 freely conmunicated between the two centers. They serve as i

3 a backup to one another, and they work cooperatively. And

4 that's what coordination means.

5 n. Okay. Referring to your Exhibit DFP-2, which

6 is Exhibit No. 142, on the first page of that exhibit, at the

7 last line, you say, "These plans and procedures are under

8 final review and will be imnlemented prior to fuel load of

9 SONGS-2." What do you mean by that?

10 A. What I mean by that is the following. What I

11 have included in this exhibit are a number of very detailed

12 technical procedures. Thev are a comolete set of procedures

(Ch 13 that govern all of the technical activities of the Off-site

14 Dose Assessment Center.

15 Those procedures have recently been written, and

16 they supplant or replace the methods that were in use in the

17 May 13th drill, to make it more explicit and to -- you

18 know, achieve a better state of readiness and orenaredness on

19 the part of this ODAC activity. These -- these -- the ODAC
,

|

20 function consists primarily of Edison personnel. But it also

21 includes people who are not Edison personnel. For example,

22 the health physicist from Orange County, Decartment of

23 Health Services, and we would exoect after a period of time

24 to have people from the State Radiological Health Section
i

I
25 of the State Deoartment of Health Services there, as well.'

.. - - - . - . . - . - - . - - - - . - .



_.-

,

!

l
|

9197
10 1 And there are other functions that are not of

() 2 such a technical nature, such as technical illustrators,

3 people that preoare summaries, and that, that don't require

A
(_) 4 that kind of technical background. When I say "imolemented",

5 I mean where these procedures will be final, they'll be

6 agreed upon by all people that report to the center, and

7 the people will have been trained in the use of these proced-

8 ures.

9 G Well, when is fuel load?

10 A Well, the statement " fuel load" refers to the

11 current company schedule on fuel load for San onofre Unit 2,

12 which is October 15th.

{{]) 13 G So we could interpret that to mean prior to

14 October 15th?

15 A Yes.

16 q Turning then to your Exhibit No. 143, which is

17 entitled, " Emergency Response Plans for the Ingestion

18 Pathway Zone", you also have a reference in the first page

19 of that that this will be implemented prior to fuel load.

20 You mean by October 15th?

21 A Yes. That has the same significance. May I

22 please add parenthetically that throughout Orange County and

23 San Diego County their plan already covers ingestion pathway

24 emergency resnonse planning. But that's not the entire zone.

25 The entire zone also picks up Riverside County, San Bernardino
I

|

|

.-. .. - - . . - . _ _ - . . . . - - - -- ,__ . - _ _ . , ___ -
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11 1 County and Los Angeles County. So the statement will reoly

("') 2 to all jurisdictions on that date.
v

3 G Uhat is the state ingestion pathway plan?

(} 4 A Part of the state effort in its effort of uograd-

5 ing emergency response plans has included definition, again,

6 of an ingestion pathway emergency planning zone. And for

7 the purposes of meeting state requirements, it is the same

8 as the requirements of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

9 It encompasses precisely the same jurisdictions that we have

10 here, and no more. I thought I'd clarify that. It doesn't

11 go out to Kansas or anything like that.

12 The -- I'm sorry, I lost my train of thought for

13 a moment. The lead state agency in the prenaration of that

14 plan is the -- what's termed the Radiologic Health Section

15 of the State Department of Health Services. Headquarters

16 are in Sacramento. And there are setellite or district

17 offices at various places throughout the state. -

18 They have drafted a olan, in fact they -- they

19 I amcloyed the services of a reoutable consultant in that

20 myself and my company have worked actively with the State

21 Department of Health Services in the development of that plan.

_ 22 Me've worked directly with their consultants. We've worked

23 directly with the responsible officials, and we have

24 corresponded frequently, attended meetings together, and
| (")
| N/

25 worked to develoo a -- you know, workable relationshio in

:

. _ _ - _ . -. _ -_. -.-. __- - -- .- -. .
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12 1 this regard. s

O 2 rhat -- I m not certein es to the 1eee1 etendine

3 of that draft plan. In fact, whether or not it's encomoassed

O -

4 in the seme meenine of the 91en thet the stete office ce

5 Emergency Services is oreparing. Frankly, I don't think so.

6 But it is, in my judgment, anyway, precisely the sort of

7 thing that the NRC is looking for in the way of ingestion

8 pathway planning.

9 And I would say, even though the document is in

10 draft form, as far as knowing what to do in the ingestion

11 pathway, it's really in effect right now. I make the state-

12 ment about fuel load because I want to have completed some

13 specific and definite training and explicit sharing of

14 procedures and policy documents in our case.

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

220
23

24
.
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()T16ki t Q Beginning in June 3rd of this year, and con-

2 tinuing to the present day, could you outline for me any

3 and all meetings which people from the Applicants' staff{}
4 regarding emergency planning have had with the Federal Emer-

5 gency Management Agency at the regional or national level?

6 A Well, I will testify to those that I know about.

7 You recall some time in June there was a -- I think it was

8 termed informal discovery process. Chairman Kelley dropped

9 in, I would say, to that.

10 JUDGE KELLEY: Fair statement.

11 WITNESS PILMER: Sorry for that artful repre-

12 sentation.

13 JUDGE KELLEY: It is right on point.

14 WITNESS PILMER: Mr. Nauman was present with

15 his council at that discovery process, and we met with

16 Mr. Naumann and his supervisor, Mr. Sanguina, who incidental--

17 ly is the chairman of the regional assistance committee,

18 ~ formed for the~ purposes of-reviewing San Onofre plans. Later

19 on that day - into the evening, and the purpose of that

|
20 meeting was to discuss the significance and the meaning,

21 frankly, of the interim findings. We went into that meeting

12 prepared with what we thought was a diagnostic, if you will,

23 of their report, and it -- and with .ninor revision is veryt

l'h much the same as that which is -- which has just today been( ) 24
,

25 submitted here into evidence, our Exhibit Number 144, the
i

,

LJ
|

.

- , __ v , _ - . , ,_ . _ . - - . , , , . . , . .



---

9201

k2 y K. P. Baskin letter to Brian Grimes of June 26th, enclosures

to that.2

3
Now, that is our understanding of the meaning

J and significance of the FEMA interim findings, and we met'

4

with them for the purposes of getting their reaction to it,
5

and seeing that they agreed that they -- that we were -- that6

we understood what they thought we should do, and so thaty

we could, you know, take appropriate action. So that is
8

one meeting. And I attended that meeting.
9

BY MR. MC CLUNG: -

10

Q What was the date of that meeting?
3y

A I don't know the dates. The same date as the --
32

JUDGE KELLEY: June 17th.
13

WITNESS PILMER: That sounds --
T4

JUDGE KELLEY: -- 1981.
15

WITNESS PILMER: -- right.
16

JUDGE KELLEY: There were representatives of
37

the Intervenors. I don't remember, Mr. McClung, were yod ~
13

there?19

MR. MC CLUNG: Yeah, I was there. If that is --
20

I thought he was referring to two separate things. Maybe
21

I wasn't following the train of his question. Was that
22

entire discussion abcat the discovery session? I thought
23

you started --24

WITNESS PILMER: I only pointed -- with reference
25

: .

- _ _ _ _ . - _ _ - . _ . . . __ , _ _ _ _ _ _ , _ _ _ . - _ _ - . . - - . - _ _ _ , . _
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,

1
to the chronology, it occurred on the same day, immediately

{ } k3
2 following --

3 MR. MC CLUNG: It is a different meeting, Judge

O
4 Kelley.

5 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. But just for clarity there

6 was this discovery session called by the Soard which includec

7 a number of people including representatives of the Applicant

8 and representatives of the Intervenors, including -- I don't

9 remember if Ms. Gallagher --

MR. MC CLUNG: I was there.
10

JUDGE KELLEY: -- was there or not.
31

MR. MC CLUNG: Mrs. Gallagher was there too.
12

JUDGE KELLEY: Mr. Wharton was there. And then
. 33

14 following that, you met separately with the FEMA people

15 about --

WITNESS PILMER: Yes.16

JUDGE KELLEY: -- their --
17

18 WITNESS PILMER: It was the same day, but later

19 on that day.

20 JUDGE KELLSY: Okay.

21 NITNESS PILMER: And we did that, I might add,

at the urging of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission Staff12
I that suggested -- it was pretty obvious to us anyway, but it23

was suggested that we get together with FEMA and, you know,(]) 24

25 try to be more specific as to what things needed to be done.

. . . . _ -
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k4 So we did that at that time for that purpose.(} i

And then there was -- and Mr. Nauman was in town. That was
2

3 the only time he was available to meet. That is why we met

(v-}
4 then. Later on that week, I believe, there was a second

meeting in San Francisco in the regional headquarters, which5

I also attended, and other people from the Company, and also6
.

7 present at that meeting were representatives from the state
Office of Emergency Services, including the associate direc-8 ,

9 tor, Mr. Kerns, and others, and also a member of the NRC

Staff, Mr. Kunehiro. And that occurred -- I think it was
10

the latter part of the same week, so those are two meetings
33

in June that-I attended, and the only other meeting that I
12

can recall in my mind that I participated in was one of our
13

interjurisdictional planning committee meetings in which'

34

Mr. Nauman attended. And he attended for the purpose of
15

finding out what we were doing, if indeedi. local government16

is taking in earnest the suggestions that FEMA had posed for17
_

_

'

18 improvements.

I have hcd no other meetingsethat I can thinh
19

of within any other FEMA member, and I cannot really direct-20

ly testify to any other meetings, but if there were any21

22 others, I think it is fair to characterize there are very

few, maybe one or two meetings in Washington that I had23

')( 24 nothing to do with.

BY MR. MC CLUNG: I was just going ta ask you
25

'

.

. . . . _. - . _ _ - _
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1 one question about that. So then, are you familiar with a
[ } k5

2 meeting on June 10th, where I think vice president Dietch

3 met with J...E. Dickey, the director of the Radiological

O
4 Emergency Preparedness Division of FEMA to discuss the inter-

5 im findings? Are you familiar with that meeting?

6 A I am not. I did not attend that meeting.

7 Mr.. MC CLUNG: I have no further questions.

3 JUDGE 4 KELLEY: Fine. Why don't we take a short

9 ten minute break, and then when we -- the one item of signi-

10 ficant pending business is to hear from counsel on the issues

11 I have referred to earlier abont low power motion, and we

12 can wrap up here by 6:30, I would think. So11et's break un-

13 til five after six, or thereabouts. Off the record.

() (Whereupon, a briefrrecess was taken.)14

is ///

16

17
..

- 18
^

~

19

20

21

22

23

) 24

| 25
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O T17 3 JUDGE KELLEY: We are back on the record. Cross-
kl

2 examination by the Staff.

CROSS EXAMINATION
/') 3
U

4 BY MR. HOEFLING:

5 0 would you get Applicants! Exhibit Number.144,

6 please, Mr. Pilmer?

7 A I have..itchere.

8 Q Page two of the cover letter, the second and

9 third lines down, the sentence reads, those items shown with

10 a completien date on or before October 15th, 1981, are con-

ridered to be sufficient to yield favorable FEMA findings.
33

12 Whose judgment was that?

A The basis for that statement are the fairly in-
.. 13

(e('/) tensive discussions that we had with Mr. Sanguina and14

Mr. Nauman at the time that I described a little while ago,
15

16 June 17th, I believe it was, in which we showed them this

17 action plan and we discussed in depth each and every item on
1

. and tEey said -- they told us at that time
| 13 that. action plan,
!

that that is it. That'is a complete list. If you do those
| 19

20 things, then at least -- and I presume they are speaking as

21 the regional FEMA office, and I will grant you it was an
informal communication, but they told us that that is it.22

.

That is what you need to do, and if you do those things,23

(') 24 the Regional Office would give a clean bill of health, and

that is the basis af the statement in this letter. That was25

:
|

_ __ _. _ _ _ . . _ _ _ _ _ _ , . _ , , , . . _ _ _ _ _ - . _ . . - . - _ . . . _ . _ - . _ _ _
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1 an understanding that we have had, resulting from those
~} k2

discussions and our own diagnostic of the FEMA finding report.2

3 Q Thank you. Now, considaring that this document
gs
'd

4 was prepared on June 26th, 1981, and I am referring not only

5 to the cover letter, but to the attachments, it is your be-

6 lief that it remains accurate today?

7 A Yes, that is still -- if you mean -- there are

8 no new items added to the list.

9 Q No, 1 mean is the document still accurate in

10 every respect with respect to schedule completion: dates,

13 et cetera?

A It is with a couple of exceptions that I will
12

describe here. There are some scheduled completion dates
- 13

((<-) shown on enclosure two to that letter, with earlier comple-14_

15 tion dates than October 15th. And --

16 Q Could you run those --

17 A -- many of those have been completed now, but
~ ~

la they were in fact not in every case completed at the date

19 shown there. Those were target dates.

20 Q So are you saying that --

21 A I can go through every one one at a time if you

22 like?

23 Q Would you do that? That would be helpful.

('l 24 A All right. The first one, number one, says
V

25 develop SOPS covering the following topics, and there "? lows-

-w

. ._. ._. - - - - . - -. - .. -. .-
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( } k3 1 a list of some topics. And it sail first draft, July 15th

2 we in fact were ahead of schedule on that date and we pre-

3 pared first drafts and we distributed them to all of thef-

N3)r

4 affected local jurisdictions and: the . planning committee that

5 has been described, I believe a week or more before that date .

6 Final drafts.says September the first. Final drafts are in

7 the typewriter right now. There are intermediate drafts

8 that aren't shown on the schedule, so we are a day or two

9 behind on that intermediate date, implement October first.

10 I would amend that to say October 15th,

11 Item number two, obtain equipment required to

12 carry out radiation monitoring functions. Survey types and

-. 13 quantities of equipment actually in place July 15th. :That

(f)(_/ 14 was done Initiate procurement of equipment shortages

15 October -- excuse me, August the first. And there is not

16 a date shown there for delivery of the equipment, but we con ~

17 sider that all radiation monitoring equipment or related

18 equipment has in fact been ordered, and the current delivery

19 schedules call for the last item of such equipment to be

20 delivered, I believe, around September 10th, and the train-:

21 ing -- I am jumping ahead, but just parenthetically, train-

22 ing:.in the use of that equipment will occur also, and much

23 of it has already been done.

24 The third one, develop additional communications()
25 capability, expand the interagency phone netw .rk to include

d

v
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k4 1 the California Highway Fatrol, 'J.ows a July 15th date. That!

(
2 was not done by July 15th, but has been done, and that work

3 is complete at the present time.-

4 Provide speaker monitors at the EOCs. That also

5 was not done on the date shown, but has been completed.

6 Provide teletype messaga system network between

7 all principle centers, and the meaning of the word centers

8 there are emergency operations centers, and we are working

9 on a schedule for that to be in place by October 15th, and

to you heard Mr. Poorman testify to that.

11 D, provide additional communication circuits.

12 Those are circuits that relate to the internal workings of

13 the emergency operation facility and the ODAC function, and

() 14 that is on the schedule shown there, October 15th.

15 Four, make physical improvements to the EOF.

16 The first.one is identify possible improvements by September

17 the first. That was.done well in advance of the date shown
~ ~ ~~

18 there

19 Obtain agreements. We have that.

20 Construct the improvements. That is engoing

21 right now and I fully expect that will be done well in ad-
12 vance of that, probably within the next couple of weeks.

21 Fifth one, install sirens and there was indi-

24 c.ated here a phased completion date, and without going(}
25 through item by item, the sirens are all 100 percent completad.

f)a
.

8

- - - _ , , - r ., - -- --
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k5 1 At the time this was written we were -- we had three or four |
)

2 specific sirens for which the landowners had not given agree-

3 ments in those and that was holding us up, and that is why

() 1

4 there wereia couple of them shown much later, but that was '

5 all resolved. )

6 Six, accomplish training and use of.new and

7 existing procedures, facilities and equipment. The first

8 one is develop a training program. That was done. We have

9 a comprehensive training program outlined at this time.

10 Develop training material. This has been -- this

11 is in progress and it is essentially complete at this time,

12 but will be -- a week or so or two later than the September

13 first date shown tnere.

((G_) 14 C, conduct training and drills, short term pro-

15 gram shows the period of September first through October 15tt ,

16 and that training program will be starting a little later

17 than shown there, but we are endeavoring to get it all in

la prior to October 15th, and I don'' t have any reason right now-

,

|
'

19 to think that we can' t do that.

20 And the seventh one is on the public information

21 program. At the time of the FEMA review they did not see

22 any evidence of any public information program. For example,

23 no pamphlets had been mailed out, and so forth. And the

24 schedule under there indicates that it is ongoing. At the
(~)N

t

\_.i

25 time of this letter the first set of public education

(

_. ._ . . - - . ..
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( ) k6 1 program had been mailed. That consisted of the pamphlet,

2 and there are several other elements of that program to

3 which Mr. Cramer has testified, and it says initial program

4 complete by September first. Just what is shown on the

5 schedule here is somewhat vague. In our discussions with

6 FEMA at the time they, felt really that that one pamphlet in

7 and of itself was satisfactory for the purposes of the state-

8 ment on page two of the cover letter. That is to say, yield

9 favorable findings.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17
_ _

18

19

20
|
| 21

i
' 22

23

() 24

25

.. . _ _ . - .. .-
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T.18 lc I G Thank you. Now, I'd like you to consider the

A 2y following. We have a situation at the SoliGS site, we have

3 a large number of cleasure craft in the water off the site.

O 4 And we have en unusue1 evene which esce1etes throueh en

5 alert, site emergency and general emergency. Could you

6 explain who would notify the people in the boats, when they

7 would be notified, and what they would be told?

8 A. I'd be happy to. Starting with an unusual event,

9 every emergency response jurisdiction is notified of that.

10 That does not trigger any emergency response. It is

11 an informational bulletin, as yo'1 know. Then your scenario

12 progresses to an alert condition. Upon alert we again

( 13 notify them that we have an emergency, that we have classi-

14 fied as an alert.

15 And the response to that is that all emergency

16 response personnel are placed in some stand-by status. And

17 at the option of various jurisdictions ~, they activate or

18 partially activate their emergency oneration centers.

|
19 One of those centers that gets partially acti-

20 vated is that of the San Diego County Office of Disaster
(

[ 21 Preparedness. And in their alerting and coming to stand-by
|

| 22 status, they notify the commanding officer of the Coastp
di

23 Guard Station in San Diego. And the Coast Guard in fact

24 sends a liaison officer from the Coast Guard Station to the

25 emergency operations center at the -- of the San Diego

|
|

|

|
- . , - . - . _ _ _ _ - . - - _ - .- . . - . .- - . . _ . .
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:2 I County Office of Disaster Preparedness.

2 Upon declaration of a site emergency, all

3 emergency operation centers are fully activated, including

4 the EOF, the ODAC team comes into play, all centers are fully

5 mobilized and ready to respond to any emergency.

6 Upon declaration of a general emergency, the

7 directive is issused to the commanding officer of the Coast

8 Guard Station in San Diego to establish, to clear all

9 traffic from the -- within a 10-mile radius of San Onofre.

10 He i'ssues a notice to mariners advising of a potential

11 radiological hhzard in the area.

12 He establishes by means of aircraft and seagoing

(( ) 13 vessels at his disposal -- he clears all seagoing traffic.

14 He establishes a -- essentially what can be thought of as

15 a quarantine zone and prevents the navigation of any vessel

16 in that area.
._.

17 We will have a witness here tomorrow, Mr. Hunt,

18 the manager of the San Diego County Office of Disaster

19 Preparedness, and ha can perhaps exclain more fully the-

20 process. But that is the plan.

21 G Couple of questions. You indicated that at a

22
{'.; general emergency a directive would be issued to the Coast

23 Guard commander. Who would issue that directive?
_

('S 24 A That would come from -- oerhans diractive is
(_/

-

25 a -- has some hidden legal meaning, and I shouldn't have

. - - - . - . . . - . -.- - - .- , , .- . - . - . -_
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3 I used it. But that comes from the San Diego County Office

O 2 of Disester eregeredness. It comes from the cecieion-meking

3 body there, and it is, as you've heard so much yesterday,

#
in the form of a recommendation.

5 The Coast Guard has the responsibility for

6 search and rescue missions and other safety-related measures

7 within the territorial waters of the United States, and in

8 this case in the international waters that comorise that 10-

9 mile zone. And I don't know where the limits of their

N authority lie, but that is the resnonsible organization in

11 government that does that.

12 0 How would the Coast Guard clear these vessels?

13 Do you have some idea whether they'd use aircraft or sea

I4 craft?

15 A. They have relatively small ocean-going vessels

16 in their Oceanside station. Their main headquarters are in

17
| San Diego. They have search and rescue helicopters. I

18 understand they have pilots on stand-by at all times. They

19 ) have larger vessels. And if -- if they need assistance,

20 there is another Coast Guard station in the Long Beach-San

21 redro area, from which they can coordinate and get additional

22 Coast Guard resources.p)
%.

23 And I believe under certain circumstances I

M
( can't precisely define, if they need even additional'

25 resources, they can get that from the Navy. From my own

. . . _ . -. . _ ._ _ . .- . -
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4 1 experience as a naval oIficer, I an somewhat familiar with

O 2 search eaa rescue miesioas. xmd titis comes im exect1v the
3 same category.

O 4 nad 1 xmow of 1metemces to my owa exeeriemce im

5 which we engaged in such missions with the Coast Guard.

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

'(D;
.

14

15

16
-

_ . ..
-

17

18

19

20

21

O'

22

"
O

25
. .
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.
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- tpl9-1 y Q Do you have a time estimate for how long it

2 would take to clear that ten mile EPZ?

3 A I believe the most expeditious means is by air-

O
4 craft and it would be done in a matter of the aircraft

5 arriving on the scene, within probably 15 to 20 minutes.

6 I can't precisely define that. And then of course,

7 depending upon the nature and the quantity of you describe

g small craft pleasure boats, it may take them, you know, an

9 hour or two to navigate from the zone. It may take longer.

10 It depends upon what they are in and what their capability

ij is.

12 MR. HOEFLING: That's all our questions, Mr.

13 Chairman.
-

() 14 JUDGE KELLEY: Thank you.

15 JUDGE HAND: Mr. Filmer, you have been very,

16 very much involved in all of this emergency planning. Were

17 you the one who was responsible for obtaining Mr. Brothers
~

is to make the analyses that_he made? Was that something that-

19 related directly to you?

20 WITNESS PILMER: Yes, it was. We received a

21 letter, a generic letter from the NRC Staff back in December

22 of 1979 directing that such an evacuation time study be done.

23 I endeavored to locate appropriately qualified consultants

24 that could do that type of work and contracted with Wilbur
(~ }

25 Smith & Associates to do that work.

O

8

- . _ . - - - ~ , . . . . . _ , , , , , -
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2 1 JUDGE HAND: Fine. Did that initial reg,uest
2 include the matter of earthquakes or did that come a little

3 later timewise?,

4 WITNESS PILMER: The earthquake matter came

5 much later.

6 JUDGE EAND: And in theprocess of responding and

7 looking at the Dnpact of earthquakes on the emergency plar.3,

8 did you use some other consultants? Were some other pe>ple

9 hired or some expertise within the company consulted that.

10 relates to that?

11 WITNESS PILMER: Well, not really. Not in

12 regards to the evacuation time estimate study purposes,

13 which is what Mr. Brothers did. Now what I did, the earth-
,

() quake issue comes along a year later, to be more precise.14

15 We received a letter in December of 1990 that identified that

16 we should make special considerations in our emergency plans

17 for earthquakes. We took the wording, the language in that

' l's letter -- and you will note that it says considefing various

19 degrees of disruptions of communications and evacuation

20 roadway networks develop a range of protective action recom-

21 mendations to deal with that and put it in your plans.

| My effort on that has been -- was a much later12

23 follow-on effort, but I have requested that Mr. Brothers
,

1

| (~] 24 and his people go out and survey each and every potential
! (-
| 25 source of disruption from whatever cause, but in this case

|

._ _. . . . . . _ _ - .._. .______. __ -- .. - ._ -_
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1 it was for earthquakes, and to prepare the Chapter 9 that{
2 is in this Revision 2 of this evacuation time study. I have

3 also engaged -- I have also received additional assistance

O
4 from the NUS Corporation in helping me understand the issue,

5 if you will, to give advice on how to appropriately reflect

6 these in our plans and procedures.

7 JUDGE HAND: And I appreciate that Mr. Brothers

8 was concerned with evacuation time P.ad he tock it up to what

9 he I guese considered theworst case, here he evacuated part

10 of the people and sheltered the remainder. What I am sort

11 of reaching for at this point, anywhere in your planning

12 was there an examination of when evacuation would be a de-

13 sirable action, a preferred action, how long a delay might

14 be induced by an earthquake before in fact evacuation could

15 take place?

16 WITNESS PILMER: I have to apologi,ze. The ques-
,

17 tion was a long one. You are asking have we considered

18 specific delay steps associated with the populace recovering
[
l

19 to the earthquake event itself?

20 JUDGE HAND: No, not what's happening to the

21 population. I'm thinking specifically about evacuation.

12 You have an incident when everything dictates that you should

23 order evacuation,the immediate situation indicates that is
|

(]) 24 not available, and has there been any consideration, studies

25 that would tell us under such a situation what sort of --

pa
!
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(} 4 1 what would be the worst case? How long might you have to
,

2 wait before in fact you could have accomplished evacuation?

3 WITNESS PILMER: I think the direct answer is

4 no. I interpret your question or I would envision the kind

5 of work required to do that would be an analysis of -- a

6 comprehensive analysis of all of the repair work or such

7 that would be necessary to clear an evacuation route. You

a stated as a given that evacuation is impossible. And your

9 question, if I understand it right, is how long would it

10 take to render some impossible evacuation situation to be

11 something in which it is possible.

12 JUDGE HAND: We had something of that sort in

. 13 Brothers' testimony, unless I misunderstand it. The

14 recommendation was because of the unavailability of some

15 highways that part of the population should shelter and the

16 remaining were evacuated. Maybe I am reading more into it

17 than I should. The fact that the remaining were evacuated,

j 18 a route was available and people were told to evacuate,
i
| 19 suggests to re that you would have evacuated all of them,

20 had that option been available. And what I am asking is

| 21 for those people who were rheltered has therc been any looking
1

22 at how long that sheltering might have to continue, how

23 soon might evacuation be available?

() 24 W1INESS PILMER: I think I understand your ques-

25 tion now. Well, from a purely planning point of view,

. .- . . - . - -. .- _. . - -- - .
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S 5 i planning in essence implies that there are options available.
b

*

2 If there are no alternative courses of action then there is

3 nothing in your plan that can be done. I mean, if that is

(
4 the given, there are no alternatives, the people have to

5 remain sheltered. Mr. Brothers has a case of certain types

6 of roadway disruptions at certain points in which in our

7 review we felt that it would come to the point where we

8 should now define quite a novel and different evacuation

9 method, namely, sending people in the direction that they

to would nct normally be sent for evacuation purposes.

33 JUDGE HAND: Yes, south past the plant.

12 WITNESS PILMER: But that case has a population

13 group which is nonetheless essentially squeezed in by

() roadway disruptions where they can't go in either direction.34

15 Or they are of such a distance, they are close enough to

16 ten miles that we consider that it is so very unlikely that

17 they could be subjected to an excessively harmful radiation

18 dose, that they shou'ld be treated essentially the same as
~ ~

peoP e who are outside the zone.l19

20 ///

21

22

23

(]) 24

25

3
(s /

- _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ . _ _ _
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T.20 lc I JUDGE HAND: Well, I guess what'I'm strugc) ling

OQ 2 for is that when -- since you have a situation where you

3 can't evacuate, has any thought been given to what the

7s
\s) 4 consequences, in terms of doses, are to those neople who

5 couldn't be evacuated? And that comes now to a matter of

6 time. How soon can evacuation occur?

7 WITNESS PIINER: It's fully deoendent upon the

8 accident scenario, the accident sequence. You knou, all of

9 these emergency plans are essentially derived from the need

10 to plan for Class 9 accidents. Whether there's evacuation

11 or not, there is a possibility, however remote, of exceedingly

12 harmful radiation doses,-even under the best of emergency

({ 13 plans.

14 JUDGE HAND: And you --
.

15 WITNESS PII2iER: And you're asking me, what's the

16 maximum po'ssible radiation dose somebody who is confined to

17 their shelter could receive, under such circumstances?

18 JUDGE HAND: Yes. And I think we think about

19 that, because we have bc:.:n oun.'.itized to the f act that this

20 is earthquake country.

21 WITNESS PILIiER: I -- I would have to admit that
|

|

| 22 I don't have a specific figure and upper bound on the

23 possible radiation dose, but I think that it would be --

24p) you know, conceivable and gossible that it could be a very
\.

25 injurious dose, could be a fatal dose.

. - . , . - - - - .. .- - _ - . - _ -.
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2 1 JUDGE HAND: I t!' ak nerhaps I'll leave it at

() 2 that.

3 JUDGE KELLEY: Anything else?

( 4 JUDGE HAND: Mo.

5 JUDGE KELLEY: Couple of questions, Mr. Pilmer.g

6 Page 4 at the top -- actually, thn sentence begins on.the

7 preceding page. You speak of -- you state that your planning

8 and implementation capability will either connly with NRC

9 regs or -- and this is what I'm focusing on -- other

10 compensatory features or actions exist or will be taken by
r

11 Applicant within an acceptable time frame.

12 We realize that there are a lot of ongoing things

/(]) 13 that are scheduled to be completed at various times, a

14 number of things, let's say by fuel load. Are we going to

15 have -- and maybe it's in here somewhere -- but as of the

16 time that we finish the hearing and get the Applicant's
. - . __

17 final submission, are we going to have a list -- and this ma

18 be as much a lawyer question as Mr. Pilmer's question -- a

19 list of matters which the Applicants concede don't fully

20 comply with the regs but which are necessary, which will

21 be brought up to the necessr.1- level later, or whatever?

22 MR. PIGOTT: Perhaps that is a legal question.

23 As things stand now, we do not see any need to re?y on a

- 24 showing of compensatory features.

25 JUDGE KELLEY: Good short answer. I think that

__ - _- . . _. , . _ _ _ _ . . _ - . . _ . . __ _ . _ _ . . . -
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3 1 answers the question. You envision then that --

O 2 nn e corr = nou 'a 11xe vou to eex eeo=ue117

3 whether or not the witness agrees with the legal statement.

~O 4 ne 11v, enet is our tese1 voeittoa --

5 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. You really exnect to -

6 MR. PIGOTT: -- as we --

7 JUDGE KELLEY: button things up and submit a--

8 caw ihich says you comply in all respects?

9 MR. PIGOTT: Yes, even though --

10 JUDGE KELLEY: Which --

11 MR. PIGOTT: Which may include not having

12 ' everything physically completed.

13 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay, and then we can get into --

14 MR. PIGOTT: The significance of it.

15 JUDGE KELLEY: a debate perhaps acout whether--

16 that's satisfactory or not. But I understand what vou're

17 saying from your standpoint. -

18 MR. PIGOTT: Right. And I really would solicit

19 your --

20 JUDGE KELLEY: Mr. Pilmer, do you think that's

21 do-able, from your perspective?

22 WITNESS PIL*4ER: Yes, if I might comment, thegw
d,

23 regulations are hard to interpret on an absolute basis.

24 They -- i:nplicit to the regulations is a good deal -- body

25 of knowledge of regulatorv staff guidance. And there are

- - - - _ _ --. ._. - - . _ __.__ _ _ _ _ _ _ - . . _ . _
I
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4 1 various regulatory staff guidance documents out, including

() 2 NUREG 0654, NUREG 0696, and other dochents. There's also

3 a1 action nlan of the regulator" staff ' bat has some

() 4 approval of the Commission, I believe.

5 And there are a series of guidance letters.

6 And in those guidance letters and other staff documents,

7 there are implementation schedules which are well beyond the

8 time frame fcr licensing this nroject. And I would consider,

9 and -- in my work, anyway, is working to'ards acconplishing

10 the things recommended by the staff on the schedules that

11 they have set forth. And one that --

12 JUDGE KELLEY: I understand that. And conceiv-

({} 13 ably the intervenors will question some of them, or maybe

14 the Loard will. But I understand what you're saying. And

15 " just didn' t want us to be in a position of 11aving to

16 cast about as to which of these various requirenents might

17 be submitted as less than ful.1 comolianc'e, and which are

18 submitted as in the Applicant's view in full compliance.

19 But I think that answers it.

20 Just a very snal'. point. On 17, we've haard,

21 before, you cestify about the small half-square-mile of

rT 22 Riverside County that I think is a nick un there toward the
U

23 top of the green line. And you say that it's a remote

24 mountainvus area. Mou, do you know if it's populated?

25 UITNESS PILMER: I would testify that it's not

.-. __ _ _ _ _ _ . __ _ - . _ - _ _ . , - _ _,
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5 1 pop'ulated, and the basis of that testimony is examination

() 2 of topographical naps such as the one behind me. There are

3 no viable access roads shown on that nao. And that man is

() 4 prepared, I know, from aerial photographs. But I personally,
i
I 5 and no one from my staff, has hiked into that area --

6 JUDGE KELLEY: That's what I'm asking you, yes.

7 But -- all right, you've answered my question. I understand

8 your basia. Okay.

9 Now,' do you want to hold over on redirect, or

10 what would you ike to'.do?

11

12

| f( )
23

14

15

16

- 17

1
| 18

19

20

21

22' ()
23

24

C:)
25

1v

,.--,----,.,,-,--,-e. - <------n, - - - - -----,,.-,,..-,,,-,,-m---- ,,-------v, v-, - - - = - - - - . - - - - . . . - --,, --. -
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(s() 1 MR. PIGOTT: Since we are ending with Mr. Pilmer

2 I think we will hold it over. I think it is unlikely we

({') 3 have redirect, but we would still like to hold it.

4 JUDGE KELLEY: ALl right. For this evening,

5 Mr. Pilmer, thank you. You are excused and we may see you

6 tomorrow.

7 (The witness was excused. )

8 JUDGE KELLEY: We have a remaining matter. Let

,
9 me pause a moment for the appropriate papers.

10 (Off the record.)

11 JUDGE KELLEY: Let's go back on the record.

12 We cre back on the record to hear from counsel on two ques-

13 tions pertaining to the pending motion from the Applicants

('
14 for a low power license. The two things we want to address

15 are whether there is a hearing necessary on such a motion,

16 given the posture of this case, and what the issue in such

17 a hearing ought to be. That is one issue. And then_the

| 18 second would be assuming there is an issue to be heard,

|
19 what sort of time schedule should we set for the submission

20 of testimony in the anticipation that we would hear such a

21 motion pretty soon, probably as a last order of business

12 at the next session, if that can be done reasonably within

23 the time we expect to be here.

() 24 Now we have submitted by the Applicant and

25 distributed the other day a proposed motion, a proposed issu e

(
|

|

|

__ _ _ _ . _ _- _ ._
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2 1 that they are submitting as appropriate for the motion. What.{}
2 I suggest we do, and I might just add they have suggested a

3 filing date of the 18th but indicated just a moment ago offs

4 the record they might be a little flexible in discussing

5 that, but since we have before the house the Applicants'

6 specific issue, let us hear first from counsel for the

7 GUARD Intervenors and then the Staff as to their tentative

8 views on this issue and what other issue, if any, they think

9 we should hear. Then we can turn after that to the subject

10 of schedules for filing testimony.

11 Mr. McClung, are you going to speak to this?

12 MR. MC CLUNG: Yeah, I guess I'll speak to this.

13 As far as I'm concerned, in representation of the Intervenors

(/ 14 GUARD and Carstens, et al, we do oppose the issuance of a lok

15 pouer license without a hearing and for the present purposes

16 I am willing to, you know, tentatively go along with the

17 Applicants' proposed issue, subject to the briefing that we

18 talked about. I don't have any alternative issue to propose

19 to the Board today.

20 JUDGE KELLEY: I understand.

21 MR. MC CLUNG: So that's about all I can -- it

12 wouldn't be very useful to go further than that.

23 JUDGE KELLEY: I think that's fine. The under-

(]) 24 standing then is that you have until next Wednesday to file

25 a written suggestion about alternative issues, if you wish.

_ - - - - - _ . -. . - --
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(]}3 1 And that will be considered de novo, if you will.

2 All we are trying to do is' establish what we

3 can in the way of a tentative issue so diac the Applicants-

4 at least on their affirmative case if they want to move

5 ahead can do so. So that's on the Jssue. Let me pass to

6 the Staff and then we'll get to any timing we need to discuss .

7 What's the Staff's view of the Applicant's

8 proposed issus'
r

9 ///

10

11
-

12

-- 13

( 14

15

16

17
-

-
.

I 18

19

20
,

21
,

,

23

()
( 25

. (2)
;
,

e
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T.22 lc I MR. HOEFLING: I'd just like to make a co:tuaent

O 2 defore see to enet goiat- r'= etsit e tittte uac1eer ee

3 to the exact posture of the Applicant's motion for low4

O 4 gower 11cea=1as- ^=a tee me suet 9 reseat =v oro81em eaa

5 see where that goes. It's unclear to me whether the Applicant

6 is going to argue comoliance with the emergency preoaredness

7 regulations based on the record, which we will have before

8 us at the end of the completion of this phase of the hearings

9 due to commence on September 21, 1931 -- and perhaps if I

10 could get an answer to that question, I wouldn't have to go on .

11 MR. PIGOTT: I contemplate, or Apolicants

12 contemplate that there will be some sunplemental testimony

13(g on the state of energency preparedness as of the time of

14 low power licensing, that we would expect low power licens-

15 ing, the context of what we see as the second part of the
,

16 showing, that being the relative degree of risk.
-

. -

17 - so although we expect to put in a showing' that -

18 will justify full power licensing, we think that for low

19 power licensing there will be some incremental amount going
-

20 in a slightly different direction.

21 MR. HOEFLING: Well, let me go further with my

22 proolem then. If the Applicant could argue that the record

23 would establish full compliance with the emergency prepared-

24 ness regulations, then regardless of GUARD's opposition to

25 the motion, I would question the relevance of their issues

_ _ ._ __ _ _ _ ._. ._ ._ _ _ .. _ _ _ . - _ ._ _ -_
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2 1 to such a motion, since their issues go to the state of

(]) 2 emergency preparedness. And if the Aoplicant claims he's

3 in compliance with the regulations, there is no issue on

() 4 that point.

5 JUDGE KELLEY: I'm not sure I followed you.

6 MR. HOEFLING: Let me try it again.

7 JUDGE KELLEY: Well, maybe Mr. Pigott did.

8 MR. PIGOTT: If I can try it again, in the

9 absence of a stipulation from the Intervenors that a hearing

10 is not necessary, we do not believe there is sufficient

11 Commission and regulatory guidance to r.ake an argument and

12 cast as much behind it as would be required in thi's case,

13 that no showing is necessary with resoect to the existingg-

14 level of emergency preparedness.

15 And the increnental showing that I'm talking

16 about would be slight. And it would be geared to the kind of

~

17 emergency planning that may be necessary to protect from
i

18 the types of risks that would be shown to come from low

19 power testing.

20 And that is slightly different, albeit, I think

21 of a lesser level, but still sor.,what different. And in the

22 absence of a sticulation that that need not be shown,

()
23 perhaps out of an abundance of caution, we would still think'

- 24 that it -- ac.croo_riate to make some kind of a showinc., to

d' 25 make that showing, to be absolutely certain that the case

- _ . . - . - -- -- -- - - - -- .
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3 1 has been covered.

2 MR. HOEFLING: Well, just to try to clarify on

3 my point, my point simply is that Intervenors have a series

4 of contentions that deal with emergency oreparedness, and

5 if we have a record that Applicants would argue demonstrate

6 compliance with emergency preparedness, we're in a position to

7 deal with Intervenor's contentions regardless of any risk

8 question.

9 For if indeed emergency preparedness is sufficient

10 for a full power license, it is sufficient for a low power

11 license.

12 MR. PIGOTT: Let me try it from one more tack.

13 The second --

14 JUDGE KELLEY: I can take a try at that, but go

15 ahead, if you want to --

16 MR. PIGOTT: The second thing I was going to say
_ _

'

17 is the timing.

18 JUDGE KELLEY: Yes.

19 MR. PIGOTT: The findings of fact and conclusions
t

20 of law with respect to the low power license would be of a

21 significantly shorter and easier level to deal with, such

] 22 that they should be able to be submitted very, very shortiv

23 after the close of the hearing, to coincide, hopefully,

g 24 with the issuance of a partial initial decision, seismic.

~

25 I would not envision that kind of timing with reso<;ct to a

. - _ _ . _ _ _. __ _ __ _ _ . _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _
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4 1 full decision on emergency planning.

'

() 2 JUDGE KELLEY: I think we see it that way, too.

3 We're not in a position, given where we are and what the

() 4 rules require and the kind of issues before us, to envision

5 a final decision on the merits of all the planning issues

6 in the kind of time frame that the Applicants want to load

7 fuel. So we're looking at a much smaller issue.

8 MR. HOEFLING: Fine. That helps me out.

9 Getting on:to'the Board's question, ,

10 the staff has looked at Applicant's proposed issue, and we

11 generally agree with it. N' have some small modifications

12 to it, which I've discussed with Mr. Pigott, hnd he has no

13 objection to those modifications, and I would propose to'{])
14 read it into the record at this point.

15 JUDGE KELLEY: Fine. Ue've got a question or two

16 also, but go ahead. Put your mcdifications in.

17

18

19

20

21

22
C:)

23

24
(:)

~ 25
_

. , . . , , - - - . --r . , - + _ , , - , , _ . , .,. - - , , ~ . . ,,,e -, - ,-- -- -, - , , -
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m T23 g MR. IiOEFLING: All right. I will read the issue
(d kl

as follows. Whether there is reasonable assurance of adequat e2

3 Protection to the healt's and safety of the public during fuel

4 loading and low power testing, considering the risk to the

5 public presented by those activi+49s and the level of emer-

6 gency preparedness in place during those activities.

7 And with respect to schedule, the Staff would

g consider a September 21 date.as a more practical date for

9 the presentation,cor rather the delivery, if you will, of

testimony, and we would suggest that the parties be preparedto

to place their testimony in the hands of the Board, and they;

parties who will be present on September 21 at the resumptior.
12

of these hearings and of course serve the remainder of thej3

service list on that date.14

JUDGE KELLEY: Let me just ask a question or two
15

about the issue. I believe the Board doesn't have any
16

17 problem with the changes that you were reading into the
~

13 record. That seems okay.
---

One question of some substance did occur to us19

about this formulation. You speak of adequate protection20

21 to the public. The public suggests the general public off

the site. Does this include onsite employees, personnel?22

MR. BIGOTT: We think there would have.to be
23

24 " "" "*"S ' ' ' '' ""i'" """ ""''*' '*"-O
JUDGE KELLEY: Oh, you read --25

O

_- _ - _ -- - - _-- _ _
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(])k2 1 MR. PIGOTT: Offsite --

2 JUDGE KELLEY: -- public to include site employees?

3 MR. PIGOTT: Yes.rwg
V

4 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay. Well, the Applicants pro-

5 posal is before us. There is agreement -- the Staff's

6 changes -- you have answered our question, and the Inter-

7 venors may have further changes, but they won't propose them

8 until the middle of next week, so I think we can just decide

9 now that our tentative issue is as proposed, and as modified

10 in certain respects and read into the record just now by

11 Mr. Hoefling. And the Staff proposes a testimony filing date

12 of the 21st. The Applicants --

7-
13 MR'. PIGOTT: I think that is --

14 JUDGE KELLEY: Their view?

15 MR. PIGOTT: -- eminently practical looking at

16 the 18th, one wonders who c.'e would serve on that date.

17 JUDGE KELLEY: So that is two votes for the 21st.

18 I am not sure it is fair to ask you at this point - given --

19 let me ask you this while -- let's assume for the moment

20 that the issue we have is the issue we have got, and the

21 issue we will try. Now, I think we can expect everybody to

22 be a little bit forhanded in getting ready for that issue.

23 If you come in with a very different issue, that may make it

() 24 a different situation. But do you think the.21st is reason-

25 able given the issue that has been stated?

h-

- _ .-. . . _ _ _ . _ _ g ,, - . _ . . -



9234

1 MR. MC CLUNG: I guess we do.(])k3
2 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay, then our tentative filing

3 date for testimony is the 21st of September, subject to

4 possible reconsideration in the light of filings from' GUARD

5 and Carstens, Mr. Wharton. Excuse me.

6 I will just repeat that I think it would be use-

7 ful to have -- I mentioned a conference call. Is everybody

8 abic to do that.--

9 MR. MC CLUNG: Yes, sir.

10 JUDGE KELLEY: -- on Thursday the whatever it

11 turns out to be?

12 MR. PIGOTT: 10th, I think.

13 MR. MC CLUNG: Yeah.
.

A- 14 JUDGE KELLEY: The 10th. Okay. Well, our office

15 will set that up, and it may just -- I am not sure that my

16 colleagues will be available. It may just be me, but depend--

17 ing on what develops, S:e can -- they can become involved.
_.

18 MR. PIGOTT: For therrecord, I have been advised
J

19 by the process servers that Mr. Wharton was served a copy

20 of the written motion on the day after it was lodged with

21 the Board, and I have been in telepnone contact with him_to

12 tell him of the written filing dates of the 9th, and also

23 courriered relevant portions of the transcript to him to

() 24 review.

25 JUDGE KELLEY: Thank you. We need to advise

"N '

(O

,

,- , - . , - -.--. ~ ,, n. ,w.w - . , . . . ~ -. - . - , - . . - . -,
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_

( ) k4 1 him, I suppose, about what we just decided also. Could you

2 be in touch with him in that regard?

/~% 3 MR. PIGOTT: J Jn sorry. I missed that. I was
V

4 conferring here. .

5 JUDGE KELLEY: I was thinking about just telling

6 Mr. Wharton by some direct -- by the phone what we just'

7 decided --

8 MR. PIGOTT: I will try to do that.

9 JUDGE KELLEY: -- about the te.ntative issue and

10 date.

11 MR. PIGOTT: I will do that.

12 JUDGE MELLEY: Okay.

.- 13 MR. MC CLUNG: I think we should also let the
fr
k- 14 record reflect that Mrs. Gallagher has handed out a packet

15 of exhibits --

16 JUDGE KELLEY: Oh, yes.

17 MR. MC CLUNG: -- that we promised.

18 JUDGE KELLEY: Right.

19 MR. MC CLUNG: We have e

20 JUDGE KELLEY: Do you want to describe those?

21 I mean we have them, but you -- well, ve have got the packet.

12 Maybe you can tell us briefly what is in it. But --

23 MS. GALLAGHER: Well, there are seven items in

() 24 it. They are as yet unnumbered, and we will. provide ar

25 cover letter, a list of --

s

.

- , , - , . , . - - . - . . . . , . . . ..-.,-,..n,- e. ,.w. ,e. , , . . . , - _ . - ,.,e-- . , , , ,
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(]) k5 1 JUDGE KELLEY: Okay.

2 MS. GALLAGHER: -- exhibits tomorrow.

3 JUDGE KELLEY: Fine. Okay. Well, with that -- !
-

N /
4 that leaves us with two witnesses tomorrow, is that right?

5 MR. PIGOTT: I am sorry. Again I missed the

6 question.

7 JUDGE KELLEY: Two witnesses tomorrow?

8 MR. PIGOTT: Two subpoenaed witnesses tomorrow,

9 correct.

JUDGE KELLEY: Any guestimate as to how longto

it will take to --33

MR. PIGOTT: I would put them in the -- in more
32

of a moderate category based on previous experience. I would
.-- 13

14 guess about three hours worth of total time.

JUDGE KELLEY: We may be done before lunch.
15

16 MR. PIGOTT: I don't know, but --

17 JUDGE KELLEY: You never do, but in --

i 18 MR. PIGOTT: By early afternoon, I would think.

I
JUDGE KELLEY: All right. Well, that is enough

19

20 for today. Thank you.

(Whereupon, at 7:00 p.m. the hearing was adjourned,
21

to reconvene at 9:00 a.m., Friday, September 4, 1981.)22

25

() 24

25
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